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FIRST NATIONAL

Annual Meeting Milestones

— ———— —— e e e s e ——————

Reserve this dote: MAY 19, 200 qTotal assats surpassed $500 million
4Estahlished the whoilesale mortgage diyision
The 2008 Annual Mecting of Sharehelders will be held a dAannounced pricing and sale of preferrefd stock,
5:30 i, on Monday, May 14 2008 in the Barnet Room of totaling $18 miliion
the Montgomery Building atfCenverse College at 580 East qExpanded branch network to seven with the
Main Strect, Spartanburg, S@ 29302, opening of new branches in Greenville,|Greer
; - and Charleston, as well as one new loap

production office in Rock Hill

dAnnounced 7% stock dividend distribution
to common shareholders

q40oubled the size of the Corporate Headhuarters
facility in Spartanburg with the openingl of the
new Operations Center

dAnnounced the merger of First Nationa
Bancshares, Inc. and Carolina National
Corporation

Additionatl Awards

4Named one of South Carolina’s 25 fastest-
growing companies 2007 by Elliott Davig, LLC
and the South Carolina Chamber of Commerce

4Named one of Nation's Top 50 community
hanks by US Banker Magazine

q4Chief Financia! Officer Kitty Payne named
*Qutstanding Young Banker” by South Caralina
Bankers Associaticn

86,51 8494,
35 3 093 471,828
$465,382 $379490 376,101
$328,679 $251,406 3271,695
$236.344 $188,508 £191,811
$180,663 130,421 154,733
Data is presentad as of years ended Decemper 3{ ‘03 ‘04 05 08 07 ‘L3 ‘o4 ‘05 |06 07 '3 ‘04 ‘05 |06 07
ASSETS LOANES DEPOSITS

({dollars in thcyisands)

For further financial information about Firs§National Bancshares, Inc., please refar to its Annual Report on
Form 10-K, a copy of whichis included with the package provided to its shareholders in conngction with
the 2008 annual meeting of shareholders.




| etter to Shareholders

;2.007 was an exciting and significant year for First National. We've grown in geography, in facilities,
in customer base, and we've grown financially. First National Bank of the South’s assets grew 26% in
2007, reaching $586.5 million by the end of the year. We're proud of what that growth means to you, with
record earnings of approximately $4.1 miflion for 2007.

We announced our acquisition of Carolina National Bank and its four Columbia-area locations in
2007. These branches opened as First National Bank of the South on February 19, 2008, and First
Mational became the ninth-largest financial institution headquartered in South Carolina with eleven
full-service branches throughout the state with assets now exceeding $820 million. Soon, we wili open a
fifth Columbia-area location in Lexingtan. We welcome the former Carolina National shareholders and
customers to the First National family and look forward to completing the integration of our two banks’
operations later this year.

Earlier in the year we opened twe Market Headquarters facilities in Greenville and Charleston, as well
as our operations center adjacent to our corporate headquarters in Spartanburg. These facilities will
support planned future offices in each of these market areas. During 2007, we laid the groundwork for
future expansion as we opened a full-service branch in Greer, South Carolina, and loan production offices
in Rock Hill, South Carolina, and Union County, North Carolina, Our York County Market Headquarters
should be under construction soon in the Fort Mill/Tega Cay community, We are fortunate to be in these
growth markets with such a talented staff and a supportive group of shareholders.

The growth in each of our market areas during the year positions us for continued growth in the near
term as well as in years to come, We look forward not only to another prosperous year in 2008, but a
future solidly rooted across South Carolina and expanding even further in the future.

All of us, directors, management and staff, realize that our success is possible because of your
continued support and loyalty. Please let us know any time we can assist you with your financial needs
ard feel free to contact us with any guestions or comments.

Bestregards,
Qf.; . Cld Al Wﬂ

Jerry L. Calvert Gaines W. Hammond, Jr., M.D.
Fresident & CEQ, Vice Chairman Chairman '

Left: Jerry L. Calvert
Right: Gaines W. Hammeond, Jr., M.D.
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Board of Directors

Seated Left to Aight: Martha €. *hapman, C. Dan Adams, William K. Stern, 1.S. Leevy Johns« n; Middle fiow Laft to Right: Dr. C. Tyrone Gilmore, Sr.,
Jenry L. Calvert {Vice Chairm: 1), Peter E. Weisman, William A. Hudson, Gaines W. Hammend, Jr., M.D. (Chairman); Back Row Left to Right: Coleman L. Young, Jr.,
Joe! A. Smith, I1I, W. Russel F oyd, Jr., Hobert E. Staton, Mellnee G. Buchheit, Narman F. Pulliam {Chairman Emeritus), Donald B. Wildman, Benjamin B. Hines

Executive Officers
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Back Row Left to Right: David A. Zabriskie, Senior Lender; Jerry L. Calvert, President & CE ), Vice Chairman; Roger B. Whaley, Executive Vice President
Front Row Left to Right: Rober : W. Murdoch, Jr., Retail Banking Manager; Kitty B. Payne, Cief Financial Officer




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

{doflars in thousands, except per share data)

As of the year ended December 31,

Income Statement Information 2007 2006
interest income 3 3998 § 28,286
Interest expense 22,465 14,725
Net interest income 17,503 14,161
Provision for loan losses 1,396 1,192
Net interest income after provision 16,107 12,969
Noninterest income 4,151 2,079
Neninterest expense 14,159 8.9m
Net income before income taxes 6,099 6,147
Provision for income taxes 2,039 2,095
Netincome $ 4060 $ 4,052

Balance Sheet Information

Total assets 5 586513 § 465382
Securities available for sale 70,530 63,374
Loans, net of unearned income 474,685 379,490
Allowance for loan losses 4,951 3,795
Mortgage loans held for sale 19,408 -
Deposits 471,828 376,701
Borrowings 64,453 58,849
Shareholders’ equity $ 41556 % 26,930

Per Share Data!"

Basic net income 3 093 ¢ 112
Weighted average basic shares outstanding 3,696,464 3,615,022
Diluted net income $ 084 § 0.94
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 4,847,045 4,324,561
Book value '$ 843 % 7.9

Setected Perdormance Ratios

Net interest margin 3.39% , 3.79%
Return on average assets 0.76% | 1.05%
Return on average equity , 10.89% | 16.82%
Efficiency ratio i 65.39% 54.81%

{1} Al share and per share amounts reflect the 3 for 2 stock split distributed on January 18, 2006, the 6% stock
dividend distributed on May 16, 2006, and the 7% stock dividend distributed on March 30, 2007.

Total Return Performance

—_— —_—a— —_—
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The above graph sats farth the perfarmance of our common stock for
the five-year period ended December 31, 2007, as compared to the
NASDAQ Composite and The SNL Bank and Thrift Index. The graph
assumes $100 in market value on December 31, 2002, and reflects alf
stock dividends and splits distributed during the periods presented.

The performance data featured represents past performance, which
is no guarantee of future resufts. Investment return and principal
value of an investment will fluctuate; therefore, you may have a gain
or loss when you sell your shares. Current performance may be higher
or lower than performance quoted.

Financial Information
We will furnish, upon request, free of charge, copies of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K by contacting:

Kitty Payne

First National Bancshares, Inc.
PO Box 3508

Spartanburg, ST 29304

(864) 948-9001
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SPARTANBURG REGION

Corporate Headgquarters
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Chapman Cuitural Center, Spartanburg, South Carolina

First National is proud to be part of the lasting tradition of strong
business development and community in wolvement in Spartanburg.
Qur growth in this region centinues, not »nly in market share, but in
facilities and personnel. After beginning our operations in Spartan-
burg just over eight years ago, we are 1 ow, according to the FDIC,
fourth in Spartanburg market share ba :ed on deposits with three
branch offices in this region. In April, we Jpened our new operations
center adjacent to the main office and ¢ wporate headquarters.

Left to Adight.

Van Clark, Human Resource Manager
Jeff Benja nin, Senior Credit Officer
Jimmy Pai 2, Senior Financizal Officer
Peter Seit , Senior Vice President
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Circle of Friendship Sculpture, Barnet Park, Spartanburg, South Carolina

Qur new operations facility houses both current and future
operational staff supporting the growth in each of our regions, as well
as supporting the wholesale mortgage division, which was organized
in January 2007. The wholesale team provides services to commu-
nity banks and mortgage brokers throughout the Carolinas and
Virginia. Over the past year, we also added several experienced team
members including senior ieadership officers in Finance, Sales and
Service, Credit Administration and Business Development,

Left to Right:

Louie Blanton, Commercial Banking & Business Development
John Higdon, Director of Wholesale Martgage

Sid Walker, Commercial Banking Officer

Kent Dill, Retail Sales & Service Manager




NORTHERN REGION

York County
Seuth Charlatte
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Winthrap University, Rock Hill, South Carofina

Qur first venture into the northern region, a loan praduction office in
Rock Hill, opened in 2007 and provided ar excellent starting point for
our future operations in this market, Plan: have been finalized for the
York County Market Headguarters and ful -service branch in the Tega
Cay community, which should apenin thi fourth guarter of 2008. We
recently expanded in this region by open ng a loan production office
in North Carolina’s Union County, which ositions us to capitalize on
the growth opportunities in the attractivi South Charlotte market.

Left to Right:
Chris Williams, York C unty Market Executive
Rick Manley, Northen Region Executive Officer




WESTERN REGION

Greenville
Greer

The Liberty Bridge in Fails Park, Greenville, South Carolina

Continuing to build our presence in this fast-growing region, we
opened our Greenville Market Headquarters and full-service branch
on Pelham Road in June of 2007. Expansion in Greenville County
continued with the addition of a full-service branch in Greer in August
of last year. Our Western Ragion is now supported by a regional
board of community and business leaders who will serve as ambas-
sadors for First National and offer insight to the financial needs of
the market.

Barry Starling, Western Region Executive Officer
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COASTAL REGION

Charleston

Arthur Ravenel Bridge, Charleston, South Caralina

Our Charleston Market Headquarters oper :d downtown on East Bay
Street in April 2007, adding a second fi ll-service branch to the
existing office in Mount Pleasant. Keepi g First National's growth
goals for the market in mind, the lenders n aintained a strong level of
toan production throughout the year. The ¢ 2gional board of directors
continues to be an excellent referral sour e, assisting management
in pursuing business development gpport :nities.

Bob Whittemare, Coasta Region Executive Officer




MIDLANDS REGION

Columbia
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State Capitol, Columbia, South Carolina

Qur recent merger with Carclina National Bank added four
Columbia offices to our branch network. A fifth office is under
construction in Lexington, scheduvled to open in the summer
of 2008. This merger makes First National the ninth-iargest financial
institution headquartered in South Carolina with assets exceeding
$800 million. As a result of this acquisition, we added four
directors to our corporate board from this region. The management
team will continue to work with a local regional board to pursue
business development oppertunities and provide quality services to
the growing customer base in the Columbia market.

Left to Right:

Broak Moore, Midlands Commercial Banking Executive
Rick Manley, Midlands Region Executive Officer

Mary Ellis Gabriel, Midlands Consumer Banking Executive
Steve Waddell, Midlands Market Executive
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2807 and 2008 {dollars in thousands)

issets 2007 2006
ash and cash equivalents $ 842 $ 8205
Securities available for sale 70,530 63,374

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses
of $4,951 and $3,795, respectively 469,734 375,695
Mortgage loans held for sale 19,408 -
Premises and equipment, net 2,974 6,906
Other 15,441 11,202
Total assets $ 586513 $ 465,182

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Liabilities:

Deposits

Noninterest-bearing $ 44466 $ 313

Interest-bearing 427,362 345,380
Total deposits 471,828 376,701

FHLB advances 41,690 31,476

Junior subardinated debentures 13,403 13,403

Federal funds purchased 9,360 7,970

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,676 2,842
Total liabilities 538,957 438,392

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share, 10,000,000

shares authorized; 720,000 and 0 shares issued
and outstanding, respectively 7 -

Common stock, par value $.01 per share, 10,000,000
shares authorized; 3,724,548 and 3,700,439 shares

issued and outstanding, respectively K¥} i
Additional paid-in capital 43,809 26,906
Treasury stock, 14,181 shares, at cost (224} -
Unearned ESOP shares (518) (558)
Retained earnings 4408 1,01
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 37 {466}

Total shareholders’ equity 47,556 26,990
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 586513 $ 465382

All share and per share amounts reflect the 3 far 2 stock split dis ributed on January 18, 2006, the 6% stock dividend distributed on
May 16, 2008, and the 7% stock dividend distributed on March 30 2007.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands, except share data)

Interest income
Loans
Taxable securities
Nontaxable securities
Federal funds sold and other
Total interest income

Depaosits

FHLB advances

Junior subordinated debentures

Federal funds purchased and other
Total interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Mortgage banking income
Service charges and fees on deposit accounts
Gain an sale of securities available for sale
Other

Total noninterest income

Salaries and employee benefits

Occupancy and equipment expense

Public relations

Data processing and ATM expense
- Professional fees

Telephone and supplies

Other

Total noninterest expense

Net income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Netincome

Netincome per share
Basic
Dituted
Weighted average shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted

All share and per share amounis reflact the 3 for 2 stock split distributed on January 18, 2008, the €%
stock dividend distributed on May 16, 2006, and the 7% stock dividend distributed on March 30, 2007.

2007 2006 2005
$ 35661 $ 26237 $ 15461
2672 1977 1319

621 352 262

1,004 320 209
39,968 28,886 17,30
18,872 12,134 6,484
1,957 1,570 925
1,025 877 380

611 144 41
22,465 14,725 7.830
17,503 14,161 9,511
1,396 1,192 594
16,107 12,969 8,917
1,858 - -
1,270 1,080 951

17 . 33 -

906 966 894

4,15y . 2,079 1,855
1876 5,128 3,744
2,030 1,046 660
734 609 378

702 587 487

648 284 251

426 295 21
1,743 952 745
14,159 8,901 6,476
6,099 6,147 4,296
2,039 2,095 1.461

. $ 4,060 $ 4052 $ 2835
$ 093 $ 12 $ 090
$ 0.9 $ 09 $ 073
3,696,464 3,615,022 3,142,035
4,847,045 4,324.561 3,933,760
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CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
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SPARTANBURG CHARLESTON

In April 2007, we completed our operati»ns center adjacent to the

existing corporate headquarters and fu [-service branch on North Main Office & Downtown Office &
. . . . Corporate Headquarters Market Headquarters
Pine Street in Spartanburg, creating a ¢ 1,000 square foot complex. 215 North Pine Street 140 East Bay Steet
The additional 14,500 square feet of offict space houses loan, branch Westside Mourt Pleasant
and deposit operations, as well as tl e information technology, 2680 Reidvile Road 851 Johnnie Dodds Boulevard
facilities and security, human resou zes, credit administration g&l}i%?pﬁgw foad
. - " N 1S Hoal
and compliance departments. This addil on ailows us to consolidate 4P GREENVILLE
. . . : Palham Road Dffice &
0 n
and centralize oui: backrcflom peratios in an effort to increase COLUMBIA Market Heatlquartors
ivi 1 Pelham Road
productivity and allow for future growth 0 Office & 3401 Pelham Roa
Market Headquarters Greer
1350 Main Street 713W. Wadi: Hampton Boulevard
Downtown Drivo-Thru
1340 Sumier Street YORK COUNTY
Trenholm Pl
4% Ff,,?s( []?;: Fort MillfTera Cay Office &
Market Headquarters
Northeast Opening Winter 2008!
10134 Twn Notch Road
Gamers Ferry
6041 Gamers Ferry Road
Lexington
Qpening Summer 2008!

K




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549
Form 10-K
(Mark One)

Annual Report under Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007

or
[J Transition Report under Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act,of
1934 WAl Pres by
For the transition period from to Crnatiungi
Commission file no. 000-30523 PRI " .)[}UU
r. FIRST NATIONAL’
BANCSHARES, INC. Ywashingion, DG
First National Bancshares, Inc. 169
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
South Carolina 58-2466370
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or (IRS Employer Identification No.)
organization}
215 N. Pine St., Spartanburg, S.C. 29302
{Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
§64-948-9001

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of Class Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, 30.01 par value The NASDAQ Global Market
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12{g) of the Act: None.

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act. YesJ No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Act. Yes ] No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer, or a smaller reporting company. Sec definition of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller
reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer (] Accelerated filer (] Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company
{Do not check if a smaller
reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the tegistrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange

Act). Yes [J No

The aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates (shareholders holding less than 5% of an
outstanding class of stock, excluding dircctors and executive officers, computed by reference to the price at which the
common stock was last sold) was $38,621,340, as of the last business day of the registrant’s most recent completed second
fiscal quarter.

6,367,521 shares of the registrant’s common stock were outstanding as of March 31, 2008 (the latest practicable
date).

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Shareholders Meeting (Part 11I)




IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT THIS REPORT

In this repott, tie words “First National,” “Company,” “we " “us” and “our” mean First National
Bancshares, Inc., including First National Bank of the South, our wholly-owned national bank
subsidiary.

SPI CIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report, inc uding information included or incorporated by reference in this document, contains
statements which co astitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 19.13 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Forward-looking
statements relate to the financial condition, results of operation:, plans, objectives, future performance,
and business of Firs: National. Forward-looking statements are based on many assumptions and
estimates and are not guarantees of future performance. Our actual results may differ materially from
those anticipated in any forward-looking statements, as they will depend on many factors about which
we are unsure, inch ding many factors which are beyond our control. The words “may,” “would,”
“could,” “should,” * will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “predict,” “project,” potential,” “believe,” “continue,”

LN ¥

“assume,” “believe, ' “intend,” “plan,” “forecast,” “goal,” and “estimate,” as well as similar expressions,
are meant to identi:y such forward-looking statements. Potentia risks and uncertainties include, but are
not limited to those described below under Item 1A-Risk Facto:s and the following:

* significant in :reases in competitive pressure in the banking and financial services industries;
+ changes in tl e interest rate environment which could recuce anticipated or actual margins;
+ changes in political conditions or the legislative or regul: tory environment;

» general econdmic conditions, either nationally or regionzlly and especially in our primary service
areas, becon ing less favorable than expected resulting in, among other things, a deterioration in
credit qualit;

* changes oca rring in business conditions and inflation;

* construction delays and cost overruns related to the expimsion of our branch network;
* changes in t:chnology;

* changes in ceposit flows;

* changes in rionetary and tax policies;

* adequacy of the level of allowance for loan loss;

* the rate of « elinquencies and amounts of charge-offs;

» the rates of loan growth and the lack of seasoning of our loan portfolio;

* changes in : ccounting principles, policies or guidelines;

* our ability t> maintain effective internal control over financial reporting;

* our reliance on secondary liquidity sources such as Fed¢ral Home Loan Bank advances, sales of
securities ar d loans, federal funds lines of credit from c>rrespondent banks and out-of-market
time deposi s, to meet our liquidity needs;

* adverse chaiges in asset quality and resulting credit risk-related losses and expenses;
+ loss of consimer confidence and economic disruptions 1esulting from terrorist activities;

* changes in ‘he securities markets;




* expected revenue synergies and cost savings from the acquisition of Carolina National
Corporation (“Carolina National”), completed on January 31, 2008, and its wholly-owned
banking subsidiary, with and into First National;

* revenues following the merger may be lower than expected; and

* other risks and uncertainties detailed from time to time in our filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

We have based our forward-looking statements on our current expectations about future events.
Although we believe that the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements are reasonable,
we cannol guarantee you that these expectations will be achieved. We undertake no obligation to
publicly update or otherwise revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events, or otherwise.




PART 1
Item 1. Business.
First National Banc hares, Inc.

We are a South Carolina corporation organized in 1999 to :erve as the holding company for First
National Bank of th: South, a national banking association, whii*h is referred to herein as the “bank.”
The bank currently naintains a main office in Spartanburg, Souh Carolina, ten additional full-service
branches and two loan production offices in select markets acrois the state.

Qur assets congist primarily of our investment in the bank ind liquid investments. Our primary
activities are conducted through the bank. As of December 31, '007, our consolidated total assets were
$586.5 million, our «onsolidated total loans were $494.1 million, our consolidated total deposits were
$471.8 million, and >ur total shareholders’ equity was approximiitely $47.6 million. In January 2008, we
acquired Carolina M ational Corporation and its wholly-owned b ink subsidiary, Carolina National Bank
and Trust Company As of December 31, 2007, Carolina Nationil’s consolidated total assets were
$220.6 million, its consolidated total loans were $206.2 million, its consolidated total deposits were
$185.0 million, and ts total shareholders® equity was approximaiely $32.3 million.

Our net incom:: is dependent primarily on our net interest income, which is the difference between
the interest income earned on loans, investments, and other int:rest-earning assets and the interest
paid on deposits an 1 other interest-bearing liabilities. To a lesser extent, our net income also is affected
by our noninterest jncome derived principally from service char jes and fees and income from the sale
and/or servicing of inancial assets such as loans and investments, as well as the level of noninterest
expenses such as sa aries, employec benefits and occupancy cos's.

Our operation: are significantly affected by prevailing econ omic conditions, competition, and the
monetary, fiscal, an i regulatory policies of governmental agencies. Lending activities are influenced by
a number of factor:, including the general credit needs of indiv duals and small and medium-sized
businesses in its merket areas, competition among lenders, the “evel of interest rates, and the
availability of funds. Deposit flows and costs of funds are influe nced by prevailing market rates of
interest, primarily t 1e rates paid on competing investments, acciunt maturities, and the levels of
personal income and savings in our market areas.

First National Ban t of the South

First National Bank of the South is a national banking association with its principal executive
offices in Spartanburg, South Carolina. The bank is primarily e 1gaged in the business of accepting
deposits insured by the FDIC and providing commercial, consumer, and mortgage loans to the general
public. We operate under a traditional community banking moclel, with a particular focus on
commercial real es ate and small business lending. We commer ced banking operations in March 2000
in Spartanburg, So'ith Carolina, where we operate three full-se vice branches under the name First
National Bank of € partanburg. Since 2003, we have expanded into four additional counties across the
state of South Carvlina under the name First National Bank of the South.

In October 205, we successfully converted our Mount Pleasant loan production office, opened in
October 2004, to a fourth full-service branch, our first in the Charleston area. In January 2006, we
expanded into our state’s capital with the opening of a loan prduction office in Columbia. In February
2006, we opened a loan production office on Daniel Island to xpand our presence in the Charleston
area.

In October 20)6, we opened a fifth full-service branch, our first in the Greenville market, in a
temporary location. In June 2007, we completed construction ¢ f our permanent branch and market
headquarters on P.1ham Road in Greenville and relocated our Greenville full-service branch to this




location. In August 2007, we opened a full-service branch in an existing facility in Greer, South
Carolina,

In April 2007, we opened a sixth full-service branch, its second in the Charleston market, in a
leased facility located at 140 East Bay Street in downtown Charleston. We are expanding our banking
operations into York and Lancaster Counties, beginning with a loan production office in Rock Hill that
opened in February 2007. In December 2007, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC”)
approved the opening of a full-service branch and York County market headquarters to serve the Fort
Mill/Tega Cay community, which is expected to open later in 2008.

In April 2007, we opened our new operations center adjacent to our corporate headquarters in
Spartanburg, South Carolina, which resulted in a total of 29,500 square feet of office space, including
its existing corporate headquarters facility which continues to house a full-service branch.

On February 19, 2008, the four Columbia full-service branches of Carolina National Bank and
Trust Company began to operate as First National Bank of the South. In connection with the merger,
we consolidated our Columbia loan production office inte one of the Columbia full-service branches. In
addition, we have received approval from the OCC for the fifth full-service branch in the Columbia
market to be located in Lexington, South Carolina. This new facility is currently under construction and
is projected to open in the summer of 2008.

in August 2002, we began to offer trust and investment management services through a strategic
alliance with Colonial Trust Company, a South Carolina private trust company established in 1913. We
also originate small business loans under the Small Business Administration’s (“SBA”) various loan
programs. The SBA division operates from our Pelham Road location in Greenville and makes loans to
customers located throughout the Carolinas and Georgia. In addition, we opened a wholesale mortgage
division on January 29, 2007, as an enhancement to our current banking operations. The division
operates from leased office space located at 200 North Main Street in downtown Greenville, South
Carolina, and employs a staff of ten individuals. We offer a wide variety of conforming and
non-conforming loans with fixed and variable rate options, although the trend is to move towards all
loans being conforming ot traditional mortgage loans. Conforming loans are those that ace fully
documented and are in amounts less than $417,000. The division also offers FHA/VA and construction/
permanent products to its customers. The division’s customers are located primarily in South Carolina.
We anticipate the wholesale mortgage division will continue to serve our existing base of other
community banks and mortgage brokers.

Growth Strategy

We target both individuals and small to medium-sized businesses in our markets and have adopted
a decentralized strategy that focuses on providing superior service through our employees who are
relationship-oriented and commitied to their respective communities. Through this strategy we intend
to grow our business, expand our customer base, and improve profitability. The key elements of our
strategy are:

Deliver superior community banking. First National effectively competes with its super-regional
competitors by providing superior customer service with localized decision-making capabilities. First
National emphasizes to its employees the importance of delivering superior customer service and
seeking opportunities to strengthen relationships both with customers and in the communities First
National serves. First National’s organizational structure with its designation of regional executives
allows it to provide local decision-making consistent with its community banking philosophy. First
National has created and will continue to create regional boards comprised of local business and
community leaders in each of its markets. First National currently maintains a regional board in
Charleston and in Greenville. First National has also formed a Columbia regional board made up of
five of the former Carolina National board members as advisors:




Maintain excelle nt asset quality. First National considers cre dit quality to be of primary importance
and has taken meas 1res to help assure that it consistently mainiains excellent asset quality through a
strong credit culture, extensive underwriting procedures, and conprehensive loan review. First National
has developed an oerations infrastructure designed to support its rapid growth and expansion plans
without sacrificing < redit quality. First National’s continued focus on asset quality has resulted in a ratio
of net charge-offs t. average total loans at or below 0.07% for 1he past five years. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, First National’s ratio of net charge-offs to «verage total loans was .06%.

Expand into high growth markets. First National has pursucd growth through both de novo
branching and bank acquisitions into attractive markets based o1 its analysis of demographic and
competitive data. F:rst National’s strategy for the development of de novo branches is to identify
experienced banker . in each target market who share its philoscphies regarding community banking,
strong credit policies, and customer service. After retaining these key executives, First National then
opens a loan produ :tion office in the market. Once there is a sufficient loan and customer base at the
loan production off ce, First National converts the loan production office into a full-service branch to
further serve the mrket. First National’s expansion in both Chirleston and Greenville followed this
approach. First Nat onal believes its expansion philosophy enab'es it to enter markets with less risk and
operate more efficivntly upon the opening of a full-service branch. While organic growth has been in
the past First Natioaal's primary focus, through the merger with Carolina National Corporation it
recently acquired fc ur full-service branches in the Columbia market to create a statewide presence for
First National. Firsi National may continue to consider select bink and non-bank (e.g. brokerage and
insurance) acquisiti s in the future to facilitate growth in target markets.

Build core depo iit base. First National’s primary competition in its markets is large regional and
super regional banks. First National believes that its community banking philosophy and emphasis on
customer service al ows it to take market share from its compelitors. As a result, First National intends
to decrease its reliznce on non-core funding as more loan prod iction offices are converted into full
service branches and these branches mature. While building a core deposit base takes time, First
National’s strategy 1as experienced considerable success. First National entered Charleston in October
2005 with a loan p12duction office. In October 2006, due to sig aificant loan demand and the creation
of a core customer base, First National converted the office int> a full service branch. Within one year,
deposits had grown substantially and the loan to deposit ratio tad fallen to 100%. First National is now
leveraging its succe s in this market with its new branch in downtown Charleston. In January 2008, First
National acquired ¢ arolina National Corporation and its whollr-owned bank subsidiary located in
Columbia, which as of December 31, 2007 had $185.0 million in deposits. First National’s goal is to be
in the top five insti utions in deposit market share in each of it; markets.

Enhance currer t banking operations by diversifying revenue mix. First National seeks to provide a
broad range of pro lucts and services to better serve its custom:rs, while also increasing noninterest
income as a percertage of its gross income (net interest incom:: plus noninterest income). First
National offers trust and investment management services throngh its strategic alliance with Colonial
Trust Company, a ! outh Carolina private trust company, establ shed in 1913. In January 2007, First
National opened a wholesale mortgage division to originate residential real estate mortgage loans
through other com nunity banks and mortgage brokers and sell them in the secondary market. First
National will evalu ite future opportunities to increase noninterest income as they arise. First National
expects these effor s to allow it to diversify its revenue sources.

Merger with Carol na National

On January 31, 2008, Carolina National Corporation, the holding company for Carolina National
Bank and Trust Company, merged with and into First National (the “Merger”). On February 18, 2008,
Carolina National 3ank and Trust Company merged with and into First National Bank of the South.




Unless otherwise noted in this report, the financial information presented for First National as of the
year ended December 31, 2007 and for all prior periods represent the financial condition of First
National prior to the merger. Unless otherwise noted in this report, any financial information presented
for Carolina National as of the year ended December 31, 2007 is unaudited and represents the
financial condition of Carolina National prior to the merger.

As a result of this acquisition, we have added four full-service branches in the Columbia market to
our operations that had been previously operated by Carolina National Bank and Trust Company.
Columbia’s central location in the state and convenient access to I-20, 1-26, and 1-77 makes this area
one of the fastest growing areas in South Carolina according to U.S. Census data. Home to the state
capital, the University of South Carolina, and a variety of service-based and light manufacturing
companies, this area provides a growing and diverse economy. According to SNL Financial (“SNL’),
Columbia had an estimated population of 356,842 residents as of July 1, 2007 and is projected to grow
7.6% from 2007 to 2012. The South Carolina Department of Commerce reports that Richland County
attracted over $442.0 million in announced capital investment since 2000. Additionally, as reported by
the Central Midlands Council of Governments, new single family housing units approved for
construction in Richland County and surrounding areas increased from 2,172 in 1990 to 4,941 in 2004,
an increase of over 127%. As of June 30, 2007, FDIC-insured institutions in Richland County and the
Columbia metropolitan area had approximately $8.71 billion and $12.4 billion in deposits respectively.

Carolina National was a South Carolina corporation registered as a bank holding company with
the Federal Reserve Board. Carolina National engaged in a general banking business through its
subsidiary, Carolina National Bank and Trust Company, a national banking association, which
commenced operations in July 2002. As a result of the Merger, First National moved its Columbia loan
production office to Carolina National’s former main office and branch and the former Carolina
National loan production office in Rock Hill moved to the existing First National Rock Hill location.

We expect that the Merger will render a combined company which will possess more financial
resources than First National or Carolina National alone, with which to compete in the marketplace for
banking and financial services. The combined organization will be a more effective competitor than
either existing bank alone, not only because of its larger market capitalization and asset base, but also
because of its greater efficiency.

Consolidating the resources, expertise and market knowledge of First National and Carolina
National will also provide numerous benefits to the consumers and businesses in the communities they
serve. By bringing First National’s successful retail culture to Carolina National’s attractive branch
footprint, the combined organization will offer expanded loan and deposit products and services to
Carolina National’s existing customers. In addition, the broader geographic diversification brought
about by combining the complementary branch networks is expected to reduce credit risk concentration
for the combined entity. In addition, the Merger will enable the combined organization to meet the
credit needs of the businesses in the communities each institution currently serves, due to, among other
things, higher aggregate credit limits. Accordingly, the combined company can more readily support
economic growth and development in these communities.

Under the terms of the definitive agreement, Carolina National’s shareholders were given the
option to elect to receive either 1.4678 shares of our common stock or $21.65 of cash for each share of
Carolina National common stock held, or-a combination of stock and cash, provided that the aggregate
consideration consisted of 70% stock and 30% cash. Based on the “Final Buyer Stock Price”, as
defined in Section 9.1(g} of the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated August 26, 2007 by and between
First National and Carolina National Corporation (the “Merger Agreement’™), of $12.85, and including
the value of Carolina National’s outstanding options and warrants, the transaction closed with an
aggregate value of $54.1 million. After the allocation and proration processes set forth in the Merger
Agreement were applied to the elections made by Carolina National shareholders, the total Merger




consideration resulti:d in an additional 2,663,673 shares of First National common stock. In addition,
cash consideration ¢ f $16,848,809 will be paid in exchange for shares of Carolina National common
stock.

Our Market Aieas

To better execute our strategic plan for growth and expansion, we have organized our banking
operations into five regions:

* Spartanburg Region;

* Coastal Region;

*+ Western Region;
* Northern Region; and
* Midlands Region.

The Spartanburg Region serves as the backbone and support center for First National’s expanding
branch network. Fi st National’s corporate headquarters are located in the Spartanburg Region, along
with two other full service branches. Within each other region, First National conducts its banking
operations in selected market areas which meet the criteria for its business plan. In addition, First
National is continully evaluating other high-growth areas to further expand its asset base and resulting
branch network. Fi st National has appointed an officer to eacli region, other than the Spartanburg
Region, to oversee each region’s banking and business develop:nent activities and assist the executive
management team in evaluating market areas within the regior for growth and expansion opportunities.
These regional offiers also serve as the liaison to their region’s business community and function as
the primary point of contact for the local regional board memteers.

Spartanburg Region

Our primary 1iarket area is Spartanburg County, which is located in the upstate region of South
Carolina between .Atlanta and Charlotte on the 1-85 business corridor. According to SNL, as of July 1,
2007, Spartanburg County’s population totaled 275,235 residents. Population growth from 2007 to 2012
for Spartanburg County is projected to be 5.8%.

According to he South Carolina Department of Commere, Spartanburg County attracted over
$160 million in cajital investment in 2005. In addition, the Spartanburg Area Chamber of Commerce
reports that since 2001, downtown Spartanburg has attracted riore than $170 million in investments
and 1,200 new jobi. As of 2007, estimated median family incoine for the Spartanburg metropolitan
statistical area wa: $51,000, as compared to $50,800 for South Carolina, according to the U.S.
Department of Hc using and Urban Development. According 1o the South Carolina Departraent of
Commerce, more han 110 international firms, representing 1° nations, conduct business in Spartanburg
County, including Michelin, BMW, and Invista. BMW’s North American assembly plant in Spartanburg
began production in September 1995 and is now the sole procucer of both the Z4 roadster and coupe
and the X5 sports activity vehicle. Spartanburg is also home to many domestic corporations, including
Milliken, Cryovac. Denny’s, QS/1, and Advance America. We >elieve that Spartanburg has a strong
economic environ nent that will continue to support the comnwnity and our business in the future.

We advertise heavily in the Spartanburg market and, thrcugh our three full-service branches in
Spartanburg, have positioned ourselves as the leading local community bank in this market. As of
June 30, 2007, we were the fourth largest bank in Spartanburj: County, with $391.5 million in total
deposits, or 11.35 % of the approximately $3.5 billion of deporits in the market. The following table




includes information from the FDIC website regarding our deposit market share in Spartanburg County
relative to top competitor banks as of June 30, 2007:

Rank Bank Branches Total Deposits Market Share
1 Wachovia . ... e 7 $557.0 million 16.15%
2 Bankof America. . ...t 8 512.4 million 14.86%
3 BB&T ... e 9 444.4 million 12.89%
4 First National Bank . ......................... 3 391.5 million 11.35%
5 First Citizens .. ...... ... ... ... ... ... ., 10 321.2 million 9.31%
6 Suntrust Bank . . ... ... . i e e 12 283.0 million 8.20%
7 Arthur State Bank. .. ............ .. . i, 7 199.6 million 5.79%
8 First South Bank............... ... ........... 2 170.6 million 4.94%

All others (8 institutions). . . .................... 21 569.6 million 16.51%
Total 79 $3.5 billion 100.00%

The Spartanburg Region also serves as the backbone and support center for our expanding branch
network. We operate our corporate headquarters and operations in this region and opened our new
operations center adjacent to our corporate headquarters in April 2007. The completion of this
addition added 29,500 square feet of office space while continuing to house a full-service branch.

Coastal Region

The Eastern Region consists of historic Charleston and will also encompass future expansion into
other fast-growing coastal areas of South Carolina. Our full-service branch in Mount Pleasant and our
loan production office on Daniel Island serve the fast-growing Charleston market. First National
opened another full-service branch in the Charleston market at 140 East Bay Street in downtown
Charleston in April 2007. This location serves as First National’s headquarters for the Charleston
market area. According to the FDIC, total deposits in Charleston were $7.04 billion as of June 30,
2007,

Charleston

As of July 1, 2006, Charleston County’s estimated population totaled 342,194 residents and the
Charleston-North Charleston Metropolitan Statistical Area (“MSA”) estimated population totaled
616,148, according to SNL. Population growth for Charleston County. and the Charleston-North
Charleston MSA is projected to be 8.79% and 10.88%, respectively, from 2006 to 2011. The Charleston
area achieved an employment growth rate of 9.1% from 2000 through 2005, outpacing national
employment growth of 3.5% during that same period, according to the Charleston Regional
Development Alliance.

Charleston is the beneficiary of significant investment and development. The South Carolina
Department of Commerce reports that Charleston County has attracted over $653.7 miilion in
announced capital investment since 2004. The Charleston Regional Development Alliance reports that
since 1995, new and expanding companies invested more than $5 billion in the region. In its May 2006
issue, Inc. magazine ranked Charleston as one of “The Top U.S. Cities for Doing Business.” The
Charleston regional economy has attracted approximately 70 firms with internationally-owned
operations, according to the Charleston Regional Development Alliance. These firms include Bosch,
Berchtold, Maersk Sealand, Rhodia, and Holset Engineering. Domestic firms also maintain significant
operations in the Charleston area, including MeadWestvaco, Nucor Steel, Alcoa, Arborgen, Blackbaud,
and Piggly Wiggly. In addition, as of 2006, the U.S. Navy and the Charleston Air Force Base
collectively employed over 21,800 full-time employees, according to the Charleston Metro Chamber of
Commerce.




Charleston is also a popular travel destination, which helps fuel the local economy. Condz Nast
Traveler magazine hi:s ranked Charleston as one of the country’s top 10 domestic travel destinations for
the past 13 years. A :cording to the Charleston Metro Chamber of Commerce, in 2004, there were over
4.7 million visitors t the Charleston region with an aggregate ri:gional economic impact of $5.7 billion.
In addition, the tot:1 direct and indirect jobs in the Charleston :'egion related to tourism were
approximately 105,00 in 2004, resulting in aggregate earnings for local residents exceeding
$1.45 billion.

As of June 30, 2007, with two full-service branches in the Charleston market, we were the
17 fargest bank in Charleston County, with $38.8 million in toial deposits, or 0.55% of the
approximately $7.0¢ billion of deposits in the market. The following table includes information from the
FDIC website regar ding deposit market share in Charleston Co inty as of June 30, 2007:

Rank Bank ‘ Branches Total Deposits Market Share
1T Wachovia . ... oo e e e 20 $ 2.04 billion 28.98%
2 Bankof Am:rica ... ... ... .. .. e 16 1.12 billion 15.84%
3  First FS&L/ . of Charleston . . ................... 17 929 8 million 13.21%
4  National Ba:ik of South Carolina. ................ 6 467.0 million 6.64%
5 BB&T.......... e e e e e 7 369.5 million 5.25%
6 Tidelands. . ... .. . e e 2 323.2 million 4.59%
7 First Citizens . . .ottt et e e 14 293.6 million 4.17%
8 Community FirstBank......................... 4 282.5 million 4.01%
9  Southcoast tommunity Bank. . .................. 7 258.7 million 3.68%

10 CarolinaFirst Bank ........... ... ... . .... 4 245.5 million 3.49%
All others ( 5 institutions) ............. ... .... 32 712.8 million 39.21%
Total ..o e 129 $ 7.04 billion 100.00%

17 First National Bank ... .......ovvivnvneneenor 2 38.8 million 0.55%

Western Region

The Western 1legion stretches from Spartanburg to the Guorgia border a]ong South Carolina’s 1-85
corridor. We open: d a full-service branch at a temporary locat on in Greenville in October 2006. In
June 2007, we comr pleted our permanent branch and market hi:adquarters on Pelham Road and
relocated our Greenville full-service branch to this location. In August 2007, we opened a full-service
branch in an existi 1g facility in Greer, South Carolina,

Greenville Co inty is South Carolina’s most populous coul lty with 420,579 residents as of July 1,
2007 according to 3NL. Greenville County’s projected population growth from 2007 to 2012 is 7.3%.
Greenville is also vune of the state’s wealthiest counties, with ail estimated median income of $52,900 in
2007 versus $51,00) for the state of South Carolma according 0 U.S. Department of Housing and

Urban Developme at.

In the past decade, Greenville County has attracted more than $6 billion in new business
investment, 43,000 new jobs and, according to the 2005 Greenville County Annual Report, is now
considered the “economic engine of South Carolina.” During “he same period, Greenville County was
rated first in the Uinited States by Site Selection Magazine for >oth new and expanding international
firms and, in 2002 was ranked fifth out of America’s top 50 cities for European business expansion.

As of June 3(, 2007, with two full-service branches in the Greenville market, we were the
25" largest bank i1 Greenville County, with $17.8 million in total deposits, or 0.19% of the
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approximately $9.59 billion of deposits in the market. The following table includes information from the
FDIC website regarding deposit market share in Greenville County as of June 30, 2007:

Rank Bank ) Branches Total Deposits Market Share
1 CarolinaFirstBank ............ ..., 13 $ 243 billion 25.39%
2 Wachovia.................. e 19 1.62 billion 16.88%
3 BB&T ... e e e e 20 1.34 billion 13.99%
4 Bankof America ......... .00 16 917.8 million 9.57%
5 SuntrustBank ......... ... ... 17 467.0 million 4.87%
6 Greenville First Bank ... ..., .. ... ... ....... ... 3 388.6 million 4.05%
7 Bank of Travelers Rest . .. ... ... ............... 7 337.5 million 3.52%
8§ PalmettoBank ... ...... ... .. . .. . e 12 324.8 million 3.39%
9  First Citizens .. ... oot i e e 11 269.7 miilion 2.81%

10 GreerState Bank .. ......... .. ... 4 237.3 million 2.47%
All others (19 institutions) ..................... 35 1.25 billion 13.06%
Total . oo e e e e 157 $ 9.39 billion 100.00%

25 First National Bank .............. ... .. ...... 1 17.8 million 0.19%

Northern Region
York County

The opening of our loan production office in February 2007 in Rock Hill marked our entry into
the Northern Region of our franchise. This region includes growing York and Lancaster counties and
the suburbs south of Charlotte, North Carolina and stretches down to the midlands area of South
Carolina to encompass the Columbia market, in Richland County. Rock Hill is located 20 minutes
south of Charlotte, North Carolina along the I-77 corridor. It is the home of Winthrop University and
several business parks. Lancaster County has a population of 65,083 residents while York County has a
population of 198,269 residents, of which 57,073 reside in Rock Hill according to SNL. York County
attracted over $47.44 million in announced capital investment in 2003, according to the South Carolina
Department of Commerce.

According to SNL, York County had one of the highest median household incomes in the state at
$53,522 projected for 2009. The three largest employers in York County are Wells Fargo Home
Mortgage, Bowater and Duke Power. York and Lancaster Counties, combined, had $1.91 billion in
deposits, as of June 30, 2007, according to the FDIC. We have received approval from the OCC to
open a full-service branch, which will also serve as our York County market headquarters, at
2471 Hwy. 160, Ft. Mil}, South Carolina 29715 in York County.

Midlands Region

As discussed previously under “Merger with Carolina National”, Columbia’s central location in the
state and convenient access to [-20, I-26, and [-77 makes this area one of the fastest growing areas in
South Carolina according to U.S. Census data. Home to the state capital, the University of South
Carolina, and a variety of service-based and light manufacturing companies, this area provides a
growing and diverse economy. We plan to capitalize on Carolina National's existing footprint in our
future development of our newly established Midlands Region.

Lending Activities

General. We offer a variety of lending services, including real estate, commercial, and consumer
loans, including home equity lines of credit, primarily to individuals and small- to mid-size businesses
that are located, or conduct a substantial portion of their business in the Spartanburg, Charleston,
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Columbia, Greenville or Rock Hill markets. As of December 31, 2007, we had total loans, including
mortgage loans held for sale, of $494.1 million, representing 84.2% of our total assets. We emphasize a
strong credit culture based on traditional credit measures and our knowledge of our markets through
experienced relation: hip managers. We have adopted a credit gr: ding system designed to help reduce
the risk in our loan portfolio and to assist us in setting performaace benchmarks in the areas of
nonperforming asset:, charge-offs, past dues, and loan documentation. In addition to having developed
our own in-house cridit review function, we engage outside firm: to evaluate our loan portfolio. As of
December 31, 2007, there were no loans accruing interest that wzre 90 days or more past due, we had
no restructured loan s, and our ratio of nonperforming assets to 1otal assets was 2.8%. However, due to
the recent deteriorati n of the South Carolina real estate market, v/e have identified adverse developments
with respect to certain loans in our loan portfolio. In response to this determination, we increased the
amount of impaired loans subsequent to the fourth quarter to $..2 million as of December 31, 2007 to
address the risks witain our loan portfolio. Recent development:, including deterioration in the South
Carolina real estate market as a whole, may cause management to adjust its opinion of the level of
credit quality in our loan portfolio.

Our underwritinig standards vary for each type of loan. While we generally underwrite the loans in
our portfolio in accurdance with our internal underwriting guidelines and regulatory supervisory
guidelines, in certaii circumstances we have made loans that exceed either our internal underwriting
guidelines, supervisc ry guidelines, or both. We are permitted to hold loans that exceed supervisory
guidelines up to 10( % of our capital. We have made loans that exceed our internal guidelines to a
limited number of cur customers who have significant liquid asszts, net worth, and amounts on deposit
with the bank. As o! December 31, 2007, $13.8 million, or approximately 2.9% of our loans and 29.0%
of our capital, had | oan-to-value ratios that exceeded regulatory supervisory guidelines.

We have focus. d our lending activities primarily on smali- :ind medium-sized business owners,
commercial real estite developers, and professionals. We also sirive to maintain a diversified loan
portfolio and limit -he amount of our loans to any single custorier. As of December 31, 2007, our 10
largest customer lo:.n balances represented approximately $39.4 million, or 8.0% of the loan portfolio.

Real Estate Mo tgage Loans. Loans secured by real estate mortgages are the principal component
of our loan portfolia. To increase the likelihood of the ultimate repayment of the loan, we obtain a
security interest in -eal estate whenever possible, in addition to other available collateral. As of
December 31, 2007, loans secured by first or second mortgages on real estate made up approximately
$434.3 million, or £ 7.8% of our loan portfolio.

Within the brcader category of real estate mortgage loans, the following table describes the loan
categories of one-t\-four family residential real estate loans, milti-family residential real estate loans,
home equity loans, commercial real estate loans, and land loan; as of December 31, 2007 (dollars in
thousands);

Type of Rea Estate Loan Amou:i_
One-to-fcur residential . . . ... ... ... ... .. .. ... $ 80,458
Multi-fanily residential . .. .. ... ... ... ... 0 ..o o oo, 1,589
HELOC .. e e 31,032
Commercial real estate .. ...... ... .. ... 0 (i 226,194(1)
Land ........ ..o e e e e 95,(@
Total. ... e $434,297(2)

(1} Inch des SBA loans.

(2) Tota real estate loans does not include mortgage: loans held for sale.
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Most of our real estate loans are secured by residential or commercial property. Real estate loans
are subject to the same general risks as other loans and are particularly sensitive to fluctuations in the
value of real estate. Fluctuations in the value of real estate, as well as other factors arising after a loan
has been made, could negatively affect a borrower’s cash flow, creditworthiness, and ability to repay the
loan.

Commercial Real Estate Loans. As of December 31, 2007, our individual commercial real estate
loans ranged in size from $6,700 to $4.5 million. The average commercial real estate loan size was
approximately $440,000. Other than the SBA loans discussed below, these loans generally have terms of
five years or less, although payments may be structured on a longer amortization basis. We evaluate
each borrower on an individual basis and attempt to determine the business risks and credit profile of
each borrower. We attempt to reduce credit risk in the commercial real estate portfolio by emphasizing
loans on owner-occupied properties where the loan-to-value ratio, established by independent
appraisals, does not exceed 80%. We prepare a credit analysis in addition to a cash flow analysis to
support the loan. In order to ensure secondary sources of payment and liquidity to support a loan
request, we typically review all of the personal financial statements of the principal owners and require
their personal guarantees. These commercial real estate loans include various types of business purpose
loans secured by commercial real estate.

Residential Real Estate Loans. As of December 31, 2007, our individual residential real estate
loans ranged in size from less than $1,000 to $1.9 million, with an average loan size of approximately
$144,000. Generally, we limit the loan-to-value ratio on our residential real estate loans to 80%. We
offer fixed and adjustable rate residential real estate loans with amortizations up to 20 years. To limit
our risk, we offer fixed rate and variable rate loans for terms greater than 20 years through a third
party, rather than originating and retaining these loans ourselves. Generally, we do not originate
traditional long term residential mortgages for our portfolio, but we do issue traditional first and
second mortgage residential real estate loans and home equity lines of credit. As of December 31,
2007, included in the residential real estate loans was $27.8 million, or 34.7% of our residential loan
portfolio, in first and second mortgages on individuals’ homes.

Home Equity Lines of Credit. As of December 31, 2007, our individual home equity lines of credit
ranged in size from less than $1,000 to $900,000, with an average balance of approximately $40,000.
Our underwriting criteria for and the risks associated with home equity loans and lines of credit are
generally the same as those for first mortgage loans. Home equity lines of credit typically have terms of
15 years or less. We generally limit the extension of credit to 90% of the available equity of each
property, although we may extend up to 100% of the available equity. Approximately $31 million, or
7.19% of First National’s real estate loans, are home equity lines of credit.

Small Business Loans. We offer small business loans that typically have terms of 25 years and are
made with floating rates. These loans utilize government enhancements such as the SBA's 7(a) program
and 504 programs and are partially guaranteed, which help to reduce their risk. These loans are
generally secured by first or second mortgages on commercial real estate. Government guarantees of
SBA loans are generally 75% of the loan. We usually sell the portion of loans that are secured by the
SBA guarantee in the secondary market to provide additional liquidity and to provide a source of
noninterest income. We typically retain servicing for these loans as at an agreed upon servicing rate for
the life of the loan. In order to secure secondary sources of payment and liquidity, we typically require
the personal guarantees of the principal owners.

Wholesale Mortgage Loans Held for Sale. Our wholesale mortgage division began operations in
January 2007. This division offers a wide variety of conforming and non-conforming loans with fixed
and variable rate options, although the trend is 1o move towards all loans being conforming or
traditional mortgage loans. Conforming loans are those that are fully documented and are in amounts
less than $417,000. The division offers FHA/VA and construction/permanent products to its customers.
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The division’s custorers are located primarily in South Carolina. We anticipate the wholesale mortgage
division will continu: to serve its existing base of other commun ty banks and mortgage brokers.

Real Estate Conitruction and Land Development Loans. We offer adjustable and fixed rate
residential and cominercial construction ioans to builders and developers. As of December 31, 2007,
our commercial con itruction and development real estate loans ranged in size from approximately
$2,000 to $4.7 millic n, with an average loan size of approximate'y $569,000. As of December 31, 2007,
our individual resids ntial construction and development real estite loans ranged in size from less than
$1,000 to $467,000, with an average loan size of approximately $143,000. The duration of our
construction and de relopment loans generally is limited to 12 months, although payments may be
structured on a lony er amortization basis. We attempt 1o reduce the risk associated with construction
and development lo ins by obtaining personal guarantees and by keeping the loan-to-value ratio of the
completed project at or below 80%. Construction and developrent loans generally carry a higher
degree of risk than long-term financing of existing properties because repayment depends on the
ultimate completior of the project or home and usually on the iale of the property or permanent
financing. Specific 1isks include:

* cost overrun ;

* mismanaged construction;

* inferior or i1proper construction techniques;

* gconomic changes or downturns during construction;

* rising intere: t rates that may prevent sale of the properts; and
* failure to se | completed projects in a timely manner.

As of Decemb:r 31, 2007, total construction and developm ent loans amounted to $180.3 million,
or 36.5% of our to al loan portfolio. Included in the $180.3 milion were $34.7 million in construction
loans, or 19.3% of our construction and development loan porifolio that were made to commercial
construction devels pers.

Commercial B.isiness Loans. Most of our commercial business loans are secured by first or second
mortgages on real :state, as described above. We also make some commercial business loans that are
not secured by rea estate. We make loans for commercial purposes in various lines of business,
including retail, se vice industry, and professional services. As of December 31, 2007, our individual
commercial busine ;s loans ranged in size from less than $1,00( to $1.4 million, with an average loan
size of approximat :ly $84,000. As with other categories of loans, the principal economic risk associated
with commercial le-ans is the creditworthiness of the borrower. The risks associated with commercial
loans vary with m: ny economic factors, including the economy in our market areas. Commercial loans
are generally cons dered to have greater risk than first or secoad mortgages on real estate because
commercial loans nay be unsecured, or if they are secured, th: value of the collateral may be difficult
to assess and mor: likely to decrease than real estate. As of L ecember 31, 2007, commercial business
loans amounted tc $34.4 million, or 7.0%, of our total loan pc rtfolio.

Consumer Lo.tns.  'We make a variety of loans to individuals for personal and household purposes,
including secured and unsecured installment loans and revolviig lines of credit. Consumer loans are
underwritten base 1 on the borrower’s income, current debt le'el, past credit history, and the availability
and value of colla eral. Consumer rates are both fixed and vaiiable, with negotiable terms. Qur
installment loans ypically amortize over periods up to 60 mor.ths. However, we will offer consumer
loans with a singli: maturity date when a specific source of repayment is available. We typically require
monthly payment: of interest and a portion of the principal 01 our revolving loan products. Consumer
loans are generally considered to have greater risk than first or second mortgages on real estate
because consume; loans may be unsecured, or if they are secured, the vatue of the collateral may be
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difficult to assess and more likely to decrease in value than real estate. As of December 31, 2007,
consumer loans amounted to $6.5 million, or 1.3% of our loan portfolio.

Loan Approval. Certain credit risks are inherent in making loans. These include prepayment risks,
risks resulting from uncertainties in the future value of collateral, risks resulting from changes in
economic and industry conditions, and risks inherent in dealing with individual borrowers. We attempt
to mitigate repayment risks by adhering to internal credit policies and procedures. These policies and
procedures include officer and customer lending limits, a muiti-layered approval process for larger
loans, documentation examination, and follow-up procedures for any exceptions to credit policies. Our
loan approval policies provide for various levels of officer lending authority. When the amount of
aggregate loans to a single borrower exceeds an individual officer’s lending authority, the loan request
will be reviewed by the internal management loan committee comprised of voting members
Mr. Calvert, Mr. Zabriskie, Mr. Murdoch, and Ms. Payne. Individual loan authorities for secured loans
range from $5,000 for our retail lenders, to $500,000 for our senior lenders, and up to $750,000 for our
chief executive officer. Any three concurring members of our management loan committee can approve
loans up to $3.0 million. If the loans exceed $3.0 million, then a board of directors’ loan committee
comprised of Mr. Calvert and seven other directors may approve loans up $5.0 million. The Board of
Directors, with any seven concurring members, can approve loans up to our legal lending limit.

Credit Administration and Loan Review. 'We emphasize a strong credit culture based on traditional
credit measures and our knowledge of our markets through experienced relationship managers. We
maintain a continuous internal loan review system and engage an independent consultant on an annual
basis to review loan files on a test basis to confirm our loan grading. Each loan officer is responsible
for every loan he or she makes, regardless of whether other mdwnduals or committees joined in the
approval. This responsibility continués until the loan is repaid or until the loan is officially assigned to
another officer. The compensation of our lending officers is dependent in part on the asset quality of
their loan portfolios. We have adopted an incentive plan under which our loan officers are eligible to
receive cash bonuses for achieving monthly and annual goals relating to, among other things, loan
production and maintenance of minimum quality levels for the officer’s loan portfolio.

Our dedication to strong credit quality is reinforced by our internal credit review process and
performance benchmarks in the areas of nonperforming assets, charge-offs, past dues, and loan
documentation. As we continue to grow, we intend to add additional employees to assist with credit
administration and loan review. In addition to our own in-house credit review function, we currently
engage an outside firm to evaluate our loan portfolio on a quarterly basis for credit quality, a second
outside firm for compliance issues on an annual basis, and a third outside firm to prowde advice and
recommendations and respond to specific i mqumes at any time.

Lending Limits. Our lending activities are subject to a variety of lending limits imposed by federal
law. In general, the Bank is subject to a legal limit on loans to a single borrower equal to 15% of the
bank’s capital and unimpaired surplus. This limit will increase or decrease as the bank’s capital
increases or decreases. Based upon the capitalization of the bank as of December 31, 2007, our legal
lending limit was approximately $7.8 million. We sell participations in our larger loans to other financial
institutions, which allows us to manage the risk involved in these loans and to meet the lending needs
of our customers requiring extensions of credit in excess of this limit.

Deposit Services

One of our principal sources of funds is core deposits (deposits other than time deposits of
$100,000 or more). As of December 31, 2007, approximately 81.2% of our total deposits were obtained
from within our branch network. We also rely on time deposits of $100,000 or more to support our
growth, which are generally obtained through brokers with who we maintain ongoing relationships. We
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do not obtain time ceposits of $100,000 or more through the intzrnet. As of December 31, 2007, 59.9%
of our total time dejwosits were deposits of $100,000 or more.

We offer a full ange of deposit services, including checking accounts, commercial accounts, savings
accounts, and other :ime deposits of various types, ranging from daily money market accounts to
long-term certificate ; of deposit. We regularly review our deposi: rates to ensure that we remain
competitive in our n:arkets.

Trust and Investmerit Management Services

Since August 1!, 2002, we have offered trust and investment management services through an
alliance with Coloni il Trust Company, a South Carolina private trust company established in 1913 with
offices in Greenville and Spartanburg. This arrangement allows jur consumer and commercial
customers access to a wide variety of services provided by Color ial Trust Company, including trust
services, professionz| portfolio management, estate administration, individual financial and retirement
planning, and corporate retirement planning services. We receiv: a residuval fee from Colonial Trust
Company based on 1 percentage of the aggregate assets under 1nanagement generated by referrals from
the bank.

Wholesale Mortgag: Services

We opened a v holesale mortgage division on January 29, 2)07, as an enhancement to our current
banking operations. The division operates from leased office sp:ice located at 200 North Main Street in
downtown Greenvil e, South Carolina, and employs a staff of ten individuals. It offers a wide variety of
conforming and nor:-conforming loans with fixed and variable rate options, although the trend is to
move towards all loans being conforming or traditional mortgage loans. Conforming loans arc those
that are fully docuriented and are in amounts less than $417,000. The division does not engage in the
practice of subptim: lending which refers to making loans to borrowers who do not qualify for market
interest rates due to various risk factors, such as income level, tize of the down payment made, credit
history and employ nent status. The division also offers FHA/V.A and construction/permanen! products
to its customers. L« ans originated through the division are sold to secondary market investors pursuant
to commitments seured at the time the loan rate is locked in {or the customer. The division's
customers are locatzd primarily in South Carolina. First National anticipates the wholesale mortgage
division will contime to serve its existing base of other commu:iity banks and mortgage brokers.

Other Banking Ser rices ,

We offer othe: bank services including safe deposit boxes, traveler’s checks, direct deposit, United
States savings boncs, and banking by mail. We earn fees for must of these services, including debit and
credit card transaciions, sales of checks, and wire transfers. We provide ATM transactions to our
customers at no chirge; however, we receive ATM transaction fees from transactions performed at our
branches by persor s who are not customers of the bank. We are associated with the Cirrus and Pulse
ATM networks, wkich are available to our customers throughoat the country. Since we outsource our
ATM services, we e charged related transaction fees from our ATM service provider. We have
contracted with an outside vendor to provide our core data processing services and our ATM
processing. Given our current size, we believe that outsourcing these services reduces our overhead by
matching the expense in each period to the transaction volume that occurs during the period, as a
significant portion of the fee charged is directly related to the aumber of loan and deposit accounts and
the related numbe - of transactions we have during the period.

First National Online, our internet website www firstnational-online.com, provides our customers
access to interpet banking services, including electronic bill parment services and cash management
services including .iccount-to-account transfers. The internet binking services are provided through a
confractual arrang :ment with an outside vendor.

We offer our :ustomers insurance services, including life, .ong term care, and annuities through
vendors associated with the South Carolina Bankers Association. Additionally, we provide equipment
leasing arrangeme 1ts through an outside vendor.
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SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Both the company and the bank are subject to extensive state and federal banking laws and
regulations that impose specific requirements or restrictions on and provide for general regulatory
oversight of virtually all aspects of our operations. These laws and regulations are generally intended to
protect depositors, not shareholders. The following summary is qualified by reference to the statutory
and regulatory provisions discussed. Changes in applicable laws or regulations may have a material
effect on our business and prospects. Qur operations may be affected by legislative changes and the
policies of various regulatory authorities. We cannot predict the effect that fiscal or monetary policies,
economic control, or new federal or state legistation may have on our business and earnings in the
future.

The following discussion is not intended to be a complete list of all the activities regulated by the
banking laws or of the impact of such laws and regulations on our operations. It is intended only to
briefly summarize some material provisions.

First National Bancshares, Inc.

We own 100% of the outstanding capital stock of the bank, and therefore we arc considered to be
a bank holding company under the federal Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (the “Bank Holding
Company Act”). As a result, we are primarily subject to the supervision, examination and reporting
requirements of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve (the “Federal Reserve™) under the
Bank Holding Company Act and its regulations promulgated thereunder. Moreover, as a bank holding
company of a bank located in South Carolina, we also are subject to the South Carolina Banking and
Branching Efficiency Act. '

Permitted Activities, Under the Bank Holding Company Act, a bank holding company is generally
permitted to engage in, or acquire direct or indirect control of more than 5% of the voting shares of
any company engaged in, the following activities:

* banking or managing ar controlling banks; .

+ furnishing services to or performing services for our subsidiaries; and

* any activity that the Federal Reserve determines to be so closely related to banking as to be a
proper incident to the business of banking.

Activities that the Federal Reserve has found to be so closely related to banking as to be a proper
incident to the business of banking include:

+ factoring accounts receivable;

* making, acquiring, brokering or servicing loans and usual related activities;

* leasing personal or real property;

* operating a non-bank depository institution, such as a savings association;

* trust company functions;

* financial and investment advisory activities;

* conducting discount securities brokerage activities;

* underwriting and dealing in government obligations and money market instruments;
* providing specified management consulting and counseling activities;

* performing selected data processing services and support services;
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* acting as ager.t or broker in selling credit life insurance arnd other types of insurance in
connection wi h credit transactions; and

+ performing se ected insurance underwriting activities.

As a bank holdig company we have elected to be treated as a “financial holding company,” which
allows us to engage :n a broader array of activities. In sum, a financial holding company can ¢ngage in
activities that are financial in nature or incidental or complemeniary to financial activities, including
insurance underwriti 1g, sales and brokerage activities, providing financial and investment advisory
services, underwritin ¢ services and limited merchant banking activities. Now that we have elected for
financial holding corpany status, each insured depository institu:ion we control would have to be well
capitalized, well mar aged and have at least a satisfactory rating under the CRA (discussed below).

The Federal Re ierve has the authority to order a bank holding company or its subsidiaries to
terminate any of theie activities or to terminate its ownership or control of any subsidiary when it has
reasonable cause to jelieve that the bank holding company’s cor tinued ownership, activity or control
constitutes a serious risk to the financial safety, soundness or stability of it or any of its bank
subsidiaries.

Change in Contr)l. In addition, and subject to certain exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act
and the Change in I ank Control Act, together with regulations romulgated thereunder, require
Federal Reserve apg roval prior to any person or company acquiiing “control” of a bank holding
company. Control is conclusively presumed to exist if an individval or company acquires 25% or more
of any class of votin ; securities of a bank holding company. Control is rebuttably presumed to exist if a
person acquires 10% or more, but less than 25%, of any class ol voting securities and either the
company has registe ‘ed sccurities under Section 12 of the Secur ties Exchange Act of 1934 or no other
person owns a great :r percentage of that class of voting securitics immediately after the transaction. In
certain cases, a com jany may also be presumed to have control under the BHCA if it acquires 5% or
more of any class of voting securities of a bank holding compans. Our common stock is registered
under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act. The regulatiors provide a procedure for rebutting
control when owner, hip of any class of voting securities is below 25%.

Source of Streng'h. In accordance with Federal Reserve Board policy, we are expected to act as a
source of financial s:rength to the bank and to commit resource; to support the bank in circumstances
in which we might r ot otherwise do so. If the bank were to become “under-capitalized (see below
“First National Ban : of the South—Prompt Corrective Action”), we would be required to provide a
guarantee of the ba:ik’s plan to return to capital adequacy. Add tionally, under the Bank Holding
Company Act, the Iederal Reserve Board may require a bank holding company to terminate any
activity or relinquisl control of a non-bank subsidiary, other than a non-bank subsidiary of a bank,
upon the Federal R :serve’s determination that such activity or control constitutes a serious risk to the
financial soundness or stability of any depository institution subsidiary of a bank holding company.
Federal bank regula:ory authorities have additional discretion t¢ require a bank holding company to
divest itself of any tank or non-bank subsidiaries if the agency cletermines that divestiture may aid the
depository institutio 1’s financial condition. Further, any loans by a bank holding company to a
subsidiary bank are subordinate in right of payment to deposits and certain other indebtedness of the
subsidiary bank. In he event of a bank holding company’s bankruptcy, any commitment by the bank
holding company to a federal bank regulatory agency to maintain the capital of a subsidiary bank at a
certain level would »e assumed by the bankruptcy trustee and eatitled to priority payment,

Capital Requireinents. The Federal Reserve Board imposes certain capital requirements on the
bank holding comp: ny under the Bank Holding Company Act, .ncluding a minimum leverage ratio and
minimum ratios of ‘‘certain” capital to risk-weighted assets. These requirements are essentially the
same as those that 1pply to the bank and are described below under “First National Bank of the
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South—Capital Regulations.” Subject to our capital requirements and certain other restrictions, we are
able to borrow money to make a capital contribution to the bank, and these loans may be repaid from
dividends paid from the bank to the company. Our ability to pay dividends depends on the bank’s
ability to pay dividends to us, which is subject to regulatory restrictions as described below in “First
National Bank of the South—Dividends.” We are also able to raise capital for contribution to the bank
by issuing securities without having to receive regulatory approval, subject to compliance with federal
and state securities laws. -

South Carolina State Regulation. As a South Carolina bank holding company under the South
Carolina Banking and Branching Efficiency Act, we are subject to limitations on sale or merger and to
regulation by the South Carolina Board of Financial Institutions (the “S.C. Board). We are not
required to obtain the approval of the S.C. Board prior to acquiring the capital stock of a national
bank, but we must notify them at least 15 days prior to doing so. We must receive the Board's approval
prior to engaging in the acquisition of a South Carolina state chartered bank or another South Carolina
bank holding company.

First Natienal Bank of the South

The bank operates as a national banking association incorporated under the laws of the United
States and subject to examination by the OCC. Deposits in the bank are insured by the Federal.
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FIIC”) up to a maximum amount, which is currently $100,000 for
each non-retirement depositor and $250,000 for certain retirement-account depositors. Accordingly, the
FDIC also has enforcement authority over the bank. Together, the OCC and the FDIC regulate or
monitor virtually all areas of the bank’s operations, including:

+ security devices and procedures;

+ adequacy of capitalization and loss reserves;
* loans;

* investments;

* borrowings;

* deposits;

* mergers;

* issuances of securities;

» payment of dividends;

* interest rates payable on deposits;

* interest rates or fees chargeable on loans;

+ establishment of branches;

* corporate reorganizations; !
* maintenance of books and records; and

* adequacy of staff training to carry on safe lending and deposit gathering practices.

The OCC requires that the bank maintain specified capital ratios of capital to assets and imposes
limitations on the bank’s aggregate investment in real estate, bank premises, and furniture and fixtures.
Two categories of regulatory capital are used in calculating these ratios—Tier 1 capital and total capital.
Tier ! capita! generally includes common equity, retained earnings, a limited amount of qualifying
preferred stock, and qualifying minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries, reduced by goodwill and
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certain other intangile assets, such as core deposit intangibles, nd certain other assets. Total capital
generally consists of Tier 1 capital plus Tier 2 capital, which inclides the allowance for loan losses,
preferred stock that did not qualify as Tier 1 capital, certain types of subordinated debt and a limited
amount of other iters.

The bank is reqiired to calculate three ratios: the ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets,
the ratio of Total canital to risk-weighted assets, and the “levera e ratio,” which is the ratio of Tier 1
capital to assets on :. non-risk-adjusted basis. For the two ratios of capital to risk-weighted assets,
certain assets, such : s cash and U.S. Treasury securities, have a :‘ero risk weighting. Others, such as
commercial and consumer loans, have a 100% risk weighting. Scme assets, notably purchase-money
loans secured by first-liens on residential real property, are risk- veighted at 50%. Assets also include
amounts that repres :nt the poteatial funding of off-balance sheet obligations such as loan commitments
and letters of credit These potential assets are assigned to risk :ategories in the same manner as
funded assets. The (otal assets in each category are multiplied by the appropriate risk weighting to
determine risk-adju: ted assets for the capital calculations.

The minimum «apital ratios for both the company and the >ank are generally 8% for total capital,
4% for Tier 1 capitid and 4% for leverage. To be eligible to be Aassified as “well-capitalized,” the bank
must generally mair tain a total capital ratio of 10% or more, a Tier 1 capital ratio of 6% or more, and
a leverage ratio of ! % or more. Certain implications of the regnlatory capital classification system are
discussed in greater detail below.

Prompt Corrective Action. The Federal Deposit Insurance Zorporation Improvement Act of 1991
(“FDICIA”) establi-hed a “prompt corrective action” program in which every bank is placed in one of
five regulatory cate jories, depending primarily on its regulatory capital levels. The OCC and the other
federal banking reg alators are permitted to take increasingly severe action as a bank’s capital position
or financial condition declines below the “Adequately Capitaliz«:d” level described below. Regulators
are also empowereil to place in receivership or require the sale of a bank to another depository
institution when a hank’s leverage ratio reaches two percent. Bitter capitalized institutions are generally
subject to less one1dus regulation and supervision than banks with lesser amounts of capital. The
OCC'’s regulations set forth five capital categories, each with sg ecific regulatory consequences. The
categories are:

* Well Capita'ized—The institution exceeds the required rninimum level for each relevant capital
measure. A well capitalized institution is one (i} having a total capital ratio of 10% or greater,
(ii) having a tier 1 capital ratio of 6% or greater, (iii) h:wving a leverage capital ratio of 5% or
greater and (iv) that is not subject to any order or writt:n directive to meet and maintain a
specific capital level for any capital measure.

* Adequately Capitalized—The institution meets the required minimum level for each relevant
capital mea .ure. No capital distribution may be made tt at would result in the institution
becoming u idercapitalized. An adequately capitalized i1stitution is one (i) having a total capital
ratio of 8% or greater, (ii} having a tier 1 capital ratio of 4% or greater and (iii) having a
leverage cajital ratio of 4% or greater or a leverage capital ratio of 3% or greater if the
institution i; rated composite 1 under the CAMELS (Cpital, Assets, Management, Earnings,
Liquidity ar d Sensitivity to market risk) rating system,

* Undercapit :lized—The institution fails to meet the required minimum level for any relevant
capital measure. An undercapitalized institution is one i) having a total capital ratio of less than
8% or (ii) liaving a tier 1 capital ratio of less than 4% -r (iii) having a leverage capital ratio of
less than 4%, or if the institution is rated a compaosite .. under the CAMEL rating system, a
leverage caital ratio of less than 3%.
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* Significantly Undercapitalized—The institution is significantly below the required minimum level
for any relevant capital measure. A significantly undercapitalized institution is one (i} having a
total capital ratio of less than 6% or (ii) having a tier 1 capital ratio of less than 3% or
(iii) having a leverage capital ratio of less than 3%.

s Critically Undercapitalized—The institution fails to meet a critical capital level set by the
appropriate federal banking agency. A critically undercapitalized institution is one having a ratio
of tangible equity to total assets that is equal to or less than 2%.

If the OCC determines, after notice and an opportunity for hearing, that the bank is in an unsafe
or unsound condition, the regulator is authorized to reclassify the bank to the next lower capital
category (other than critically undercapitalized) and require the submission of a plan to correct the
unsafe or unsound condition.

If the bank is not well capitalized, it cannot accept brokered deposits without prior FDIC approval
and, if approval is granted, cannot offer an effective yield in excess of 75 basis points on interests paid
on deposits of comparable size and maturity in such institution’s normal market area for deposits
accepted from within its normal market area, or national rate paid on deposits of comparable size and
maturity for deposits accepted outside the bank’s normal market area. Moreover, if the bank becomes
less than adequately capitalized, it must adopt a capital restoration plan acceptable to the OCC that is
subject to a limited performance guarantee by the corporation. The bank also would become subject to
increased regulatory oversight, and is increasingly restricted in the scope of its permissible activities.
Each company having control over an undercapitalized institution also must provide a limited
guarantee that the institution will comply with its capital restoration plan. Except under limited
circumstances consistent with an accepted capital restoration plan, an undercapitalized institution may
not grow. An undercapitalized institution may not acquire another institution, establish additional
branch offices or engage in any new line of business unless determined by the appropriate Federal
banking agency to be consistent with an accepted capital restoration plan, or unless the FDIC
determines that the proposed action will further the purpose of prompt corrective action. The
appropriate federal banking agency may take any action authorized for a significantly undercapitalized
institution if an undercapitalized institution fails to submit an acceptable capital restoration plan or fails
in any material respect to implement a plan accepted by the agency. A critically undercapitalized
institution is subject to having a receiver or conservator appointed to manage its affairs and for loss of
its charter to conduct banking activities.

An insured depository institution may not pay a management fee to a bank holding company
controlling that institution or any other pérson having control of the institution if, after making the
payment, the institution, would be undercapitalized. In addition, an institution cannot make a capital
distribution, such as a dividend or other distribution that is in substance a distribution of capital to the
owners of the institution if following such a distribution the institution would be undercapitalized. Thus,
if payment of such a management fee or the making of such would cause the bank to become
undercapitalized, it could not pay a management fee or dividend to us!

As of December 31, 2007, the bank was deemed to be “well capntalfzed.”

Standards for Safety and Soundness. The FDIA also requires the federal banking regulatory
agencies to prescribe, by regulation or guideline, operational and managerial standards for all insured
depository institutions relating to: (i) internal controls, information systems and internal audit systems;
(i1) loan documentation; (iii) credit underwriting; (iv) interest rate risk exposure; and (v) asset growth.
The agencies also must prescribe standards for asset quality, earnings, and stock valuation, as well as
standards for compensation, fees and benefits. The federal banking agencies have adopted regulations
and Interagency Guidelines Prescribing Standards for Safety and Soundness to implement these
required standards. The guidelines set forth the safety and soundness standards that the federal
banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository institutions before capital
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becomes impaired. 1/nder the regulations, if the OCC determin¢s that the bank fails to meet any
standards prescribec by the guidelines, the agency may require the bank to submit to the agency an
acceptable plan 10 a:hieve compliance with the standard, as required by the OCC. The final regulations
establish deadlines 1or the submission and review of such safety and soundness compliance plans.

Regulatory Exaniination. The OCC also requires the bank ' o prepare annual reports on the bank’s
financial condition : nd to conduct an annual audit of its financial affairs in compliance with its
minimum standards and procedures.

All insured institutions must undergo regular on-site examiations by their appropriate banking
agency. The cost of examinations of insured depository institutinns and any affiliates may be assessed
by the appropriate ederal banking agency against each instituti»n or affiliate as it deems necessary or
appropriate. Insure 1 institutions are required to submit annual reports to the FDIC, their federal
regulatory agency, : nd state supervisor when applicable. The FI)IC has developed a method for insured
depository institutic ns to provide supplemental disclosure of the: estimated fair market value of assets
and liabilities, to thz extent feasible and practicable, in any bali.nce sheet, financial statement, report of
condition or any ot 1er report of any insured depository institut on. The federal banking regulatory
agencies to prescril e, by regulation, standards for all insured d.:pository institutions and depository
institution holding :ompanies relating, among other things, to the following:

* internal con rols;

* information systems and audit systems;
* loan docum :ntation;

¢ credit unde) writing;

* interest rat¢ risk exposure; and

*+ asset qualit . '

Deposit Insura 1ce and Assessments. Deposits at the bank ire insured by the Deposit Insurance
Fund (the “DIF”} as administered by the FDIC, up to the applicable limits established by law—
generally $100,000 per accountholder and $250,000 for certain retirement accountholders. In November
2006, the FDIC ac opted final regulations that set the deposit -nsurance assessment rates that took
effect in 2007. Th:: FDIC uses a risk-based assessment system that assigns insured depository
institutions to one of four risk categories based on three prim iry sources of information—supervisory
risk ratings for all institutions, financial ratios for most institwions, including the company, and
long-term debt iss ser ratings for large institutions that have si.ch ratings. The new premium rate
structure imposes a minimum assessment of from five to seven cents for every $100 of domestic
deposits on institt tions that are assigned to the lowest risk caegory. This category is expected to
encompass substa itially all insured institutions, including the »ank. A one time assessment credit is
available to offset up to 100% of the 2007 assessment. Any re maining credit can be used to offset up to
90% of subsequent annual assessments through 2010. For inslitutions assigned to higher risk categories,
the premium that took effect in 2007 ranges from ten cents to forty-three cents per $100 of deposits.

The FDIC aiso collects a deposit-based assessment from insured financial institutions on behalf of
The Financing Ciwrporation (FICO). The funds from these as;essments are used to service debt issued
by FICO in its cepacity as a financial vehicle for the Federal Savings & Loan Insurance Corporation.
The FICO assess nent rate is set quarterly and in 2006 rangeJ from 1.32 cents to 1.24 cents per $100 of
assessable deposis. For the first quarter of 2007, the FICO assessment rate was 1.22 cents per $100 of
assessable deposi s.

Transactions with Affiliates and Insiders. The company is a legal entity separate and distinct from
the bank and its other subsidiaries. Various legal limitations restrict the bank from lending or otherwise




supplying funds to the company or its non-bank subsidiaries. The company and the bank are subject to
Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and Federal Reserve Regulation W. Section 23A of
the Federal Reserve Act places limits on the amount of loans or extensions of credit to, or investments
in, or certain other transactions with, affiliates and on the amount of advances to third parties
collateralized by the securities or obligations of affiliates. The aggregate of all covered transactions is
limited in amount, as to any one affiliate, to 10% of the bank’s capital and surplus and, as to all
affiliates combined, to 20% of the bank’s capital and surplus. Furthermore, within the foregoing
limitations as to amount, each covered transaction must meet specified collateral requirements. The
bank is forbidden to purchase low quality assets from an affiliate.

Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act, among other things, prohibits an institution from engaging
in certain transactions with certain affiliates unless the transactions are on terms substantially the same,
or at least as favorable to such institution or its subsidiaries, as those prevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with nonaffiliated companies.

Regulation W generally excludes all non-bank and non-savings association subsidiaries of banks
from treatment as affiliates, except to the extent that the Federal Reserve Board decides to treat these
subsidiaries as affiliates. The regulation also limits the amount of loans that can be purchased by a
bank from an affiliate to not more than 100% of the bank’s capital and surplus.

The bank is also subject to certain restrictions on extensions of credit to executive officers,
directors, certain principal shareholders, and their related interests. Such extensions of credit (i) must
be made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates, and collateral, as those prevailing at
the time for comparable transactions with third parties and (ii) must not involve more than the normal
risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features.

Dividends. The company’s principal source of cash flow, including cash flow to pay dividends to
its shareholders, is dividends it receives from the bank. Statutory and regulatory limitations apply to the
bank’s payment of dividends to the company. As a general rule, the amount of a dividend may not
exceed, without prior regulatory approval, the sum of net income in the calendar year to date and the
retained net earnings of the immediately preceding two calendar years. A depository institution may
not pay any dividend if payment would cause the institution to become undercapitalized or if it already
is undercapitalized. The OCC may prevent the payment of a dividend if it determine that the payment
would be an unsafe and unsound banking practice. The OCC also has advised that a national bank
should generally pay dividends only out of current operating earnings.

Branching. National banks are required by the National Bank Act to adhere to branch office
banking laws applicable to state banks in the states in which they are located. Under current South
Carolina law, the bank may open branch offices throughout South Carolina with the prior approval of
the OCC. In addition, with prior regulatory approval, the bank is able to acquire existing banking
operations in South Carolina. Furthermore, federal legislation permits interstate branching, including
out-of-state acquisitions by bank holding companies, interstate branching by banks if allowed by state
law, and interstate merging by banks. South Carolina law, with limited exceptions, currently permits
branching across state lines only through interstate mergers.

Anti-Tying Restrictions. Under amendments to the BHCA and Federal Reserve regulations, a bank
is prohibited from engaging in certain tying or reciprocity arrangements with its customers. In general,
a bank may not extend credit, lease, sell property, or furnish any services or fix or vary the
consideration for these on the condition that (i) the customer obtain or provide some additional credit,
property, or services from or to the bank, the bank holding company or subsidiaries thereof or (ii) the
customer may not obtain some other credit, property, or services from a competitor, except to the
extent reasonable conditions are imposed to assure the soundness of the credit extended. Certain
arrangements are permissible: a bank may offer combined-balance products and may otherwise offer
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more favorable terris if a customer obtains two or more traditional bank products; and certain foreign
transactions are exc mpt from the general rule. A bank holding :ompany or any bank affiliate also is
subject to anti-tying requirements in connection with electronic benefit transfer services.

Community Reiwestment Act. 'The Community Reinvestment Act requires that the OCC evaluate
the record of the bink in meeting the credit needs of its local community, including low and moderate
income neighborhods. These factors are also considered in evaluating mergers, acquisitions, and
applications to ope 1 a branch or facility. Failure to adequately meet these criteria could impose
additional requirenients and limitations on the bank.

Finance Subsiaiaries. Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (the “GLBA”), subject to certain
conditions imposec by their respective banking regulators, national and state-chartered banks are
permitted to form ‘financial subsidiaries” that may conduct firancial or incidental activities, thereby
permitting bank suosidiaries to engage in certain activities that previously were impermissible. The
GLBA imposes se eral safeguards and restrictions on financial subsidiaries, including that the parent
bank’s equity inve: tment in the financial subsidiary be deducted from the bank’s assets and tangible
equity for purpose; of calculating the bank’s capital adequacy. In addition, the GLBA imposes new
restrictions on trar sactions between a bank and its financial subsidiaries similar to restrictions
applicable to trans actions between banks and non-bank affiliatzs.

Consumer Proection Regulations. Activities of the bank a:'e subject to a variety of statutes and
regulations design :d to protect consumers. Interest and other charges collected or contracted for by the
bank are subject t) state usury laws and federal laws concerni1g interest rates. The bank’s ivan
operations are als» subject to federal laws applicable to credit transactions, such as:

* the federal Truth-In-Lending Act, governing disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers;

* the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975, requiring financial institutions to provide
information to enable the public and public officials to determine whether a financial institution
is fulfilling its obligation to help meet the housing needs of the community it serves;

* the Equal Zredit Opportunity Act, prohibiting discrimiaation on the basis of race, creed or other
prohibited factors in extending credit;

* the Fair C edit Reporting Act of 1978, governing the vse and provision of information to credit
reporting : gencies;

. * the Fair D:bt Collection Act, governing the manner in which consumer debts may be collected
by collecti »n agencies; and

« the rules : nd regulations of the various federal agcnc1 :s charged with the responsibility of
implemen ing such federal laws.

The deposit operations of the bank also are subject to:

* the Right to Financial Privacy Act, which imposes a d 1ty to maintain confidentiality of consumer
financial 1ecords and prescribes procedures for complving with administrative subpoenas of
financial 12cords; and

+ the Electionic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation E issued by the Federal Reserve Board to
implement that Act, which governs automatic deposit:. to and withdrawals from deposit accounts
and custo mers’ rights and liabilities arising from the vse of automated teller machines and other
electronic banking services.

Enforcement Powers. The bank and its “institution-affiliated parties,” including its management,
employees agenis independent contractors and consultants s ich as attorneys and accountants and
others who part cipate in the conduct of the financial institution’s affairs, are subject to potential civil




and criminal penalties for violations of law, regulations or written orders of a government agency.
These practices can include the failure of an institution to timely file required reports or the filing of
false or misleading information or the submission of inaccurate reports. Civil penalties may be as high
as $1,000,000 a day for such violations. Criminal penalties for some financial institution crimes have
been increased to twenty years. In addition, regulators are provided with greater flexibility to
commence enforcerment actions against institutions and institution-affiliated parties. Possible
enforcement actions include the termination of deposit insurance. Furthermore, banking agencies’
power to issue cease-and-desist orders were expanded. Such orders may, among other things, require
affirmative action to correct any harm resulting from a violation or practice, including restitution,
reimbursement, indemnifications or guarantees against loss. A financial institution may also be ordered
to restrict its growth, dispose of certain assets, rescind agreements or contracts, or take other actions as
determined by the ordering agency to be appropriate.

Anti-Money Laundering. Financial institutions must maintain anti-money laundering programs that
include established internal policies, procedures, and controls; a designated compliance officer; an
ongoing employee training program; and testing of the program by an independent audit function. The
company and the bank are also prohibited from entering into specified financial transactions and
account relationships and must meet enhanced standards for due diligence and “knowing your
customer” in their dealings with foreign financial institutions and foreign customers. Financial
institutions must take reasonable steps to conduct enhanced scrutiny of account relationships to guard
against money laundering and to report any suspicious transactions, and recent laws provide law
enforcement authorities with increased access to financial information maintained by banks.
Anti-money laundering obligations have been substantially strengthened as a result of the USA Patriot
Act, enacted in 2001 and renewed in 2006. Bank regulators routinely examine institutions for
compliance with these obligations and are required to consider compliance in connection with the
regulatory review of applications. The regulatory authorities have been active in imposing “cease and
desist” orders and money penalty sanctions against institutions found to be violating these obligations.

USA PATRIOT Act/Bank Secrecy Act. Financial institutions must maintain anti-money laundering
programs that include established internal policies, procedures, and controls; a designated compliance
officer; an ongoing employee training program; and testing of the program by an independent audit
function. The USA PATRIOT Act, amended, in part, the Bank Secrecy Act and provides for the
facilitation of information sharing among governmental entities and financial institutions for the
purpose of combating terrorism and money laundering by enhancing anti-money laundering and
financial transparency laws, as well as enhanced information collection tools and enforcement
mechanics for the U.S. government, including: (i) requiring standards for verifying customer
identification at account opening; (ii) rules to promote cooperation among financial institutions,
regulators, and law enforcement entities in identifying parties that may be involved in terrorism or
money laundering; (iii) reports by nonfinancial trades and businesses filed with the Treasury
Department’s Financial Crimes Enforcement Network for transactions exceeding $10,000; and (iv) filing
suspicious activities reports if a bank believes a customer may be violating U.S. laws and regulations
and requires enhanced due diligence requirements for financial institutions that administer, maintain,
or manage private bank accounts or correspondent accounts for non-U.S. persons. Bank regulators
routinely examine institutions for compliance with these obligations and are required to consider
compliance in connection with the regulatory review of applications.

Under the USA PATRIOT Act, the FBI can send to the banking regulatory agencies lists of the
names of persons suspected of involvement in terrorist activities. The bank can be requested, to search
its records for any relationships or transactions with persons on those lists. If the bank finds any
relationships or transactions, it must file a suspicious activity report and contact the FBI.

The Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”), which is a division of the U.S. Department of the
Treasury, is responsible for helping to insure that United States entities do not engage in transactions
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with “enemies” of tl ¢ United States, as defined by various Executive Orders and Acts of Congress.
OFAC has sent, and will send, our banking regulatory agencies lists of names of persons and
organizations suspected of aiding, harboring or engaging in terrorist acts. If the bank finds a name on
any transaction, account or wire transfer that is on an OFAC lis:, it must freeze such account, file a
suspicious activity r¢ port and notify the FBI. The bank has appcinted an OFAC compliance officer to
oversee the inspectim of its accounts and the filing of any notif cations. The bank actively checks
high-risk OFAC are 1s such as new accounts, wire transfers and i:ustomer files. The bank performs these
checks utilizing soft vare, which is updated each time a modification is made to the lists provided by
OFAC and other agzncies of Specially Designated Nationals anil Blocked Persons.

Privacy and Crcdit Reporting. Financial institutions are reqired to disclose their policies for
collecting and prote cting confidential information. Customers generally may prevent financial
institutions from shiring nonpublic personal financial information with nonaffiliated third parties except
under narrow circu:nstances, such as the processing of transactins requested by the consumer.
Additionally, financial institutions generally may not disclose consumer account numbers to any
nonaffiliated third party for use in telemarketing, direct mail marketing or other marketing to
consumers. It is ou * policy not to disclose any personal information unless required by law. The OCC
and the federal bar king agencies have prescribed standards for maintaining the security and
confidentiality of consumer information. We are subject to thesz standards, as well as standards for
notifying consumer in the event of a security breach.

Like other len Jing institutions, our bank utilizes credit bureau data in its underwriting activities.
Use of such data it regulated under the Federal Credit Report ng Act on a uniform, nationwide basis,
including credit rejorting, prescreening, sharing of information between affiliates, and the use of credit
data. The Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003 (the “FACT Act”) permits states to enact
identity theft laws hat are not inconsistent with the conduct required by the provisions of the FACT
Act.

Check 21. Tte Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act jiives “substitute checks,” such as a
digital image of a :heck and copies made from that image, the same legal standing as the original
paper check. Some of the major provisions include:

» allowing ch :ck truncation without making it mandatory;

« demanding that every financial institution communicate to accountholders in writing a
description of its substitute check processing program and their rights under the law;

* legalizing s ibstitutions for and replacements of paper caecks without agreement from
CONSUMETS;

* retaining ir place the previously mandated electronic collection and return of checks between
financial institutions only when individual agreements zre in place;

* requiring t'iat when accountholders request verification, financial institutions produce the
original chi:ck (or a copy that accurately represents the original) and demonstrate that the
account de »it was accurate and valid; and

* requiring t 1¢ re-crediting of funds to an individual’s account on the next business day after a
consumer iroves that the financial institution has erredl.

Effect of Govirnmental Monetary Policies. Our earnings ace affected by domestic economic
conditions and th: monetary and fiscal policies of the United States government and its agencies. The
Federal Reserve 3ank’s monetary policies have had, and are ikely to continue to have, an important
impact on the op :rating results of commercial banks through its power to implement national monetary
policy in order, a nong other things, to curb inflation or combat a recession. The monetary policies of
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the Federal Reserve Board have major effects upon the levels of bank loans, investments and deposits
through its open market operations in United States government securities and through its regulation
of the discount rate on borrowings of member banks and the reserve requirements against member
bank deposits. It is not possible to predict the nature or impact of future changes in monetary and
fiscal policies.

Proposed Legislation and Regulatory Action. New regulations and statutes are regularly proposed
that contain wide-ranging proposals for altering the structures, regulations, and competitive
. relationships of the nation’s financial institutions. We cannot predict whether or in what form any
proposed regulation or statute will be adopted or the extent to which our business may be affected by
any new regulation or statute.

Competition

The banking business is highly competitive, and we experience competition in our markets from
many other financial institutions. Competition among financial institutions is based upon interest rates
offered on deposit accounts, interest rates charged on loans, other credit and service charges relating to
loans, the quality and scope of the services rendered, the convenience of banking facilities, and, in the
case of loans to commercial borrowers, relative lending limits. We compete with commercial banks,
credit unions, savings and loan associations, mortgage banking firms, consumer finance companies,
securities brokerage firms, insurance companies, money market funds, and other mutual funds, as well
as other super-regional, national, and international financial institutions that operate offices in the
Spartanburg, Charleston, Greenville, Columbia and Rock Hill markets and elsewhere.

As of June 30, 2007, there were 15 other financial institutions in Spartanburg County, 24 other
financial institutions in Charleston County, 28 other financial institutions in Greenville County, 18 other
financial institutions in Richland County, and 12 other financial institutions' in York County. We
compete with institutions in these markets both in attracting deposits and in making loans. In addition,
we have to attract our customer base from other existing financial institutions and from new residents.
Many of our competitors are well established, larger financial institutions with substantially greater
resources and lending limits, such as BB&T, Bank of America, and Wachovia. These institutions offer
some services, such as extensive and established branch networks, that we do not provide. Other local
or regional financial institutions, such as First Citizens Bank of South Carolina and Arthur State Bank
in Spartanburg, The Bank of South Carolina and Community FirstBank in Charleston, Greenville First
and Grand South Bank in Greenville, and the National Bank of South Carolina and Carolina National
Bank and Trust in Columbia, have considerable business relationships and ties in their respective
communities that assist them in competing for attracting customers.

We also compete with credit unions, in particular, in attracting deposits from retail customers.
Additionally, many of our non-bank competitors are not subject to the same extensive federal
regulations that govern bank holding companies and federally-insured banks.

We believe our emphasis on decision-making by our market executives and our management’s and
directors’ ties to the communities in which we operate provide us with a competitive advantage.
Employees

As of February 6, 2008, we had 136 employees, of which 15 were part-time. These employees-
provide the majority of their services to our bank.
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Item 1A. Risk Faclors.

Our business, firancial condition, and results of operations could be harmed by any of the following
risks, or other risks tiat have not been identified or which we belie e are immaterial or unlikely.
Shareholders should -arefully consider the risks described below in conjunction with the other information
in this Form 10-K ar d the information incorporated by reference ir: this Form 10-K..

Changes in interest 1 ites and our ability to successfully manage intcrest rates may reduce our profilability.

Our profitability depends in large part on the net interest income, which is the difference between
interest income froin interest-earning assets, such as loans and ' nvestment securities, and interest
expense on interest bearing liabilities, such as deposits and boriowings. We believe that we are asset
sensitive over a one -year time frame, which means that our net interest income will generally rise in
higher interest rate environments and decline in lower interest :ate environments. Our net interest
income will be adv: rsely affected if the market interest rate chi:nges such that the interest we pay on
deposits and borrovings increases faster than the interest we earn on loans and investments. Many
factors cause changes in interest rates, including governmental monetary policies and domestic and
international econc mic and political conditions. The Federal R:serve has made significant changes in
interest rates durin 3 the last few years, including three cuts in the first quarter of 2008 totaling 200
basis points, follow ng three cuts totaling 100 basis points mad« during late 2007. While we intend to
manage the effects of changes in interest rates by adjusting the terms, maturities, and pricing of our
assets and liabilitie s, our efforts may not be effective, which coald adversely affect our financial
condition and resu ts of operations. In addition, there are cost:. associated with our risk management
techniques, and th-:se costs could be material.

Because of th: differences in maturities and repricing cha :acteristics of our interest-earning assets
and interest-bearir g liabilities, changes in interest rates do not produce equivalent changes in interest
income earned on interest-earning assets and interest paid on. interest-bearing liabilities. Fluctuations in
interest rates are 1.0t predicable or controliable and therefore, there can be no.assurances of our ability
to continue to ma ntain a consistent positive spread between tie interest earned on our earning assets
and the interest p.id on our interest-bearing liabilities. Accorcingly, fluctuations in interest rates could
adversely affect o1 1 net interest income and, in turn, our prof tability. In addition, loan volumes are
affected by marke ; interest rates on loans. Rising interest rates generally are associated with a lower
volume of loan or ginations while lower interest rates are usu:lly associated with higher loan
originations. Com ersely, in rising interest rate environments, {oan repayment rates will decline and in
falling interest rai: environments, loan repayment rates will ir crease. Interest rates also affect how
much money we (an lend. When interest rates rise, the cost of borrowing increases. Accordingly,
changes in marke interest rates could materially and adversely affect our net interest income, asset
quality, and loan >rigination volume. '

Significant risks a company our recent and continued expansion.

We have recimtly experienced significant growth, and wil likely continue to grow by opening new
branches or loan production offices and through acquisitions. Such expansion could place a strain on
our resources, sy: tems, operations, and cash flow. Our ability to manage this expansion will depend on
our ability to mo itor operations and control costs, maintain effective quality controls, expand our
internal manager ient and technical and accounting systems aad otherwise successfully integrate new
branches and acc uired businesses. If we fail to do so, our butiness, financial condition, and operating
results will be ne zatively impacted. Because we may continue to grow by opening new branches or loan
production office s and acquiring banks or branches of other »anks that we believe provide a strategic
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fit with our business, we cannot assure you that we will be able to adequately or profitably manage this
growth. Risks associated with acquisition activity include the following:

* difficulties and expense associated with identifying and evaluating potential acquisitions and
merger partners;

* inaccuracies in estimates and judgments to evaluate credit, operations, management, and market
risks with respect to the target institution or assets;

* our ability to finance an acquisition;

* the diversion of management’s attention to negotiate a transaction and integrate the operations
and personnel of an acquired business;

* our lack of experience in markets into which we may enter;
+ difficulties and expense in integrating the operations and personnel of the combined businesses;
* loss of key employees and customers as a result of an acquisition that is poorly received; and

* the incurrence and possible impairment of goodwill associated with an acquisition and possible
adverse short-term effects on our results of operations.

We expect to compete with other financial institutions regarding any potential acquisitions. We
may be unable to identify attractive acquisition candidates or to complete acquisitions on terms
favorable to us, or at all. We may not be able to integrate any banks we acquire successfully. We may
not be successtul in overcoming these risks or any other problems encountered in connection with
potential acquisitions. Qur inability to overcome these risks could have a material adverse effect on our
ability to achieve our business strategy and on our financial condition and results of operations. Also,
we may issue equity securities, including common stock, and securities convertible into shares of our
common stock in connection with future acquisitions, which could cause ownership and economic
dilution to our current sharcholders. '

Our decisions regarding credit risk may materially and adversely affect our business.

Making loans and other extensions of credit is an essential element of our business. Although we
seek to mitigate risks inherent in lending by adhering to specific underwriting practices, we may incur
losses on loans that meet our underwriting criteria, and these losses may exceed our loan loss reserves.
The risk of nonpayment is affected by a number of factors, including:

* the duration of the credit;
» credit risks of a particular customer;
* changes in economic and industry conditions; and

* in the case of a collateralized loan, risks resulting from uncertainties about the future value of
the collateral.

While we generally underwrite the loans in our portfolio in accordance with our own internal
underwriting guidelines and regulatory supervisory limits, in certain circumstances we have made loans
that exceed either our internal underwriting guidelines, supervisory limits, or both. As of December 31,
2007, approximately $13.8 million, or approximately 2.91% of our loans, net of unearned income, had
loan-to-value ratios that exceeded regulatory supervisory limits. We generally consider making such
loans only after taking into account the financial strength of the borrower. The number of loans in our
portfolio with loan-to-value ratios in excess of supervisory limits, our internal guidelines, or both could
increase the risk of delinquencies or defaults in our portfolio. Any such delinquencies or defaults could
have an adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.
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We could sustain los: es from a decline in credit quality.

Qur earnings are significantly affected by our ability to properly originate, underwrite and service
loans. We could su: tain losses if borrowers, guarantors, or relat:d parties fail to perform in accordance
with the terms of tleir loans or if we fail to detect or respond 10 deterioration in asset quality in a
timely manner. Proslems with credit quality or asset quality could cause our interest income and net
interest margin to (lecrease, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results
of operations. Duriag December of 2007, we identified adverse developments with respect to certain
loans in our loan portfolio. In response to this determination, v/e increased the amount of
nonperforming ass: ts during the fourth quarter of 2007 to $14.3 million to address the risks within our
loan portfolio. In cur earnings release on January 16, 2008, we initially reported $7 million in
nonperforming loa 1s as of December 31, 2007, in addition to $2.3 million in other real estate owned.
However, due to r cent developments since December 31, 200/, we have recognized and retroactively
reflected an additional $5 miilion in nonperforming assets for 11 total of $9.3 million in nonperforming
assets. Recent devi lopments, including deterioration in the South Carolina real estate market as a
whole, may cause 1nanagement to adjust its opinion of the level of credit quality in our loan portfolio.
Such a determinat on may lead to an additional increase in ou: provisions for loan losses to increase,
which could also a lversely affect our business, financial condit on, and results of operations.

We have a concentr.ition of credit exposure in commercial real estute and a downturn in commercial real
estate could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately $322.8 niillion in loans outstanding to borrowers
in the commercial real estate industry, representing approxim: tely 65.3% of our total loans outstanding
as of that date. T e real estate consists primarily of owner-occupied properties, warehouse and other
commercial prope ‘tics. These types of loans are generally viev'ed as having more risk of default than
residential real es ate loans. They are also typically larger thau residential real estate loans and
consumer loans aiid depend on cash flows from the owner’s b isiness or the property to service the
debt. Cash flows 11ay be affected significantly by general economic conditions, and a downturn in the
local economy or in occupancy rates in the local economy where the property is located could increase
the likelihood of «lefault. Because our loan portfolio contains a number of commercial real estate loans
with relatively lar ¢ balances, the deterioration of one or a few of these loans could cause a significant
increase in our le /¢l of non-performing loans. An increase in non-performing loans could result in a
loss of earnings fiom these loans, an increase in the related provision for loan losses and an increase in
charge-offs, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and resuits of
operations.

Our commei zial real estate loans have grown 8.2%, or $17.1 million, since December 31, 2006.
The banking reg: lators are giving commercial real estate lencling greater scrutiny, and may require
banks with highe levels of commercial real estate loans to iniplement more stringent underwriting,
internal controls, risk management policies and portfolio stre;:s testing, as well as possibly higher levels
of allowances for losses and capital levels as a result of commercial real estate lending growth and
exposures.

We have a high c ncentration of construction and development lcans in our loan portfolio, which carry a
higher degree aof r sk than long-term financing of existing properi ies.

As of Decerber 31, 2007, total construction and development loans amounted to $180.3 million,
or 36.5%, of our total loan portfolio. Included in the $180.3 million was $34.7 million outstanding
under construction loan facilities, or 19.3% of our constructi»n and development loan portfolio, that
were made to ccmmercial construction developers. Construc:ion and development loans generally carry
a higher degree >f risk than long-term financing of existing properties because repayment depends on




the ultimate completion of the project or home and usually on the sale of the property or permanent
financing. Specific risks include:

* cost overrums;

* mismanaged construction;

* inferior or improper construction techniques;

* economic changes or downturns during construction;

* rising interest rates that may prevent sale of the property; and
* failure to sell completed projects or units in a timely manner.

The occurrence of any of the preceding risks could result in the deterioration of one or more of
these loans which could significantly increase First National’s percentage of non-performing assets. An
increase in non-performing loans may result in a loss of earnings from these loans, an increase in the
related provision for loan losses and an increase in charge-offs, all of which could have a material
adverse effect on First National’s financial condition and results of operations.

A downturn in the real estate market in our market areas could adversely affect our profitability and financial
condition.

A downturn in the real estate market could increase loan delinquencies, defaults and foreclosures,
and significantly impair the value of our collateral and our abitity to sell the collateral upon
foreclosure. The real estate collateral in each case provides an alternate source of repayment in the
event of default by the borrower and may deteriorate in value during the time the credit is extended. If
real estate values decling, it is also more likely that we would be required to increase our allowance for
loan losses. If during a period of reduced real estate values we are required to liquidate the property
collateralizing a loan to satisfy the debt or to increase the allowance for loan losses, it could materially
reduce our profitability and adversely affect our financial condition. Although we closely monitor and
manage risk concentrations and utilizes various portfolio management practices, our loan portfolio
contains a number of real estate loans with relatively large balances. The deterioration of one or a few
of these loans could cause a significant increase in nonperforming loans, and an increase in overall
nonperforming loans could result in a net loss of earnings, an increase in the provision for loan losses
and an increase in loan charge-offs, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations. ' -

The success of our growth strategy depends on our ability to identify and retain individuals with expertence
and relationships in the markets in which we intend to expand.

We intend to expand our banking network over the next several years, not just in our current
market areas of Spartanburg, Charleston, Greenville, Columbia, and Rock Hill but also in other
fast-growing markets throughout South Carolina, and in contiguous states. We believe that to expand
into new markets successfully, we must identify and retain experienced key management members with
local expertise and relationships in these markets. We expect that competition for qualified
management in the markets in which we expand will be intense and that there will be a limited number
of qualified persons with knowledge of and experience in the community banking industry in these
markets. Even if we identify individuals that we believe could assist us in establishing a presence in a
new market, we may be unable to recruit these individuals away from more established banks. Many
experienced banking professionals employed by our competitor are covered by agreements not to
compete or solicit their existing customers if they were to leave their current employment. The market
for highly qualified banking professionals is competitive, and we cannot assure that we will be
successful in attracting, hiring, motivating or retaining them.
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In addition, the process of identifying and recruiting indivic uals with the combination of skills and
attributes required 10 carry out our strategy is often lengthy. Our inability to identify, recruit, and
retain talented personnel to manage new branches effectively ard in a timely manner would limit our
growth and could rr aterially adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We depend on key ini'ividuals, and the unexpected loss of one or mcre of these key individuals could curtail
our growth and adve. sely affect our prospects.

Jerry L. Calver , our president and chief executive officer, ias substantial experience with our
operations and has :ontributed significantly to our growth since our founding. If we lose Mr. Calvert’s
services, he would t e difficult to replace and our business and development could be materially and
adversely affected. 1 Jur success is dependent on the personal cantacts and local experience of
Mr. Calvert and ot! er key management personnel in each of our market areas. Our success also
depends in part on pur continued ability to attract and retain e::perienced loan originators, as well as
our ability to retain current key executive management personnzl, including our chief financial officer,
Kitty B. Payne, our retail banking manager, Robert W. Murdocli, Jr., and our chief lending officer,
David H. Zabriskie We have entered into employment agreemi:nts with each of these executive
officers. The existerce of such agreements, however, does not recessarily assure that we will be able to
continue to retain 1aeir services. The unexpected loss of the seivices of several of these key personnel
could adversely afft ct our growth strategy and prospects to the extent we are unable to replace such
personael.

Our business strateg ' includes the continuation and successful man ﬁgement of significant growth, und if we
fail to grow or fail 1. manage our growth effectively as we pursue our strategy, these failures could negatively
affect our financial «ondition and results of operations.

We intend to «ontinue developing our business by pursuiny: a significant growth strategy primarily
centered around a dranching strategy. Our prospects must be considered in light of the risks, expenses
and difficulties frec uently encountered by companies in significant growth stages of development. In
order to execute o1.r growth strategy successfully, we must, among other things, continue our loan
growth, improve ot r profitability and utilize technology to enhince customer service and maximize
deposit growth. In addition, our ability to successfully grow wili depend on the continued availability of
desirable business opportunities, our ability to attract and retaia highly qualified employees and the
competitive responses from other financial institutions in our market. If we are unable to hire
additional employe=s or if we are unable to retain our current employees, our staffing levels will be
insufficient to supy ort the planned growth, and our business, financial condition, and results of
operations would t e adversely affected.

We may not b: able to expand our market presence in ou: existing markets or successfully enter
new markets or guirantee that any such expansion will not adsersely affect our results of operations.
Failure to manage our growth effectively could have a material adverse effect on our business, future
prospects, financia condition or results of operations, and cou d adversely affect our ability o
successfully impler ient our business strategy. Also, if our grow:h occurs more slowly than anticipated or
declines, our oper: ting results could be materially adversely afected.

The building of ma ket share through our de novo branching strategy could cause our expenses to increase
Jaster than our reve nues.

We intend to :ontinue to build market share through our de novo branching strategy in addition to
our acquisition str itegy. We opened a new branch in downtow1 Charleston in April 2007 and relocated
our Greenville bre nch, which originally opened in October 20(6, to a permanent location at our new
Greenville market headquarters in June 2007. We also opened a new branch in Greer, South Carolina
in August 2007. We have received OCC approval and intend t> open at least two new branches in 2008,




one in Lexington, South Carolina and one in York County, South Carolina. We may identify other
branch locations and request approval from our banking regulators to open full-service branches. There
are considerable costs involved in opening branches. New branches generally do not generate sufficient
revenues to offset their costs until they have been in operation for at least one year or more.
Accordingly, our new branches can be expected to negatively impact our earnings for some period of
time until they reach certain economies of scale. Qur expenses could be further increased if we
encounter delays in the opening of any of new branches. In addition, we may be unable to open any
additional branches and, if we do open these branches, they may not be profitable.

The lack of seasoning of our lpan portfolio makes it difficult to assess the adequacy of our loan loss reserves
accurately.

We attempt to maintain an appropriate allowance for loan lasses to provide for losses inherent in
our loan portfolio. We periodically determine the amount of the allowance based on consideration of
several factors, including:

*+ an ongoing review of the quality, mix, and size of our overall loan portfolio;
* our historical loan loss experience;

* evaluation of economic conditions,

* regular reviews of loan delinquencies and loan portfolio quality; and

* the amount and quality of collateral, including guarantees, securing the loans.

However, there is no precise method of estimating credit losses, since any estimate of loan losses is
necessarily subjective and the accuracy depends on the outcome of future events. In addition, due to
our rapid growth over the past several years and our limited operating history, a large portion of the
loans in our loan porifolio was originated recently. In general, loans do not begin to show signs of
credit deterioration or default until they have been outstanding for some period of time, a process
referred to as seasoning. As a result, a portfolio of more mature loans will usually behave more
predictably than a newer portfolio. Because our loan portfolio is relatively new, the current level of
delinquencies and defaults may not be representative of the level that will prevail when the portfolio
becomes more seasoned, which may be higher than current levels. If charge-offs in future periods
increase, we may be required to increase our provision for loan losses, which would decrease our net
income and possibly our capital.

Although we believe the allowance for loan losses is a reasonable estimate of known and inherent
losses in our loan portfolio, we cannot fully predict such losses or that our loan loss allowance will be
adequate in the future. Excessive loan losses could have a material impact on our financial
petformance. Consistent with our loan loss reserve methodology, we expect to make additions to our
loan loss reserve levels as a result of our loan growth, which may affect our short-term earnings.

|
Federal and state regulators periodically review our allowance for loan losses and may require us !
to increase our provision for loan losses or recognize further loan charge-offs, based on judgments :
different than those of our management. Any increase in the amount of our provision or loans
charged-off as required by these regulatory agencies could have a negative effect on our operating
results. ' '
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We depend on the ac curacy and completeness of information about clients and counterparties and our
Sfinancial condition « ould be adversely affected if it relies on misleailing information.

In deciding wt ether to extend credit or to enter into other transactions with clients and
counterparties, we may rely on information furnished to us by or on behalf of clients and
counterparties, including financial statements and other financiil information, which we do not
independently verily. We also may rely on representations of clients and counterparties as to the
accuracy and comg leteness of that information and, with respe:t to financial statements, on reports of
independent audit rs, For example, in deciding whether to extend credit to clients, we may assume that
a customer’s audit d financial statements conform with GAAP and present fairly, in all material
respects, the finani ial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the customer. Our financial
condition and resu ts of operations couid be negatively impacti:d to the extent we rely on financial
statements that do not comply with GAAP or are materially misleading,

Our small- to mediiim-sized business target markets may have few :r financial resources to weather a
downturn in the ect nomy.

We target the banking and financial services needs of smzll- and medium-sized businesses. These
businesses general y have fewer financial resources in terms of capital borrowing capacity than larger
entities. If general economic conditions negatively impact thes: businesses in the markets in which we
operate, our busir ess, financial condition, and results of operation may be adversely affected.

An economic down.urn, especially one affecting the market areas f Spartanburg, Charleston, Greenville, Rock
Hill, or Columbia, could reduce our customer base, our level of diposits, and demand for financial products
such as loans. '

Our success : ignificantly depends upon the general econcmic conditions in our markets. If the
communities in w 1ich we operate do not grow or if prevailing economic conditions locally or nationally
are unfavorable, «ur business may not succeed. An economic downturn would likely contribute to the
deterioration of t 1e quality of our loan portfolio and reduce our level of deposits, which in turn would
hurt our business Interest received on loans represented app:oximately 89.2% of our interest income
for the year ende 1 December 31, 2007, If an economic downiurn occurs in the economy as a whole, or
in the market areas of Spartanburg, Charleston, Greenville, F.ock Hill or Columbia, borrowers may be
less likely to repey their loans as scheduled.

Moreover, tl e value and liquidity of real estate or other collateral that may secure our loans in
our market areas could be adversely affected by an economic downturn. Real estate values in our
market areas hav: risen substantially over the last several yezrs. If the value of real estate decreases or
does not continu : to rise, our business could be adversely affected. Unlike many larger institutions, we
are not able to shread the risks of unfavorable local economic conditions across a large number of
diversified econo nies or markets. We often secure loans witt real estate collateral. As of December 31,
2007, approximately 87.8% of our loans had real estate as a jrimary or secondary component of
collateral. The 1 al estate collateral in each case provides an alternate source of repayment in the event
of default by the borrower and may deteriorate in value during the time the credit is extended. If we
are required to 1 quidate the collateral securing a loan to satsfy the debt during a period of reduced
real estate value , our business, financial condition, and resu ts of operations could be negatively
affected. An ecoomic downturn, including a decline in the 1eal estate market, could, therefore, result
in losses that mz: terially and adversely affect our business.

We may have hig.ier loan losses than we have allowed for in our allowance for lpan losses.

OQur loan losses could exceed our allowance for loan losses. Qur average loan size continues to
increase and rel ance on our historic allowance for loan loss:s may not be adequate. Approximately




72.2% of our loan portfolic is composed of construction, commercial mortgage and commercial loans.
Repayment of such loans is generally considered more subject to market risk than residential mortgage
loans. Industry experience shows that a portion of loans will become delinquent and a portion of loans
will require partial or entire charge-off. Regardless of the underwriting criteria utilized, losses may be
experienced as a result of various factors beyond our control, including among other things, changes in
market conditions affecting the value of loan collateral and problems affecting the credit of our
borrowers.

Our recent operating results may not be indicative of our future operating results.

We may not be able to sustain our historical rate of growth or even grow our business at all. As
we continue to expand, it will become increasing difficult for us to replicate our historical earnings
growth. Consequently, our historical results of operations will not necessarily be indicative of our future
operations. Various factors, such as economic conditions, regulatory and legislative considerations, and
competition, may also impede our ability to expand our market presence. If we experience a significant
decrease in our historical rate of growth, our business, financial condition, and results of operation may
be adversely affected because a high percentage of our operating costs are fixed expenses and would
not experience a proportionate decrease.

Liguidity needs could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operation.

We rely on dividends from our bank as our primary source of funds. The primary sources of funds
of our bank subsidiary are customer deposits and loan repayments. While scheduled loan repayments
are a relatively stable source of funds, they are subject to the ability of borrowers to repay the loans.
The ability of borrowers to repay loans can be adversely affected by a number of factors, including
changes in economic conditions, adverse trends or events affecting business industry groups, reductions
in real estate values or markets, business closings or lay-offs, inclement weather, natural disasters and
international instability.

Additionally, deposit levels may be affected by a number of factors, including rates paid by
competitors, general interest rate levels, regulatory capital requirements, returns available to customers
on alternative investments and general economic conditions. Accordingly, we may be required from
time to time to rely on secondary sources of liquidity to meet withdrawal demands or otherwise fund
operations. Such sources include proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances, sales of
investment securities and loans, and federal funds lines of credit from correspondent banks, as well as
out-of-market time deposits. While we believe that these sources are currently adequate, there can be
no assurance they will be sufficient to meet future liquidity demands, particularly if we continue to
grow and experience increasing loan demand. We may be required to slow or discontinue loan growth,
capital expenditures or other investments or liquidate assets should such sources not be adequate.

We are subject to extensive regulation that could limit or restrict our activities.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and are subject to examination, supervision, and
comprehensive regulation by the OCC, the FDIC, and the Federal Reserve Board. Compliance with
these regulations is costly and restricts certain activities, including payment of dividends, mergers and
acquisitions, investments, loans and interest rates charged, interest rates paid on deposits, and locations
of branches. We must also meet regulatory capital requirements. If we fail to meet these capital and
other regulatory requirements, our financial condition, liquidity, and results of operations would be
materially and adversely affected. Our failure to remain “well capitalized” and “well managed” for
regulatory purposes could affect customer confidence, our ability to grow, our cost of funds and FDIC
insurance, our ability to pay dividends on our capital stock, and our ability to make acquisitions.
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The laws and re qulations applicable to the banking industry could change at any time, and the
effects of these chanzes on our business and profitability cannot be predicted. For example, new
legislation or regulation could limit the manner in which we may conduct business, including cur ability
to obtain financing, ttract deposits, make loans and expand our business through opening new branch
offices. Many of the e regulations are intended to protect depos tors, the public, and the FDIC, not
shareholders. In adcition, the burden imposed by these regulaticns may place us at a competitive
disadvantage compa ‘ed to competitors who are less regulated. The laws, regulations, interpretations,
and enforcement po .icies that apply to us have been subject to significant change in recent years,
sometimes retroacti ely applied, and may change significantly in the future. The cost of compliance
with these laws and regulations could adversely affect our ability to operate profitably. Moreover, as a
regulated entity, we can be requested by regulators to implemer t changes to our operations. We have
addressed areas of 1egulatory concern, including interest rate rick, through the adoption of board
resolutions and imp :oved policies and procedures.

Changes in federal k ws could adversely affect our wholesale mortgage division.

Changes in fed:ral laws regarding the oversight of mortgage brokers and lenders could adversely
affect our ability to originate, finance, and sell residential mortgage loans. The enactment of federal
laws, such as licens ng requirements for mortgage brokers, appl cable to the types of mortgage loans
originated could i rease costs of operations and adversely affe:t origination volume, which would
negatively impact oar business, financial condition, and results of operation.

We face strong comp :tition for customers in our market areas, whivh could prevent us from obtaining
customers and may ‘ause us to pay higher interest rates to attract .leposits.

The banking b usiness is highly competitive and the level o’ competition facing us may increase
further. We experic nce competition in our markets from commercial banks, savings and loan
associations, mortg age banking firms, consumer finance compaies, credit unions, securities brokerage
firms, insurance companies, money market funds, and other mutual funds, as well as other super-
regional, national, and international financial institutions that ¢perate offices in our primary market
areas and elsewher e. Competitors that are not depository instiiutions are generally not subject to the
extensive regulatio 1s that apply to us.

We compete vvith these institutions both in attracting deposits and in making loans. In addition, we
have to attract our customer base from other existing financial institutions and from new residents.
Many competitors are well-established, larger financial institut ons, such as BB&T, Bank of America,
and Wachovia witl. substantially greater access to capital and «ther resources. These institutions offer
larger lending limits and some services, such as extensive and zstablished branch networks, that we do
not provide. In ne ¥ markets, we will also compete against well-established community banks that have
developed relatior ships within the community.

Our relativelh smaller size can be a competitive disadvantage due to the lack of multi-state
geographic diversification and the inability to spread our marleting costs across a broader market. We
may not be able 1> compete successfully with other financial iastitutions in our markets mav have to
pay higher interest rates, as we have done in some marketing promotions in the past to attract deposits,
resulting in reduc :d profitability. In addition to paying higher interest rates to attract deposits, we may
need to find alter 1ative funding sources to fund the growth ir our loan portfolio. In 2007, deposit
growth was not s fficient to fund our loan growth and we haie used proceeds from the sale of our
Series A Preferre i Stock, Federal Home Loan Bank advance!, out-of-market time deposits and
principal and inte rest payments on available-for-sale securitie to make up the difference. However, our
borrowing ability is limited and we may be put in the positior. of choosing between slowing the growth
of our loan portfiolio or contraction in our net interest margin if we must pay higher rates for deposits
and borrowings.
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Qur growth may require us to raise additional capital that may not be available when it is needed, or at all.

Regulatory authorities require us 1o maintain adequate levels of capital to support our operations.
In the future, it may need to raise additional capital to support continued growth. The ability to raise
additional capital, if needed, will depend in part on conditions in the capital markets at that time,
which are outside our control, and on our financial performance. Accordingly, additional capital may
not be raised, if and when needed, on terms acceptable to us, or at all. If we cannot raise additional
capital when needed, our ability to further expand our operations through internal growth and
acquisitions could be materially impaired. In addition, if we issue additional equity capital, its existing
shareholders’ interest would be diluted.

Efforts to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 will continue to invelve significant expenditures, and
non-compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 may adversely affect business.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and the related rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC
that are now applicable to us, have increased the scope, complexity, and cost of corporate governance,
reporting, and disclosure practices. We have experienced, and expect to continue to experience, greater
compliance costs, including costs of completing our audit and the costs related to maintaining and
certifying internal controls, as a result of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We expect these new rules and
regulations to continue to increase our accounting, legal, and other costs, and to make some activitics
more difficult, time consuming, and costly. In the event that we are unable to maintain or achieve
compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related rules, we may be adversely affected.

We are evaluating our internal control systems in order to allow management to report on, and
our independent registered public accounting firm to attest to, our internal control over financial
reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. If we identify significant deficiencies
or material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting that we cannot remediate in a
timely manner, or if we are unable to receive a positive attestation from our independent registered
public accounting firm with respect to our internal control over financial reporting, the trading price of
our common stock could decline, our ability to obtain any necessary equity or debt financing could
suffer, and our common stock could ultimately be delisted from The Nasdaq Global Market. In this
event, the liquidity of our common stock would be severely limited and the market price of our
common stock would likely decline significantly.

In addition, the rules adopted as a result of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act could make it more difficult
or more costly for us 1o obtain certain types of insurance, including directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance, which could make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on
our board of directors or as executive officers.

We may identify a material weakness or a significant deficiency in our internal control over financial
reporting that may adversely affect our ability to properly account for non-routine transactions.

As we have grown and expanded, we have added, and expect to continue to acquire or continue to
add, businesses and other activities that complement our core retail and commercial banking functions.
Such acquisitions or additions frequently involve complex operational and financial reporting issues that
can influence management’s internal control system. While we make every effort to thoroughly
understand any new activity or acquired entity’s business process and properly integrate it into our
company, we can give no assurance that we will not encounter operational and financial reporting
difficulties impacting our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

We have no unresolved staff comments with the SEC regarding our periodic or current reports
under the Exchange Act.
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Item 2. Properties,
Properties

The following tible provides information about our properties:

Location

Spartanburg Count ;, South
Carolina

Corporate Headqu: rters and
Main Office

215 North Pine Stri et

Spartanburg, South Carolina . . . .

2680 Reidville Rozd
Spartanburg, Soutl Carolina . ...

3090 Boiling Sprin 3s Road
Boiling Springs, Sc uth Carolina . .

Charleston Count;, South
Carolina

Market Headquar ers
140 East Bay Stre :t
Charleston, South Carolina . . . ..

651 Johnnie Dodils Blvd.
Mount Pleasant, !;outh Carolina .

260 Seven Farms Dr., Suite B
Daniel Island, So ith Carolina . . .

Ovned/Leased

Expiration

Square Footage and Description

Leased(1)

02/15/::032

Owned/Leased(2) 05/30/2020

Leased(1)

Leased(3)

Leased

02/15,2032

08/31/2016

10/0¢/2032

01/3'./2009
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Approximately 3.0 acre site which
includes a 15,000 square foot
building with office space and a
full-service branch opened in
February 2001 as well as an
additional 14,500 square feet of
finished space housing our
operations center completed in
April 2007

3,500 square foot branch office
opened in 2000

3,000 square foot branch office
opened in 2002

5,379 square foot market
headquarters and full-service
branch office in historic
downtown Charleston opened in
April 2007

1,700 square foot branch office
opened in 2005

853 square foot loan production
office opened in February 2006




Location Owned/Leased Expiration Square Footage and Description
Greenville County, South
Carolina
Market Headquarters
3401 Pelham Road
Greenville, South Carolina , .. .. Leased(3) 10/9/2032 6,000 square foot fuli-service
branch office and market
headquarters opened in June
2007
713 Wade Hampton Bivd.
Greer, South Carolina .. ...... Leased(3) 10/9/2032 3,000 square foot full-service
branch office opened in August
2007
200 North Main Street
Suite 200
Greenville, South Carolina .. ... Leased 10/31/2008 1,700 square foot office housing
our wholesale mortgage division
opened in January 2007
Richland County, South
Carolina(4)
Market Headquarters
1350 Main Street
Columbia, South Carolina . . . . .. Leased 1/31/2012 9,718 square foot full-service
branch office acquired in
Carolina National acquisition in
January 2008 -
4840 Forest Drive o
Columbia, South Carolina. .. ... Leased 1/31/2012 2,000 square foot full-service
branch office acquired in
Carolina National acquisition in
January 2008
Corner of Two Notch Road and
Sparkleberry Lane ‘
Columbia, South Carolina. . .. .. Leased 8/31/2015 -2,000 square foot full-service
branch office acquired in
Carolina National acquisition in
January 2008
6041 Garner’s Ferry Road : '
Columbia, South Carolina . . .. .. Leased 4/30/2021 3,309 square foot full-service
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branch office acquired in
Carolina National acquisition in
January 2008




Location Owned/Leased Expiralion Square Footage and Description

York County, South Carelina
724 Arden Way, Su te 230

Rock Hill, South Cirolina. .. ... Leased 03/01/2008 1,188 square foot loan production
office opened in February 2007

(1) These properti:s were part of the sale/leaseback transactio 1 we entered into in February 2007 with
First National Joldings, LLC, a limited liability company ¢wned by nine non-management
directors. See *‘First National Relationships and Related T ansactions” for a more detailed
description of his transaction.

(2) We have a gro ind lease for the land and own the building and land improvements.

(3) These propert es were part of a salefleaseback transaction we entered into in October 2007 with
First National Holdings II, LLC, a limited liability company owned by eight non-management
directors. See ‘First National Relationships and Related T:ansactions” for a more detailed
description of this transaction.

(4) We also lease a parcel of land one block from the market headquarters office on which we operate
a drive-throug 1 facility under a long-term lease. We lease office space in the St. Andrews area of
western Richlind County on a month-to-month basis whei e we operate a loan production office.

We intend to >pen a full-service branch office in Lexington County, South Carolina in 2008 on a
parcel of land whi::h we currently lease on a long-term basis. Ve also intend to open a full-service
branch in York Ccunty, South Carolina in 2008 on a parcel of land that we purchased in January of
2008 for approxim ately $1.4 miilion. As part of our strategy to minimize nonearning assets, we may
exercise future sal y/leaseback transactions for the remaining poperties we own. As part of our growth
and expansion str: tegy, we may contract to acquire additional sites in the future to further expand our
branch network a1 d support infrastructure growth. We analyze each transaction to determine whether
owning or leasing the real property is the most efficient method of ownership of these properties and
may contract to st ll and lease back future acquired sites.

Item 3. Legal P1oceedings.

There are no material legal proceedings.

Item 4, Submiss ion of Matters to a Vote of Security Holder:.

We held a st zcial meeting of shareholders on December 13, 2007 to consider and vote upon (i) a
proposal to apprc ve the Agreement and Plan of Merger date:] August 26, 2007, by and between First
National and Carlina National Corporation (the “Merger Ayreement’) pursuant to which Carolina
National would n erge with and into First National and (ii) a proposal to authorize the board of
directors to adjoi rn the special meeting to allow time for fur her solicitation of proxies in the event
there were insuff cient votes present at the special meeting, iin person or by proxy, to approve the
Agreement and 1 lan of Merger. There were 2,667,235 votes i:ast in favor of the proposal to approve
the Merger Agre :ment, 29,284 votes cast against or withheld in respect of the proposal, and 14,246
votes abstained.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Our common stock is listed on The NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “FNSC.” As of
March 31, 2008, there were 1,341 shareholders of record.

The following table shows the high and low sales prices published by NASDAQ beginning with the
fourth quarter of 2007. For the prior periods indicated, the table shows the reported high and low bid
information on the OTC Bulletin Board. The OTC Bulletin Board prices are quotations, which reflect
inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission, and may not represent actual
transactions. The prices shown reflect historical activity and have been adjusted for the 3 for 2 stock
splits distributed on January 18, 2006, and March 1, 2004, the 6% stock dividend distributed on
May 16, 2006, and the 7% stock dividend distributed on March 30, 2007.

2007 2006 2005
High Low High Low High Low
First Quarter ............. $19.39 $14.87 52032 $1594 $1646 3$14.10
Second Quarter ........... 1873 1440 1963 1432 1764 1381
Third Quarter. . ........... 1550 1295 1800 1472 17.64 13.34
Fourth Quarter , . .. .. ...... 1547 1160 1561 14.52 1822 1235

Our ability to pay cash dividends is dependent upon receiving cash in the form of dividends from
our bank. However, certain restrictions exist regarding the ability of the bank to transfer funds to the
company in the form of cash dividends. All dividends must be paid out of undivided profits then on
hand, after deducting expenses, including reserves for losses and bad debts. In addition, a national bank
is prohibited from declaring a dividend on its shares of common stock until its surplus equals its stated
capital, unless there has been transferred to surplus no less than one-tenth of the bank’s net profits of
the preceding two consecutive half-year periods (in the case of an annual dividend). The approval of
the OCC is required if the total of all dividends declared by a national bank in any calendar year
exceeds the total of its net profits for that year combined with its retained net profits for the preceding
two vears, less any required transfers to surplus. Further, we cannot pay cash dividends on our common
stock during any calendar quarter unless full dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock for the
dividend period ending during the calendar quarter have been declared and we have not failed to pay a
dividend in the full amount of the Series A Preferred Stock with respect to the period in which such
dividend payment in respect of our common stock would occur.

All of our outstanding shares of common stock are entitled to share equally in dividends from
funds legally available therefore, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors. To date, we have
not paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain earnings to support
operations and finance expansion and, therefore, we do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our
common stock in the foreseeable future.
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The following t: ble sets forth equity compensation plan infc rmation as of December 31, 2007.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities to Weighted-average equity compensation
be issued wpon exercise exercise price of plans (¢) (excluding
of outstanding options outstanding options, securities reflected in
Plan Category warrants and rights (a) :varrants and rights (b) colunn (a))
Equity compensatio 1 plans approved
by security holdeis{(1) ........... 299,965 $7.04 100,355
Equity compensatio 1 plans not
approved by secu ity holders(2) . . .. 663,509 . $3.92 -
Total ...... ... . i 963,474 $4.89 100,355
(1) Pursuant to thi: Merger Agreement approved at special meetings of the First National and

@)

Carolina Natio 1al shareholders held in December of 2007, an additional 141,346 shares of
common stock are reserved for issuance upon the exercise of options outstanding as of the
effective date «f the Merger that were converted into options to purchase shares of First National
common stock

Each of our o1ganizers received, for no additional consideiation, a warrant to purchase two shares

‘of common st ck for $3.92 per share (adjusted for 3 for 2 stock splits distributed on January 18,

2006, and Maich 1, 2004, and 6% stock dividend distribute:d May 16, 2006 and the 7% stock
dividend distri>uted on March 30, 2007) for every three skares purchased during our initial public
offering comp eted in February 2000. The warrants are represented by separate warrant
agreements. C ne-fifth of the warrants vested on each of the first five anniversaries of the
completion of the offering and they are exercisable in whcle or in part during the ten-year period
following that date. The warrants may not be assigned, trensferred, pledged or hypothecated in any
way. The shar s issued pursuant to the exercise of such wirrants are transferable, subject to
compliance w th applicable securities laws. If the OCC or the FDIC issues a capital directive or
other order r¢ quiring the bank to obtain additional capital, the warrants will be forfeited if not
immediately € xercised.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Information
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2007 2006 ' 2005 2004 2003
Summary of Operations
Net interest income . .. .....oovvvnenen.. $17503 % 14,161 $ 9511 % 6,512 § 4570
Provision for loan losses . .............. 1,396 1,192 594 679 518
Noninterest income . . ................. 4,151 2,079 1,855 1,771 1,377
Noninterest €Xpense .. ..........vona-- 14,159 8,901 6,476 4,966 4,087
Income taxes . ........cuovveivnnnnnns 2,039 2,095 1,461 823 425
Netincome ..........c.cuvuunnninnnns $ 4060 $ 4052 § 2835 § 1815 § 916
Per common share—basic .............. $ 093 $§ 112 & 090 $ 0359 § 030
Per common share—diluted . . ... ........ $ 084 $ 094 $ 073 & 049 § 026
Year End Balance Sheets )
Investment securities. .. .........vv.n.. $ 70,530 % 63,374 § 45151 § 36,165 § 36,174
Loans, net of unearned income .......... 474,685 379490 251405 188,508 130,421
Allowance for loan losses .............. 4,951 3,795 2,719 2,259 1,630
Mortgage loans held forsale . . ... ... ... 19,408 — — — —
Total assets. . ... oo e, 586,774 465,382 328,769 236,344 180,663
Noninterest-bearing deposits .. .......... 44,466 31,321 18,379 15,695 13,345
Interest-bearing deposits .. ............. 427,362 345380 253316 176,116 141,388
FHLEB advances and other borrowed funds . . 51,051 45,446 26,612 23,079 9,500
Junior subordinated debentures . ......... 13,403 13,403 6,186 6,186 3,093
Shareholders’ equity . ................. 47,556 26,990 22,029 13,911 12,228
Book value per share (dituted) .......... $ 849 § 729 § 621 $ 453 $ 399
Average Balance Sheets
Investment securities . . ... ... oo vt $ 69,785 52,423 39,683 35,352 § 27,989
Loans, net of unearned income .......... 430,683 314,610 222,026 160,914 112,804
Total interest-earning assets . .. .......... 516,757 373,253 269,745 199,653 149,804
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits . . . . . . 32,588 23,056 18,009 15,641 12,206
Interest-bearing deposits . .. .... e 394,223 285,522 208,854 159,386 124,256
FHLB advances ..................... $ 41,014 33,421 27,966 13,657 $ 8,436
Ratios and Other Data
Return on average assets .. .. ............ 0.76% 1.05% 1.01% 0.87% 0.58%
Return on average equity .............. 10.89% 16.82% '17.72% 1387% 7.68%
Net interest margin . . . ................ 3.39% 3.79% 3.53% 3.26% 3.05%
Efficiency ratio . ... .................. 65.39% 5481% 5698%  5994%  68.72%
Total risk-based capital ratio . . ... e 13.48% 11.13% 13.16% 1221% 1291%
Net chargeoffs to average loans . ... ...... 0.06% 0.04% 0.06% 0.03% 0.05%
Nonperforming assets to loans year end . . . . 3.02% 0.15% 0.16% (1.03% 0.23%
Allowance for loan losses to loans, year end . 1.04% 1.00% 1.08% 1.20% 1.25%
Closing market price per share .. ........ $ 1314 § 1495 § 1760 $ 1558 § 7.35
Price to earnings, yearend ............. 15.64 15.90 24.11 31.80 28.26

All share and per share data reflects the 3 for 2 stock splits distributed on March 1, 2004, and
January 18, 2006, the 6% stock dividend distributed on May 16, 2006, and the 7% stock dividend
distributed on March 30, 2007.

43




Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Candition and Results of Operation.

FIRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, INC.

MANAG]IIMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

The following d scussion and analysis also identifies significant factors that have affected our financial
position and operatiig results during the periods included in the accompanying financial statements. We
encourage you to rec d this discussion and analysis in conjunction with the financial statements and the
related notes and th. other statistical information also included in this report,

Overview

Our business s rategy has produced consistent growth in assets, loans and deposits, with strong
earnings performar ce. We became cumulatively profitable during the third quarter of 2003, and we

have been profitab'e in each quarter since recording our first quarterly profit in the fourth quarter of
2001.

The following lable sets forth selected measures of our financial performance for the periods
indicated (dollars i1 thousands).

As of or for the Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Total revenue(1) .. ......... ... ... .. ...... $ 21,654 $ 16,240 § 11,366
Netincotie .........c.iiniinnnnin. 4,060 4,052 2,835
Total asscts ... .o e e e 586,513 465,382 328,679
Total loans(2) . . .. ..o 474,685 379490 251,405
Total defosits . . ......... ... .. ..., R 471,828 376,701 271,695

(1) Tota revenue equals net interest income plus tolal noninterest income.

(2) Inch.des nonperforming loans, net of unearned income; does not include mortgage loans
held for sale.

Like most financial institutions, we derive the majority of our income from interest we receive on
our interest-earniig assets, such as loans and investments. Qu: primary source of funds for making
these loans and i1 vestments is our deposits, on which we pay interest. Consequently, one of the key
measures of our success is our amount of net interest income or the difference between ths income on
our interest-earni ig assets and the expense on our interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and
borrowings. Anot ier key measure is the spread between the yield we earn on these interest-earning
assets and the rat: we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities, wwhich is called our net interest spread.

There are risks inherent in all loans, so we maintain an : llowance for loan losses to absorb
probable losses 01 existing loans that may become uncollectitle. We maintain this allowance by
charging a provis on for loan losses against our operating ear iings. We have included a detailed
discussion of this process, as well as several tables describing our allowance for loan losses.

In addition (> earning interest on ocur loans and investm:nts, we earn income through other
sources, such as ‘ees and surcharges to our customers and in:ome from the sale and/or servicing of
financial assets siich as loans and investments. We describe the various components of this noninterest
income, as well ¢ s our noninterest expense, in the following «liscussion.
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Critical Accounting Policies

We have adopted various accounting policies that govern the application of accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and that are consistent with general practices within
the banking industry in the preparation of our financial statements. Our significant accounting policies
are described in footnote 1 to our audited consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2007,
as included in our annual report.

Certain accounting policies involve significant judgments and assumptions by us that have a
material impact on the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities. We consider these accounting
policies to be critical accounting policies. The judgment and assumptions we use are based on historical
experience and other factors, which we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Because of
the nature of the judgment and assumptions we make, actual results could differ from these judgments
and estimates that could have a material impact on the carrying values of our assets and liabilities and
our results of operations.

We believe the allowance for loan losses is the critical accounting policy that requires the most
significant judgments and estimates when preparing our consolidated financial statements. Some of the
more critical judgments supporting the amount of our allowance for loan losses include judgments
about the credit worthiness of borrowers, the estimated value of the underlying collateral, cash flow
assumptions, the determination of loss factors for estimating credit losses, the impact of current events,
and other factors impacting the level of probable inherent losses. Under different conditions or using
different assumptions, the actual amount of credit losses incurred by us may be different from
management’s estimates provided in our consolidated financial statements. Please see “Allowance for
Loan Losses” for a-more complete discussion of our processes and methodology for determining our
allowance for loan losses.

Results of Operations
Income Statement Review .
Summary

Our net income was $4.1 million, or $0.84 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31,
2007, as compared with $4.0 million, or $0.94 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31, 2006.
Diluted shares outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased by 12.1% over 20606,
primarily due to the dilutive effects resulting from the noncumulative convertible perpetuat preferred
stock issued in July 2007, and this reduced earnings per diluted share. Net interest income for the year
ended December 31, 2007 increased by 23.6%, or $3.3 million, as compared to the same period in
2006, primarily due to the growth in average earning assets during 2007 of $144 million, or 38.4%. The
relatively smaller increase in net interest income during 2007 resulted from a reduction in net interest
margin of 40 basis points during the year to 3.39%, primarily due to the 100 basis point reduction in
the federal funds rate during 2007, Since the majority of our earning assets earn interest at floating
rates, these interest rate changes have resulted in decreased levels of interest income. As interest rates
on deposit and other interest-bearing liabilities, most of which pay interest at fixed rates, decline,
interest expense should decrease, allowing the net interest margin to stabilize. Due to continued rate
cuts by the Federal Reserve, our net interest margin has not stabilized during the early months of 2008.

Our net income was $4.0 million, or $0.94 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31,
2006, as compared with $2.8 million, or $0.73 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31, 2005.
The 42.9% increase in net income in 2006 over 2005 was primarily driven by a $4.7 million, or 48,9%,
increase in net interest income. The increase in net interest income was due primarily to the growth of
our loan portfolio, which is largely made up of variable-rate loans. The favorable blend of variable-rate
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to fixed-rate loans i ore than offset the increase in deposits. In vur deposit portfolio, the cost of funds
was driven by increased rates, which outweighed the increase in volume for 2006.

Our return on : verage assets decreased by 29 basis points £.om 1.05% in 2006 to 0.76% in 2007
due to the flat net nicome compared to an increased average as:.et base. The diminished return on
assets reflects the in.pact of the decreased net interest margin. I.oans continued to grow consistently
and to contribute to net interest income as our most lucrative eiwrning asset, but their positive
contribution was ou weighed by the increased cost of funds, whereas deposit rates contributed
approximately $7.0 inillion in costs, while deposit growth generated substantially less expense at
$3.5 million. In con‘rast, loan growth, at $8.1 million, contributed almost the same level of expense as
loan rates, at $9.2 niillion.

Our return on werage assets increased four basis points from 1.01% in 2005 to 1.05% in 2006. We
were able to accom lish this result due to an increase in the ne: interest margin from 3.53% in 2005 to
3.79% in 2006, an icrease in average loans as a percentage of iverage earning assets from 82.3% as of
December 31, 2005 to 84.3% as of December 31, 2006, and an improvement in the efficiency ratio
from 56.98% in 2005 to 54.81% in 2006. While the increase in ‘1et interest margin is significant in 2006,
the increased loan *'olume was the dominant force behind our improved return on average assets. Loan
volume contributed approximately $6.4 million to the increase ia our net interest income of
$4.6 million, while oan rates generated $4.3 million.

Our return on average equity decreased dramatically by 593 basis points, from 16.82% in 2006 to
10.89% in 2007. Tt is decrease is driven by the large increase ir. our average equity due to the
$16.5 million in ne' proceeds received from the completion of ' he preferred stock offering in July 2007,
while our net incor e remained about the same from 2006 to 2)07. In addition, noninterest expense
increased during 2007 due to the expansion of our branch netvork and the continued development of
our infrastructure.

Our return on average equity decreased by 90 basis points from 17.72% in 2005 to 16.82% in 2006.
This decrease is ptimarily due to the 50.6% increase in averag: equity from year to year due to
receiving $6.3 million in net proceeds from the completion of nur secondary stock offering in
December 2003.

Net Interest Incomu

Our primary : ource of revenue is net interest income. Thi: level of net interest income is
determined by the balances of interest-earning assets and intei est-bearing liabilities and successful
management of thz net interest margin. In addition to the growth in both interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing li: bilities, and the timing of repricing of these assets and liabilities, net interest income
is also affected by the ratio of interest-earning assets to interest-bearing liabilities and the changes in
interest rates earnzd on our assets and interest rates paid on our liabilities.

Our net inter 2st income increased $3.3 million, or 23.6%, to $17.5 million in 2007, from
$14.2 million in 2106. Qur net interest income increased $4.7 million, or 48.9%, to $14.2 million in
2006, from $9.5 n illion in 2005. The increase in net interest i:icome was due primarily to the growth of
our loan portfolic, as reflected in an increase in our average «:arning assets of 38.4% in 2007, which
was partially offsc t by a decrease in our net interest margin o 40 basis points from 3.79% to 3.39% for
the years ended Itecember 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively. The decrease in the net interest margin is
primarily attributiible to the high cost of deposits due to the increases in the prime rate that occurred
throughout 2006. In the first six months of 2008, approximately $164 million in retail and wholesale
time deposits (rejresenting approximately 56% of all such dejosits we hold), will mature and reprice,
with the expectat on being a corresponding reduction in the cost of funds in 2008.
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Our net interest income increased $4.7 million, or 48.9%, to $14.2 million in 2006, from .
$9.5 million in 2005. The growth in net interest income resulted from an increase of $11.6 million in
interest income, partially offset by an increase of $6.9 million in interest expense from 2005 to 2006.

The increase in net interest income was due primarily to the growth of our loan portfolio, as
reflected in an increase in our average earning assets of 38.4% and an increase in our net interest
margin of 26 basis points during 2006, Our decision to grow the loan portfolio at the current pace has
resulted in a significant portion of our assets being in higher earning loans than in lower yielding
investments.

Our net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2006 also was positively influenced by
the increase in our net interest margin following the twelve increases in the prime rate of interest since
2004 for a total of 300 basis points through December 31, 2006. Since we are asset-sensitive over a
one-year time period, our net interest income on our existing earning asset base increases when the
prime rate rises.

The following table sets forth, for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, information
related to our average balances, yields on average assets, and costs of average liabilities. We derived
average balances from the daily balances throughout the periods indicated. We derived these yields by
dividing income or expense by the average balance of the’corresponding assets or liabilities. Average
loans are stated net of unearned income and include nonaccrual loans, Interest income recognized on
nonaccrual loans has been included in interest income (doilars in thousands).

Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates
For the Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Average  Income/  Yield/ Average  Income/  Yield/ Average  Income/ Yield/
Balance Expense Rate Balance  Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate

Loans, excluding held for sale .. .. $430,683 $356601 828% $314,610 $26,237 8.34% §$222,026 315461 6.96%
Mortgage loans held forsale . . . .. 10,384 668 6.43% —_ — — - - -
Investment securities . . ........ 69,785 3293 4729 52,423 2329 4.44% 39,683 1,581 3.98%
Federal funds sold and other . . . .. 5,905 346 5.86% 6,220 320 35.14% 8,037 299 3%

Total interest-earning assets . . .. $316,757 $39,968 7.73% $373,253 $28,886 7.74% $269,746 $17341 6.43%
Time deposits . . ... .......... $272,730 $13,940 5.11% 3$201,957 §$ 9,120 4.52% $144082 § 5001 3.47%
Savings & money market . ...... 76,184 3,445 4.52% 57962 2,331 4.02% 42865 1,141 2.66%
NOWaccounis . . .. ... ....... 45,285 1,487 3.28% 25,603 674 263% 21,907 343 1.57%
FHLB advances ............. 41,014 1,957 4.77% 33,421 1,570 4.70% 27,966 925 331%
Junior suborindated debentures . . . 13,403 1,025 7.65% 11,663 877 1.52% 6,186 380 6.14%
Federal funds purchased and

short-term borrowings . . .. .. .. 10,864 611 5.63% 2,612 144 551% 1,329 40 3.01%

Total interesi-bearing liabilities . . $459,480 $22,465 4.89% $333,218 $14,725 4.42% $244335 $ 7830 3.20%
Net interest spread . . ......... 2.84% 3.32% 3.23%
Net interest income/margin . . . . .. $17,503 3.39% $14,161 3.79% $ 9511 353%

Noninterest-bearing demand
deposits . .. ... ... ... ... $ 32,588 $ 23,056 $ 18,009

The net interest spread, which is the difference between the rate we earn on interest-earning assets
and the rate we pay on interest-bearing liabilities, was 2.84% for the year ended December 31, 2007,
compared to 3.32% for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 3.23% for the year ended
December 31, 2005. Our consolidated net interest margin, which is net interest income divided by
average interest-earning assets for the period, was 3.39% for the year ended December 31, 2007, as
compared to 3.79% for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 3.53% for the year ended
December 31, 2005.
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The decrease i1 our net interest spread and our net intere;t margin from 2006 to 2007 was
principally due to t1e faster decrease in yields on average inter:st-earning assets relative to the
repricing of our ave:rage interest-bearing liabilities following the. three decreases in the prime rate
during 2007. We a1 ticipate that growth in loans will continue to drive the growth in assets and the
growth in net inter :st income. Changes in interest rates paid on assets and liabilities, the rate of growth
of the asset and liz bility base, the ratio of interest-carning asse:s to interest-bearing liabilities and
management of the balance sheet’s interest rate sensitivity all factor into changes in net interest
income. Therefore improving our net interest income in the current challenging market will continue
to require delibera:e and attentive management.

Analysis of Change: in Net Interest Income

Net interest i1come can be analyzed in terms of the impa:t of changing interest rates and changing
volume. The follov/ing table sets forth the effect that the varyiag levels of interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liz bilities and the applicable rates have had or. changes in net interest income for the
periods presented (dollars in thousands).

Chang es in Net Interest Income

For the Years Ended For the Years Ended For the Years Ended
December 31, 2007 vs. 2006 Deiember 31, 2006 vs. 2005  December 31, 2005 vs, 2004
Increase (Decrease) Due to Inc rease (Decrease) Due to Increase (Liecrease) Due to

Volume Rate Total Volime  Rate Rate Volume Rate Total
Interest-Earning Ass :ts

Federal funds sold a d other ... ... $ 42)% 122 8 8 S$ (68) § 8 § 21 $ 173 & 48 $ 221
Investment securities . . .......... 664 989 1,653 507 240 748 173 (12} i61
Mortgage loans held forsale . ... .. 668 — 668 — —_— _— —_ —_ —
Loans(1)....... ............ 8,052 9,151 17,203 6444 4,329 10,776 4,256 2,279 6,535
" Total interest-carning assets . . . . . . $0.342 $10,262 $15,604 36883 $4.658 $11,545 $4.602 52,315 $6917

Interest-Bearing Lia ilities
Deposits . ...... ............ $3,452 5 6,988 $10,440 32469 $3,180 § 5649 $1462 51,625 33,087
FHLBadvances .. ............ 331 548 879 181 465 645 473 183 656
Federal funds purchised . ........ 354 169 523 39 65 104 24 7 31
Junior suborindated debentures. . . . . 132 273 405 336 162 497 63 81 144
Total interest-bea ing liabilities. . . . $4,269 7978 12,247 $_3,025 $3,872 $ 6,895 $2022 $1,896 $3,918
Net interest income . ........ $5073 § 2,284 § 7,357 $:88 § 78 §$ 4,650 $2580 § 419 $2,999

(1) Loan fees, wh ch are not material for any of the periods shown, have been included for rate calculation purposes.

Provision for Lot n Losses

At the end f each quarter or more often, if necessary, we analyze the collectability of our loans
and accordingly adjust the loan loss allowance to an appropiiate level. Qur loan loss allowance covers
estimated credit losses on individually evaluated loans that zre determined to be impaired, as weli as
estimated credit losses inherent in the remainder of the loan portfolio. We strive to follow a
comprehensive, vell-documented, and consistently applied analysis of our loan portfolio in determining
an appropriate "evel for the loan loss allowance. We consider what we believe are all significant factors
that affect the ¢ ollectability of the portfolio and support the credit losses estimated by this process. We
believe we have an effective loan review system and control; (including an effective loan zrading
system) designe 1 to identify, monitor, and address asset qu:lity problems in an accurate and timely
manner. We ev: luate any loss estimation mode! before it is employed and document inherent
assumptions an | adjustments. We promptly charge off loan: that we determine are uncollectible. It is
essential that w: maintain an effective loan review system t1at works to ensure the accuracy of our
internal gradin; system and, thus, the quality of the informution used to assess the appropriateness of
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the loan loss allowance. Our board of directors is responsible for overseeing management’s significant
judgments and estimates pertaining to the determination of an appropriate loan loss allowance by
reviewing and approving the institution’s written loan loss allowance policies, procedures and model
quarterly.

In arriving at our loan loss allowance, we consider those qualitative or environmental factors that
are likely to cause credit losses, as well as our historical loss experience. Because of our relatively short
history, we also factor in a five-year trend of peer data on historical losses. In addition, as part of our
model, we consider changes in lending policies and procedures, including changes in underwriting
standards, and collection, chargeoff, and recovery practices not considered elsewhere in estimating
credit losses, as well as changes in regional and local economic and business conditions. Further, we
factor in changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio and in the terms of loans, changes in the
experience, ability, and depth of lending management and other relevant staff, the volume of past due
and nonaccrual loans, as well as adversely graded loans, changes in the value of underlying collateral
for collateral-dependent loans, and the existence and effect of any concentrations of credit. Please see
the discussion below under “Allowance for Loan Losses” for a description of the factors we consider in
determining the amount of the provision we expense each period to maintain this allowance.

QOur provision for loan losses was $1,396,000, $1,192,000 and $594,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The percentage of allowance for loan losses was
reduced to 1.04% of gross loans outstanding as of December 31, 2007, from 1.00% as of December 31,
2006. The allowance for loan losses was also reduced from 1.08% of gross loans outstanding as of
December 31, 2005. The decrease in this ratio reflects management’s opinion of the level of credit
quality in the loan portfolio and other factors, such as net chargeoffs remaining stable from year to
year and nonperforming assets continuing to be low as a percentage of total assets. The increase in the
provision for loan losses for the year ended December 31, 2007, is primarily due to the 25.1% growth
of the loan portfolic. Management continues to review and evaluate the allowance for loan losses based
on the performance of the loan portfolio.

Noninterest Income

The following table sets forth information related to the various components of our noninterest
income (dollars in thousands).

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Mortgage banking income . . ........ ... ... ... ... $188 § — § —

Service charges and fees on deposit accounts .. ........ 1,270 1,080 961
Gain on sale of investment securities . ... ............ 117 33 —
Other ... . e e 906 966 894

Total NONINIEFESE INCOME . .. oot v h v i et e et $4,151 $2,079 $1,855

Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $4.2 million, a net increase of
almost 100% compared to noninterest income of $2.1 million during the same period in 2006. This
increase is primarily due to income earned from fees and premiums from the wholesale mortgage .
division, which was formed on January 29, 2007 and generated fee income of $1.9 million during the
year ended December 31, 2007, This fee income represented 90.0% of the total noninterest income
increase of $2.1 million. In addition, service charges and fees on deposit accounts increased by
$190,000, or 17.6%, from 2006 to 2007, resulting from the growth in the number of deposit accounts.
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This increase fo: the year ended December 31, 2006 compaed to the year ended December 31,
2005 occurred primerily due to increases in service charges and :‘ees on deposit accounts resulting from
growth in the numbir of deposit accounts. Gains recognized on the sale of the guaranteed portion of
SBA loans decreaserl 27% from 2005 to 2006; however, the 58% increase in other income to $245,000
was primarily due tc $106,000 in SBA servicing income on previsusly sold loans. Loan service charges
and fees and fees fr ym correspondent banks on the origination -)f mortgage loans increased 35.0% and
32.6%, respectively rom 2005 to 2006.

Noninterest Expense:

The following 1able sets forth information related to the various components of our noninterest
expenses (dollars in thousands). '

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Salaries a1.d employee benefits ................... $ 7876 85,128 §3,744
Occupanc’ and equipment. .. . ... 2,030 1,046 650
Publicrelitions. ... ..ot ity 734 609 378
Data proc:ssing and ATM expense . ............... 702 587 437
Telephone and supplies . ............... . iut 426 295 211
Professioral fees . . ........ ... ... it 648 284 251
(0 7 13 P 1,743 952 745

Total noninterest income . .. ... ... ..o $14,159 $8,901 $6,476

Noninterest e: pense was $14.2 million for 2007, as compaed to $8.9 million in 2006, an increase
of $5.3 million. Thz majority of the 59.1% increase reflects the cost of salaries and other variable
expenses that have grown to support our expansion efforts. The most significant item included in
noninterest expen: e is salaries and employee benefits, which totaled $7.9 million for the twelve months
ended December .1, 2007, as compared to $5.1 million for the same period in 2006, an increase of
54.99%. This incre: se reflects the cost of personnel to support >ur expansion into new markets,
particularly our G 'eenville full-service branch and the Rock Hill loan production office and on the
wholesale mortgay e division, all new cost centers since the yezr ended December 31, 2006.

Noninterest ¢ kpense was $8.9 million for 2006, as compared to $6.5 million in 2005, an increase of
37.4%. The most significant item included in noninterest expense is salaries and employee benefits,
which totaled $5.1 million and $3.7 million for the years ende 1 December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Occu pancy and equipment expenses were $2.0 mullion, $1.0 million, and $660,000 for the
years ended Dece mber 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The 94.1% increase, or $984,000, shown
for 2007 reflects « xpenses for the Rock Hill loan production office opened in February 2007, the
wholesale mortga te loan office opened in January 2007 and tae completion of the Greenville market
headquarters and the Spartanburg home office expansion, both completed during 2007. Occupancy and
equipment expen e increased 58.5%, or $386,000, from 2005 0 2006.

Public relatitns expense increased by 20.5% to $734,000 for 2007, as compared to $605,000 in
2006, primarily d 1e to increased community relations expend tures and continued expansion of print
and television m« dia advertising as a result of our increasing customer base and expansion into the
Chatleston, Colu nbia, Greenville and Rock Hill markets. Public relations expense increased by 22.7%
to $609,000 for 206, as compared to $378,000 in 2005, primirily due to the increased community
relations and adh ertising necessary to capitalize on our expar sion into new markets.

Data processing and ATM expense were $702,000, $587,000 and $487,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The majority of the increase of 19.6% in 2007 and

50




20.5% in 2006 reflects the increased costs associated with growth in customer transaction processing
due to the increasing number of loan and deposit accounts in our customer base. We have contracted
with an outside computer service company to provide our core data processing services. A significant
portion of the fee charged by the third party processor is directly related to the number of loan and
deposit accounts and the related number of transactions.

Professional fees increased by $364,000, or 128.2%, from 2006 to 2007 and $33,000, or 13.1%, from
2005 to 2006. The increase reflects costs related to our preparation for the compliance with the
requirements cutlined by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. We have hired an outside
consultant to assist us in this process. In addition, the year ended December 31, 2007 reflects increased
expenses for the services of our third party internal auditor for various department and branch audits
and for the services of our third party loan reviewer. The bank-employed internal auditor position was
vacant for most of 2007, causing our increased reliance on the third party provider, compared to the
year ended December 31, 2006. During the third quarter of 2007, we have hired a bank-employed
internal auditor, whose role should enable our decreased reliance on our third party provider in the
future. Our bank’s expansion and the continual focus on loan quality, internal controls and
performance drove these increased costs during the year ended December 31, 2007.

Included in the line item “other,” which increased $791,000, or 83.1%, between 2007 and 2006 and
$207,000, or 27.8%, between 2006 and 2005, are charges for insurance premiums, fees paid to our
board of directors and our newly formed board in the Charleston market in 2006, postage, printing and
stationery expense and various customer-related expenses. In addition, the year ended December 31,
2007 also included an additional expense for FDIC insurance premiums, which were reinstituted during
the year retroactive to January 1, 2007, of $132,000.

Although we recognize the importance of controlling noninterest expenses to improve profitability,
we remain committed to attracting and retaining a team of seasoned and well-trained officers and staff,
maintaining highly technical operations support functions, and further developing a professional
marketing program.

Provision for Income Taxes

Income tax expense can be analyzed as a percentage of net income before income taxes. The
following table sets forth information related to our income tax expense (dollars in thousands).

Years ended December 31
2007 2006 2005

Provision for income taxes ........... e, $2,03¢ $2,095 $1,461
Net income before income taxes . .................. 6,099 6,147 4,296

Effective income tax rate . ...........c.coiunernn... 33.43% 34.00% 34.00%

Our effective tax rate for 2007 was consistent with 2006. This consistency was accomplished by
increasing income from nontaxable securities by $269,000, or 76%, from the year ended December 31,
2006 to December 31, 2007. In addition, net interest income increased by $3.3 million, or 23.6%,
compared to the overall flat net income of $4.1 million. The increase in the effective income tax rate
from 2005 to 2006 occurred due to the relative increase in fully taxable income during the year.
Although the net nontaxable income increased during the year from sources such as municipal
securities investments, which increased from 2005 to 2006, and was partially offset by a decline in
earnings on bank owned life insurance contracts, fully taxable income such as interest income on loans
and government agency investments and noninterest income from fees and charges experienced much
greater percentage increases from 2005 to 2006.
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Balance Sheet Review
General

As of Decemb: r 31, 2007, we had total assets of $586.5 mi lion, or an increase of 26.0% over total
assets of $465.3 mil ion on December 31, 2006. Total assets on ;Jecember 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted
of loans, net of unearned income, of $474.7 million and $379.5 million, respectively; securities available
for sale of $70.5 m:llion and $63.4 million, respectively; other assets of $15.4 million and $11.2 million,
respectively; premi: es and equipment, net accumulated depreci; ition and amortization of $3.0 million
and $6.9 million, rc spectively; and cash and cash equivalents of $8.4 million and $8.2 million,
respectively.

Our interest-e wrning assets, consisting of loans net of unez rned income, securities available for sale
and interest-bearin 3 bank balances, grew to $568.8 million as of December 31, 2007, or an increase of
29.5% over the ba'ance of $439.1 million as of December 31, 2006. Although the loan portfolio grew in
the nine months e'1ded September 30, 2007, loan production for the nine-month period decreased'
compared to the nme-month period ended September 30, 200¢. The nine months ended September 30,
2006 reflect the in :rease in our acquisition and development (‘A&D") body of loans due to the
opening of the Co umbia loan production office in January 20/ )6. While our commercial real estate
category of loans henefitted from the addition of the A&D body of loans in 2006, the growth in this .
body of loans has been constant in 2007.

Also includec in interest-earning assets as of December 31, 2007 are mortgage loans held for sale,
an asset resulting from the addition of the wholesale mortgag: division effective January 29, 2007.
During the twelve months ended December 31, 2007, our wholesale mortgage division, combined with
our previously existing retail mortgage staff, originated a total of approximately $261 million in loans to
be sold to second iry market investors. Of these loans held for- sale, approximately $242 million had
been sold as of Cecember 31, 2007, with approximately $19.4 million remaining on the balance sheet as
mortgage loans h:1d for sale. The activity for the wholesale nortgage division during its initial
reporting period, the twelve months ended December 31, 2007, represented an investment of funds, as
the loans generat :d during the period outweighed the loans sold during the period by approximately
$19.4 million. Duz to the nature of this division, the loans held for sale typically are held for a seven-
to ten-day period. Theréfore, the liquidity needs of this activity, as evidenced in the net cash used in
operating activiti :s reflected on the cash flow for the period :nded December 31,.2007, should level off
in future periods as the ongoing activity of the wholesale mcrtgage division provides for funding of
future loans with the proceeds from the sale of loans in the xisting portfolio.

Premises an 1 equipment decreased by $3.9 million, net of purchases and depreciation expense,
during the twelv:: months ended December 31, 2007, primarily due to the sale of certain real properties
as part of two s: lefteaseback transactions that closed during the twelve-month period, net of purchases
of property and zquipment. See Note 8—Sale/Leaseback Trensactions for more details on the
transactions thal took place in February and October of 2007.

For the yea- ended December 31, 2007, our interest-beiring deposits included wholesale funding in
the form of brol:ered certificates of deposit (“CDs”) of appioximately $89 million. We generally obtain
out-of-market ti ne deposits of $100,000 or more through brokers with whom we maintain ongoing
relationships. Tlhe guidelines governing our participation in >rokered CD programs are part of our
Asset Liability 14anagement Program Policy, which is reviev ed, revised and approved annually by our
Asset Liability t Jommittee. These guidelines limit our brokered CDs to 25% of total assets dictate that’
our current int¢ rest rate risk profile determines the terms and that we only accept brokered CDs from ‘
approved corre: pondents. In addition, we do not obtain time deposits of $100,000 or more through the
Internet. These guidelines allow us to take advantage of the: attractive terms that wholesale funding can
offer while mitizating the inherent related risk.
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Our liabilities on December 31, 2007, were $539.0 million, an increase of 22.9% over liabilities as
of December 31, 2006 of $438.4 million, and consisted primarily of deposits of $471.8 million,
$41.7 million in Federal Home Loan Bank advances, $13.4 million in junior subordinated debentures,
and $9.4 million in federal funds purchased.

Shareholders’ equity on December 31, 2007 was $47.6 million, as compared to shareholders’ equity
on December 31, 2006 of $27.0 million. The increase of $20.6 miltion, or 76.2%, can be attributed
primarily to the net proceeds of our preferred stock offering, which closed in July 2007, of
$16.5 million (see Note 13—Noncumulative Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock Offering for more
details), in addition to net income earned during 2007. Also contributing to the increase was the
change from an unrealized loss to an unrealized gain on investment securities available for sale, net of
tax, during 2007.

Interest-Bearing Bank Balances . . -

For both December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, short-term overnight investments in interest-
bearing bank balances comprised less than 1% of total interest-earning assets of $568.8 and
$439.1 million, respectively. Although cash and due from banks remained flat from 2006 to 2007, the
record deposit growth during 2007 we experienced helped fund a net increase in loans from 2006 to
2007 of approximately 25%.

Investments

On December 31, 2007 and 2006, our investment securities portfolio of $70.5 and $63.4 million,
respectively, represented approximately 12.4% of our interest-carning assets. As of December 31, 2007
and 2006, we were invested in U.S. Government agency securities, mortgage-backed securities, and
municipal securities with an amortized cost of $70.5 million and $64.1 million, respectively, for an
unrealized gain of $56,000 and an unrealized loss of $706,000, respectively. As a result of the growth in
our loan portfolio and the historically low fixed rates during the past several years, we have maintained
a lower than normal level of investments. '

Fair values and yields on our investments (all available for sale) as of December 31, 2007, are
shown in the following table based on contractual maturity dates. Expected maturities may differ from
contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without
call or prepayment penalties. Yields on municipal securities are presented on a tax equivalent basis
(dollars in thousands). ‘

As of December 31, 2007

Allter one but After five but ’ :
Within one year  within five years  within ten years Qver ten years Total

Amount  Yield Amount Yield: Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

U.S. Government/
government sponsored

agencies . . ... ...... $ 998 4.00% $ 6,942 4.27% 32,627 548% § @ — — $10,567 4.54%
Mortgage-backed .
securities . ......... 962 4.00% 4,579 423% 3479 465% 34021 3530% 43041 5.11%

Municipal securities . . . . —_ 1,033 270% 3,719 3.70% 12,170 4.05% 16,922 3.89%
Total ............. $1960 4.00% $12,554 4.12% $9,825 4.51% $46,191 497% $70,530 4.73%
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The amortized cost ani fair value of our investments (all available for sale) as of December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005 are shown in the following table (dollars in thous: nds).

December 31, 2007 Deceniber 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Amortized Fair Amortiz:d Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost _ Value Cost Value
U.S. Government/governmu nt sponsored :

AGENCICS . . .. .. i $10,635 $10,567 $139¢9 $13,733 $ 9,500 $ 9,169
Mortgage-backed securities . . .. ... ... 42,891 43,041 36,729 36,277 28,070 27,378
Municipal securities .. ............. 16,948 16,922 13,38 g 13,364 8,600 8,004

Total ........ ... ... ... ... . ... $70474  $70,530 $64,0SQ $63,374  $46,170 $45,151

We also maintain certzin equity investments required by law that are included in the consolidated
balance sheets as “other as .¢ts.”” The carrying amounts of these investnients as of December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005 consisted of the following:

As of December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Federal Reserve binkstock . .. .................... § 966 $ 602 § 448
Federal Home Loin Bankstock ................... 2,721 2,356 1,674

We increased our level of Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”) stock during 2007 to reflect the
contribution of capital to thes bank by the holding company from procet ds received from the issuance
of approximately $7 million in floating trust securities in March 2006. The level of Federal Home Loan
Bank (“FHLB”) stock varie s with the level of FHLB advances and incri:ased during 2007 to reflect the
net increase in FHLB advai ces during the year.

No ready market exists for these stocks and they have no quoted m arket value. However,
redemption of these stocks 1as historically been at par value. Accordingly, we believe the carrying
amounts are a reasonable e timate of fair value.

Other Assets

As of December 31, 20)7, other assets had grown to $15.4 million from $11.2 million as of
December 31, 2006, an incri:ase of 37.5%. Included in other assets are bank owned life insurance
(“BOLI™), interest receivable on loans and investment securities, investraents in other banks, as
discussed in “Investments” : bove, and other miscellaneous assets. While BOLI growth has been
marginal, interest receivable grew approximately $574,000, or 23.7%, and investments in bank stock
grew $729,000, or 24.6%, each compared to December 31, 2006. Interes: receivable and investments in
bank stock each grow in tandjem with their related assets, the loan and investment portfolios, and
FHLB advances and our ba:k’s capital, respectively.

Within other assets, the category other real estate owned grew proportionally the most, from $0 at
December 31, 2006 to $2.3 1nillion at December 31, 2007. During the twelve months ended
December 31, 2007, we fore :losed on four real properties, two of which: previously served as collateral
for SBA loans, a third with :ommercial real estate collateral, and the foarth a personal residence. In
connection with the SBA fo: eclosures, we recognized approximately $44.000 in loan losses in order to
reduce the carrying value of these properties to §481,500, or an amount that we believe approximates
their fair market value, net of costs to sell the properties. These amounts are net of the SBA guarantee
on these loans. For the rem: ining properties, the estimated fair value of the property exceeds our book
value, and therefore no writ: down was required at the loans’ transfer to other real estate owned.
Valuations of the other real :state owned properiies are performed periodically, and the carrying value
is appropriately adjusted to eflect any decreases in the fair value of theie properties. The cost of
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owning the properties was minimal for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2007. We are
actively marketing these properties for resale.

Loans

Since loans typically provide higher interest yields than do other types of interest-earning assets,
we invest a substantial percentage of our earning assets in our loan portfolio. Average loans for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $430.7 million, $314.6 million, and $222.0 million,
respectively. Total loans outstanding as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $494.1 million,
$379.5 million and $251.4 million, respectively, before the allowance for loan losses. Beginning with the
year ended December 31, 2007, total loans includes wholesale mortgages held for sale, pending their
sale on the secondary market. Included in the $494.1 million total loans at December 31, 2007 was
$19.4 million in wholesale mortgages held for sale.

]

The following table summarizes the composition of our lean portfolio for each of the five years
ended December 31, 2007, (dollars in thousands). :

0T g 2006 g 3005 g 2004 g 203 g4
Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total

Commercial and '
industrial . . . . . $ 34,435 6.97%3% 25,604 6.75%% 20,902 8.31%$ 20,255 10.74%$ 24869 19.07%

Commercial s
secured by real

estate . ...... 322,807  65.33% 261,961 69.03% 152,726 60.75% 104,339 35535% 57622 44.18%
Real estate— ' -

residential

mortgages -. . .. 111,490 2256% 86,022 22.67% 71,900 28.60% 59,322 3147% 42,830 32.84%
Installment and

other consumer

loans. . ...... 6,496 1.32% 6,458 1.70% 6,273 2.50% 4,977 264% 5,342 4.10%
Total loans . . . . $475,228 $380,045 $251,801 $188,893 $130,633
Mortgage loans
held for sale .. 19,408 3.93% —_ — — — — — — —
Unearned income (543) (0.11%) (555) (0.15%) (396) (0.16%) (386) (0.20%) (242) (0.19%)
Total loans,
net of
unecarned )
income ... $494,093 100.00%3$379,490 100.00%3$251,405 100.009%:$188,507 100.00%%$130,421 100.00%
Less allowance for
loan losses . . . . (4951 1.04% (3,795) 1.00% (2,719) 1.08% (2,258) 120% (1,630) 1.25%
Total loans,
net ....... $489,142 $375,695 $248,686 $186,249 $128,791

The principal component of our loan portfolio for all periods presented was loans secured by real
estate mortgages. As the loan portfolio grows, the current mix of loans may change over time. We do
not generally originate traditional long-term residential mortgages, but we do issue traditional second
mortgage residential real estate loans and home equity lines of credit. We obtain a security interest in
real estate whenever possible, in addition to any other available collateral. This collateral is taken to
increase the likelihood of the ultimate repayment of the loan. Generally, we limit the loan-to-value
ratio on loans we make to 80%. Due to the short time our portfolio has existed, the current mix may
not be indicative of the ongoing portfolio mix. We attempt to maintain a relatively diversified loan
portfolio to help reduce the risk inherent in concentration in certain types of collateral.
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The increase in »ur commercial loans secured by real estate from 2005 to 2007 is due to the
relatively higher pay« owns on residential real estate loans and new commercial real estate lending in
the Charleston, Gree aville and Columbia markets due to our exgansion in each of these markets.

While our reside ntial mortgages secured by real estate have increased each year, these loans have
decreased relative to the overall loan portfolio each year since 2(03. This decrease is due in part to the
amortizing nature of these loans. In addition, the proportional decrease in residential mortgages
secured by real estatc is more than offset by the proportional inc-ease in commercial real estate loans.
We have significantly increased the number of our commercial leding officers over the last three years.
We expect to continu : to focus significant origination efforts in commercial real estate and commercial
lending. The commer :ial real estate loans we originate are prima ily secured by shopping centers, office
buildings, warehouse facilities, retail outlets, hotels, motels and multi-family apartment buildings.

Commercial real estate lending entails significant additional ;isks compared to residential lending.
Commercial real esta e loans typically involve large loan balances to single borrowers or groups of
related borrowers. The payment experience of such loans is typicilly dependent upon the successful
operation of the real sstate project. These risks can be significantly affected by supply and demand
conditions in the mar :et for office and retail space and for apartiaents and, as such, may be subject, to
a greater extent, to ai.verse conditions in the economy. In dealing with these risk factors, we generally
limit ourselves to a real estate market or to berrowers with which we have experience. We generally
concentrate on origin.iting commercial real estate loans secured by properties located within our
market areas. In addi ion, many of our commercial real estate loans are secured by owner-occupied
property with persona! guarantees for the debt.

Mortgage loans Lzld for sale of $19.4 million is the result of :he addition of the wholesale
mortgage division in January 2007. During the twelve months end :d December 31, 2007, our wholesale
mortgage division, corbined with our previously existing retail mcrtgage staff, originated a total of
approximately $261 m llion in loans to be sold to secondary market investors. Of these loans held for
sale, approximately $242 million had been sold during 2007, with approximately $19.4 million remaining
on the balance sheet i s mortgage loans held for sale, The activity for the wholesale mortgage division
during its initial repor :ing period, the twelve months ended Deceriber 31, 2007, represented an
investment of funds, a; the loans generated during the period outveighed the loans sold during the
period by approximate ly $19.4 million. Due to the nature of this division, the loans held for sale
typically are held for : seven- to ten-day period. Therefore, the licuidity needs of this activity, as
evidenced in the net cish used in operating activities reflected on the cash flow for the period ended
December 31, 2007, sl ould level off in future periods, as the ongeoing activity of the wholesale
mortgage division protides for funding of future loans with the priceeds from the sale of loans in the
existing portfolio. '

Maturities and Sensitivi'y of Loans to Changes in Interest Rates

The information i1 the following tables is based on the contractual maturities of individual loans,
including loans that my be subject to renewal at their contractual maturity. Renewal of such loans is
subject to review and : redit approval, as well as modification of te :ms upon their maturity. Actual
repayments of loans miy differ from the maturities reflected below- because borrowers have the right to
prepay obligations witl or without prepayment penalties.
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The following table summarizes the loan maturity distribution by type and related interest rate
characteristics as of December 31, 2007 {dollars in thousands):

As of December 31, 2007

After one
One year but within After five
or less  five years  years Total
Commercial ... ......... ... . ... . $ 13351 % 9,026 $ 1,599 § 23,976
Real estate—construction . . . .. ........... 158,810 21,425 94 180,329
Real estate—mortgage . . ... ............. 38,777 202,315 23,476 264,568
Consumerandother . .................. 3,469 2,225 66 6,355
Total .. oo e $214,407 $234,991 $25,235 $475,228
Mortgage loans held forsale .. ........ 19,408
Unearned income .. ............... . {543)
Total loans, net of unearned income . ..... 494,093
Loans maturing after one year with:
Fixed interestrates . ................ $185,585
Floating interest rates . .. ............ $ 74,641

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents an amount that we believe will be adequate to absorb
probable losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible. Our judgment in determining the
adequacy of the allowance is based on evaluations of the collectability of loans, including consideration
of factors such as the balance of impaired loans; the quality, mix and size of our overall loan portfolio;
economic conditions that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay; the amount and quality of
collateral securing the loans; our historical loan loss experience; and a review of specific problem loans.
We adjust the amount of the allowance periodically based on changing circumstances as a component
of the provision for loan losses. We charge recognized losses against the allowance and add subsequent
recoveries back to the allowance.

We calculate the allowance for loan losses for specific types of loans (excluding mortgage loans
held for sale) and evaluate the adequacy on an overall portfolio basis utilizing our credit grading system
which we apply to each loan. We combine our estimates of the reserves needed for each component of
the portfolio, including loans analyzed on a pool basis and loans analyzed individually. The allowance is
divided into two portions: (1) an amount for specific allocations on significant individual credits and
(2) a general reserve amount.

We analyze individual loans within the portfolio and make allocations to the allowance based on
each individual loan’s specific factors and other circumstances that affect the tollectibility of the credit.
Significant individual credits classified as doubtful or substandard/special mention within our credit
grading system require both individual analysis and specific allocation.

Loans in the substandard category are characterized by deterioration in quality exhibited by any
number of well-defined weaknesses requiring corrective action such as declining or negative earnings
trends and declining or inadequate liquidity. Loans in the doubtful category exhibit the same
weaknesses found in the substandard loan; however, the weaknesses are more pronounced. These loans,
however, are not yet rated as loss because certain events may occur which could salvage the debt such
as injection of capital, alternative financing, or liquidation of assets.

We calculate our general reserve based on a percentage allocation for each of the categories of the
foltowing unclassified loan types: real estate, commercial, consumer, A&D/construction and mortgage.
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We apply general loss 1actors to each category and may adjust thesz percentages given consideration of
local economic conditicns, exposure to concentrations that may exiit in the portfolio, changes in trends
of past due loans, prob.em loans and charge-offs, and anticipated lban growth. The general estimate is
then added to the spec fic allocations made to determine the amount of the total allowance for loan
losses.

We also maintain :. general unallocated reserve in accordance ‘~ith December 2006 regulatory
interagency guidance ir our assessment of the loan loss allowance. This general unallocated reserve
considers qualitative or environmental factors that are likely to cauie estimated credit losses including,
but not limited to: char ges in delinquent loan trends, trends in net charge-offs, concentrations of credit,
trends in the nature an 1 volume of the loan portfolio, general economic trends, collateral valuations,
the experience and dep h of lending management and staff, and ler ding policies, procedures and the
quality of loan review s stems.

During December >f 2007, we identified adverse developments with respect to certain loans in our

‘ loan portfolio. In respo 1se to this determination, we increased the imount of impaired loans during the
fourth quarter, to $12,0)0,000, with related valuation allowances of $655,000, to address the risks within

i our loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses generally, and the |oans impaired under the criteria

defined in FAS 114 speucifically, reflect the negative impact of the continued deterioration in the South

| Carolina real estate ma kets and the economy in general. The review specifically included several of

' our residential real esta e development and construction borrowers.

e Management’s anal ysis of impaired loans and their underlying collateral values revealed the
continued deterioration in the level of property values as well as recluced borrower ability to make
regularly scheduled payinents. Loans in our residential land development and construction portfolios
are secured by unimpro 'ed and improved land, residential lots, and single-family and multi-family
homes. Generally, curre 1t lot sales by the developers and/or borrow:rs are taking place at a greatly
reduced pace and at recuced prices. As home sales volumes have declined, income of residential
developers, contractors .nd other real estate-dependent borrowers have also been reduced. This
difficult operating environment, along with the additional loan carry ng time, has caused some
borrowers to exhaust pa/ment sources. Within the last several montlis, several of our clients have
reached the point where payment sources have been exhausted.

At December 31, 2(07 and 2006, $12,000,000 and $477,000 in lcans were on nonaccrual status,
respectively. Due to rece nt developments since December 31, 2007, an additional $5,000,000 in
nonperforming assets ha: been recognized and is retroactively reflec:ed in the $12,000,000 total.
Consequently, the $12,000,000 in nonperforming loans as of Decemt er 31, 2007 is greater than the
$7,000,000 amount we d sclosed in our earnings release on January 6, 2008. Foregone interest income
on these nonaccrual toas s and other nonaccrual loans charged off during the year was approximately
$139,000, $24,000, and $ 11,600 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. There were no loans contractually
past due in excess of 90 days and still accruing interest at December 31, 2007 or 2006. There were
impaired loans, under th: criteria defined in FAS 114, of $8,900,000 and $776,000 with related
valuation allowances of ! 655,000 and $167,000 at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

58




The following table sets forth the breakdown of the allowance for loan losses by loan category and
the percentage of loans in each category to gross loans for each of the years in the five-year period
ended December 31, 2007 (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Commercial .. ... $ 227 51% % 454 68%% 135 11.1%$ 191 12.0%9$ 180 53.9%
Real estate— . .

construction. ... 1,551  379% 1,062 226% 386 204% 343 11.2% 150 6.9%
Real estate—

mortgage . ... .. 2,532 55.7% 1,841 68.9% 2,110 66.0% 1,111 74.2% 926 34.5%
Consumer....... 72 1.3% 58 1.7% 48 2.5% 30 2.6% 33 41%
Unallocated ... .. 569  N/A 380 N/A 40 N/A 584 N/A 341 N/A

Total allowance
for loan losses  $4,951 100.0% $3,795 100.0% $2,719 100.0% $2,259 100.0% $1,630 100.0%

We believe that the allowance can be allocated by category only on an approximate basis. The
allocation of the allowance to each category is not necessarily indicative of further losses and does not
restrict the use of the allowance to absorb losses in any other category.

The provision for loan losses has been made primarily as a result of management’s assessment of
general loan loss risk after considering historical operating results, as well as comparable peer data.
Our evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant change.
In addition, various regulatory agencies review our allowance for loan losses through their periodic
examinations, and they may require us to record additions to the allowance for loan losses based on
their judgment about information available to them at the time of their examinations. Qur losses will
undoubtedly vary from our estimates, and there is a possibility that charge-offs in future periods will
exceed the allowance for loan losses as estimated at any point in time. Please see Note 6—"“Loans” in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report for additional information.
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The following table sets forth the changes in the allowance for oan losses for each of the years in
the five-year period end :d December 31, 2007 (dotlars in thousands).

As of December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Balance, beginning of year. . ..................... $ 3,795 $2,719 $2,258 $1,631 $1,164
Provision charged to oprrations .. .. ... ... ..., 1,396 1,192 594 679 519
Loans charged off

Commercial, financial and agricultural . ........... (240)  (116) (38) &) (36)

Real estate-construction . . ... ... ... ..., .. - — — — —

Installment loans to individuals . . . ............... QL] (23) (106) (45) (17)

Total chargeoffs .............. ... ... .. . ... (2500 (139) (144) 54 (53)

Recoveries of loans previously charged off ... ........ .10 23 11 2 1

Balance, end of perioel . . ... ... ... L L $ 4951 $3,795 $2,719 $2,258 31,631
Allowance to loans,yeanend . . ................... 104% 100% 1.08% 120% 1.25%
Net chargeoffs to average loans . . ................. 006% 004% 0.06% 003% 0.05%
Nonaccrual loans. . . .. ... ... .. i, $12,000 $ 477 $ 349 §$ 49 § 257
Past due loans in excess of 90 days on accrvalstatus . ... $§ — $ — 8§ — § — § —
Other real estate owned . ....................... $2320 $8 — % — § — 3 —

_ Generally, a loan is placed on nonaccrual status when it becomes 90 days past due as to principal
or interest, or when ma) agement believes, after considering economic and business conditions and
collection efforts, that tt e borrower’s financial condition is such that collection of the loan is doubtful.
A payment of interest 01 a loan that is classified as nonaccrual is re;ognized as income when received.
We typically have had lcw levels of nonperforming loans, but the current economic conditions have
increased those levels to almost $12 mitlion increase in nonaccrual loans from December 31, 2006 to
December 31, 2007. Net charge-offs to average loans ratio for the tvielve months ended December 31,
2007 was 0.06% compar :d to 0.04% for the year ended December 31, 2006. For the year ended
December 31, 2007 total net charge-offs were $240,000 compared to $116,000 for the year ended
September 30, 2006. Cuirent year charge-offs were concentrated in iour commercial loans of which two
were secured by real estite and two consumer residential real estate loans.

Deposits

Our primary source of funds for loans and investments is our di:posits. National and local market
trends over the past sew: ral years suggest that consumers have moved an increasing percentage of
discretionary savings fun1s into investments such as annuities, stocks, and fixed income mutual funds.
Accordingly, it has becoine more difficult to attract deposits.
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The following table shows the average balance amounts and the average rates paid on deposits
held by us for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands).

As of December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Amount m Amount E Amount ﬂ
Demand deposit accounts. . ... ... .......... $ 32,588 — § 23,056 — § 18,009 —
NOWaccounts .........ccuiiiinnvinn... 45285 3.28% 25,603 263% 21907 157%
Money market and savings accounts . ......... 76,184 452% 57962 4.02% 42865 2.66%
Time deposits . ............. e 272,730 5.11% 201,957 4.52% 144,082 347%
Total deposits . . .. ... $426,787 $308,578 $226,863

" Core deposits, which exclude time deposits of $100,000 or more, provide a relatively stable funding
source for our loan portfolio and other interest-earning assets. Our core deposits were $296.3 million,
-$242.0 million, and $194.8 million as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The maturity
distribution of our time deposits of $100,000 or more as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 is as follows
(dollars in thousands):

As of

December 3%,
‘ 2007
Three months or less . .. ... ittt e e e e e $ 38,925
Over three through sixmonths . ... ... ... ... . .. ... ...... 44255
Over six through twelve months .. ...... .. ... .. ... ...vo.u.. 45,480
Overtwelvemonths . .................. e e e e 46,862
Total . .. e $175,522

The increase in time deposits of $100,000 or more for the year ended December 31, 2007, as
compared to the balance as of December 31, 2006, primarily resulted from the utilization of deposits
that were obtained from brokered CDs from outside of our primary market. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, our non-core deposits included wholesale funding in the form of brokered CDs of
approximately $89 mitlion. We generally obtain out-of-market time deposits of $100,000 or more
through brokers with whom we maintain ongoing relationships. The guidelines governing our
participation in brokered CD programs are part of our Asset Liability Management Program Policy,
which is reviewed, revised and approved annually by the Asset Liability Committee. These guidelines
limit our brokered CDs to 25% of total assets and dictate that our current interest rate risk profile
determines the terms and that we only accept brokered CDs from approved correspondents. In
addition, we do not obtain time deposits of $100,000 or more through the Internet. We believe these
guidelines allow us to take advantage of the attractive terms that wholesale funding can offer while
mitigating the inherent related risk. )

Other Interest-Bearing Liabilities

The following tables outline our various sources of borrowed funds during the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the amounts outstanding as of the end of each period, at the
maximum point for each component during the periods and the average balance for each period, and
the average interest rate that we paid for each borrowing source. The maximum balance represents the
highest indebtedness for each component of borrowed funds at any time during each of the periods
shown. See Note 10—"Lines of Credit”, Note 11—“FHLB Advances”, and Note 15—“Junior
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Subordinated Debe atures” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report
for additional discli sures related to these types of borrowings (Jollars in thousands).
Average for the
Endin;  Period-End Maximum . Peried
Balanc: Rate Balance Balance  Rate
As of or for the Ye: r Ended December 31, 2007 .
FHIB advances . . ... ..vvvrvrrnenennnne.. $41,6€0 450% $49,780 341,014 4.77%
Federal funds purciased & other short-term
bOITOWIRNES . . oot it e $ 9,3¢0 3.99% $26,269 $10,864 5.63%
Junior subordinate! debentures. .. .............. $13,4(3 712%  $13,403 $13403 7.65%
As of or for the Ye:.r Ended December 31, 2006
FHLB advances . . ... ..ot ie i e e eeeaenns $£37.4°6 4.94%  $48,543 $33,421 4.70%
Federal funds purc1ased & other short-term
BOITOWINES - . . oottt e $ 7,970 541% $14,391 §$ 612 551%
Junior subordinate/l debentures. .. .............. $13,4(3 7.44%  $13,403 $11,663 752%

As of or for the Ye.r Ended December 31, 2005
FHLB advances .. ... ... .ottt $26,6:2 3.99%  $30,436 $27966 331%
Federal funds purciased & other short-term

DOITOWINES - . oo oot e $ - — $583% $ 1,329 3.01%
Junior subordinate | debentures. .. .............. $ 6,186 733% $6,186 $ 06,186 6.14%

As of Decemt zr 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we had short-te:'m lines of credit with correspondent
banks to purchase insecured federal funds totaling $59.5 millic n, $30.0 million, and $§23.5 million,
respectively. ‘

Capital Resources

On May 16, 2106, we issued a stock dividend of 6% to sh:.reholders of record as of May 1, 2006.
Once this dividend was distributed, the common stock componznt of our shareholders’ equity increased
by approximately $2,000; additional paid in capital increased approximately $3.8 million, and our
retained earnings « ecreased by an offsetting approximate $3.8 million.

On March 30, 2007, we issued a stock dividend of 7% to thareholders of record as of March 16,
2007. As a result ¢ this dividend, the common stock compone it of our shareholders’ equity increased
by approximately $3,000; additional paid in capital increased approximately $4.3 million, and our
retained earnings «lecreased by an offsetting approximate $4.3 million.

Total shareholders’ equity amounted to $47.6 million and $27.0 million as of December 31, 2007,
and December 31, 2006, respectively. The increase of approxiniately $20.6 million between
December 31, 200t and December 31, 2007 resulted primarily from our preferred stock offering, which
closed on July 9, 2)07. In addition, net income earned during he year ended December 31, 2007
contributed appro: imately $4.1 million, partially offset by cash paid to purchase shares under our share
repurchase progra: n. Our board of directors has anthorized tw> extensions to this repurchase program,
originally authoriz.:d in December 2006, of up to 50,000 share:. outstanding. The current extznsion will
expire on May 31, 2008. During the year ended December 31, 2007, 13,781 shares of stock were
repurchased undet this program at a cost of $224,000, at a weighted average price of $16.17 per share
(shares and per share prices reflect all stock splits and dividen Is).

On July 9, 2017, we sold 720,000 shares of our preferred tock through an underwritten public
offering at $25.00 »er share, for aggregate net proceeds, after underwriter’s discount and expenses, of
approximately $16 550,000. Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc. sersed as sole underwriter and manager for
the offering.




As of December 31, 2007, the unrealized gain on securities available for sale was recorded to
reflect the change in the market value of these securities since December 31, 2006. We believe that the
unrealized loss reflected as of December 31, 2006 was attributable to changes in market interest rates,
not in credit quality, and we consider these unrealized losses, as well as any similar unrealized losses
reflected in future periods, to be temporary. We use the securities available for sale to pledge as
collateral to secure public deposits and for other purposes required or permitted by law, including as
collateral for FHLB advances outstanding. Due to availability of numerous liquidity sources, we believe
that we have the capability to hold these securities to maturity and do not anticipate the need to
liquidate the securities and realize the related loss. See the “Liguidity” section for a more detailed
discussion of our available liquidity sources. We currently expect that we will have sufficient cash flow
to fund ongoing operations.

The Federal Reserve and bank regulatory agencies require bank holding companies and financial
institutions to maintain capital at adequate levels based on a percentage of assets and off-balance sheet
exposures, adjusted for risk weights ranging from 0% to 100%. Under the capital adequacy guidelines,
capital is classified into two tiers. These guidelines require an institution to maintain a certain level of
Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital to risk-weighted assets. Tier 1 capital consists of common shareholders’ equity,
excluding the unrealized gain or loss on securities available for sale, minus certain intangible assets plus
trust preferred securities up to 25% of Tier 1 capital with the excess being treated as Tier 2 capital. In
determining the amount of risk-weighted assets, all assets, including certain off-balance sheet assets, are
multiplied by a risk-weight factor of 0% to 100% based on the risks believed inherent in the type of
asset. Tier 2 capital consists of Tier 1 capital plus the general reserve for loan losses subject to certain
limitations. The bank is also required to maintain capital at a minimum level based on total average
assets, which is known as the Tier 1 leverage ratio.

We utilize trust preferred securities to meet our capital requirements up to regulatory limits. As of
December 31, 2007, we had formed three statutory trust subsidiaries for the purpose of raising capital
via this avenue. On December 19, 2003, FNSC Capital Trust I, a subsidiary of our holding company, *
was formed to issue $3 million in floating rate trust preferred securities. On April 30, 2004, FNSC

Statutory Trust II was formed to issue an additional $3 million in floating rate trust preferred securities..

On March 30, 2006, FNSC Statutory Trust 111 was formed to issue an additional $7 million in floating
rate trust preferred securities, Under the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board, or
“FASB,” Interpretation No. 46, we deconsolidated these entities from our consolidated financial
statements as of December 31, 2004. The trust preferred securities qualify as Tier 1 capital up to 25%
or less of Tier 1 capital with the excess includable as Tier 2 capital. As of December 31, 2007,
approximately $10.3 million of the trust preferred securities qualified as Tier 1 capital, with
approximately $2.7 million included as Tier 2 capital.

We are both subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Under these capital guidelines, we must maintain a minimum total risk-based capital of 8%,
with at least 4% being Tier 1 capital. In addition, we must maintain a minimum Tier 1 leverage ratio of
at least 4%. To be considered “well-capitalized,” we must maintain total risk-based capital of at least
10%, Tier 1 capital of at least 6%, and a leverage ratio of at least 5%. On November 30, 2005, we
loaned our Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) $600,000 which was used to purchase 42,532
shares of our comman stock. At December 31, 2007, the ESOP owned 44,912 shares of our stock, of
which 36,900 shares were pledged to secure the loan. The remainder of the shares was allocated to
individual accounts of participants. In accordance with the requirements of the SOP 93-6, we presented
the shares that were pledged as collateral as a deduction of 518,000 and $558,000 from shareholders’
equity at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, as unearned ESOP shares in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

The following table sets forth the company’s and the bank’s various capital ratios as of
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. For all periods, the bank was considered “well-capitalized” and the
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company met or exceed ed its applicable regulatory capital requirenients. We are currently evaluating
various options, such a . issuing trust preferred securities or comman stock, to increase the bank’s
capital and related cap tal ratios in order to maintain the bank’s growth.

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Holding Co. Bank lilelding Co. Bank  Holding Co. Bank

Total risk-based capital . .............. 13.48% 10.72% 11.13% 10.01% 13.16% 11.35%
Tier 1 risk-based capit:1 .............. 1161% 9.70% 894% 9.03% 11.92% 10.19%
Leverage capital. . .................. 9.75% 817% 9.02% 8.05% 9.09% 1.75%

The increase in th: company’s capital ratios from December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2007 is due
to increased capital as a result of the completion of the preferred :tock offering in July 2007. The
bank’s capital ratios in :reased due to the downstreaming of $6 milion from the company to the bank
during the twelve mon hs ended December 31, 2007, as discussed helow.

During March 20( 7, we advanced $5 million on a revolving lir ¢ of credit with a correspondent
bank which we downst eamed, along with an additional $1 million, to the bank as a capital
contribution. This capi al contribution increased the bank’s total risk-based capital, Tier 1 risk-based
capital and leveraged capital.

On July 9, 2007, v closed an underwritten public offering of 720,000 shares of our preferred stock
at $25.00 per share. O 1r net proceeds after payment of underwritiag discounts and other expenses of
the offering were appr >ximately $16.5 million. We are using the net proceeds for general corporate
purposes, which includz, among other things, providing additional capital to support asset growth, the
expansion of the bank 5 branch network and to pay off the balance! of $5 million on the revolving line
of credit and to fund 1»an growth, as previously mentioned.

The terms of the »referred stock include the payment of quarterly dividends at an interest rate of
7.25%. The first quart :rly dividend payment was made in October 2007, as prescribed in the Certificate
of Designation of Seri:s A Preferred Stock, and we paid the fourty quarter 2007 dividend payment on
December 31, 2007 fo - a total of $626,000 paid during 2007,

Since our inceptic n, we have not paid cash dividends on our vommon stock. Our ability to pay
cash dividends is depe adent on receiving cash in the form of dividends from our bank. However,
certain restrictions exi:t regarding the ability of our bank to transfzr funds to us in the form of cash
dividends. All dividen:|s are subject to prior approvat of the OCC and are payable only from the
undivided profits of onr bank. We distributed a 3 for 2 stock split on March 1, 2004, and January 18,
2006. We also distribued a 6% stock dividend on May 16, 2006 and a 7% stock dividend on March 30,
2007. On December 1 2006, the Company’s board of directors au horized a stock repurchase program
of up to 50,000 of its shares outstanding effective immediately for a period of six months ending
May 31, 2007. In Nov.:mber 2007, the board of directors authorize d the extension of this stock
repurchase program for another six months ending May 31, 2008.

Return on Equity and Assets

The following tat le shows the return on average assets (net income divided by average total
assets), return on ave: age equity (net income divided by average c¢quity), and equity to assets ratio
(average equity divide d by average total assets) for the three year.: ended December 31, 2007:

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2007 . 2006 2005
Return on average assets. . .. ........... 0.76'% 1.05% 1.01%
Return on aerage equity .. ............ 10.89% 16.82% 17.72%
Equity to astetsratio . ................ 7.00% 5.80% 6.71%




The ratios shown above reflect the growth in net income and the proportionally greater increase in
our assets, as well as the capital raised in the 2007 preferred stock offering, for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006. Our asset growth for the year ended December 31, 2007
outpaced asset growth for the year ended December 31, 2006 and the year ended December 31, 2006,
while the preferred stock offering during the year ended December 31, 2007 led to an increased equity
to assets ratio for the year ended December 31, 2007. Although net income for the year ended '
December 31, 2007 increased compared to net income for the year ended December 31, 2006, our
return on equity decreased due to increased average equity, resuiting from the capital raised in the
preferred stock offering in addition to income earned during 2007. The return on assets and return on
equity ratios for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflect the consistent increase in net income for the
year ended December 31, 2006, compared to that of the year ended December 31, 2003.

Effect of Inflation and Changing Prices

The effect of relative purchasing power over time due to inflation has not been taken into effect in
our financial statements. Rather, the statements have been prepared on an historical cost basis in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Unlike most industrial companies, the assets and liabilities of financial institutions such as our
holding company and bank are primarily monetary in nature. Therefore, the effect of changes in
interest rates will have a more significant impact on our performance than will the effect of changing
prices and inflation in general. In addition, interest rates may generally increase as the rate of inflation
increases, although not necessarily in the same magnitude. As discussed previously, we seek to manage
the rejationships between interest-sensitive assets and liabilities in order to protect against wide rate
fluctuations, including those resulting from inflation.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Through the operations of our bank, we have made contractual commitments to extend credit in
the ordinary course of our business activities to meet the financing needs of customers. Such
commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk and interest rate risk in excess of the
amount recognized in the balance sheets. These commitments are legally binding agreements to lend
money at predetermined interest rates for a specified period of time and generally have fixed expiration
dates or other termination clauses. We use the same credit and collateral policies in making these
commitments as we do for on-balance sheet instruments.

We evaluate each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis and obtain collateral, if
necessary, based on our credit evaluation of the borrower. In addition to commitments to extend credit,
we also issue standby letters of credit that are assurances to a third party that they will not suffer a loss
if our customer fails to meet its contractual obligation to the third party. The credit risk involved in the
underwriting of letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to
customers.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had issued commitments to extend credit of $115.9 million
and $85.3 million, respectively, through various types of commercial and consumer lending
arrangements, of which the majority are at variable rates of interest. Standby letters of credit totaled
$819,000 and $461,000, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Past experience indicates that
many of these commitments to extend credit will expire unused. However, we believe that we have
adequate sources of liquidity to fund commitments that may be drawn upon by borrowers. In addition,
we have $15 million in letters of credit at the FHLB pledged to a public depositor.

Except as disclosed in this annual report, we are not involved in off-balance sheet contractual
relationships, unconsolidated related entities that have off-balance sheet arrangements, or transactions
that could result in liquidity needs or other commitments that could significantly impact earnings.
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Liquidity

Liquidity man: gement involves monitoring our sources anc! uses of funds in order to meet our
day-to-day cash flov requirements while maximizing profits. Liquidity represents the ability of a
company to conver assets into cash or cash equivalents withou' significant loss and to raise additional
funds by increasing liabilities. Liguidity management is made more complicated because different
balance sheet comy onents are subject to varying degrees of maagement control. For example, the
timing of maturitie: of the investment portfolio is fairly predictible and subject to a high degree of
control at the time the investment decisions are made. Howeve °, net deposit inflows and outilows are
far less predictable and are not subject to nearly the same degr:e of control. We measure and monitor
liquidity frequently, allowing us to better understand, predict ard respond to balance sheet trends. A
comprehensive liqu dity analysis provides a summary of anticipated changes in loans, core deposits and
wholesale funds. Wi: also have recently drafted and presented to the Asset Liability Committee a
detailed liquidity contingency plan designed to successfully respond to an overall decline in the
economic environm 'nt, the banking industry or a problem specific to our liquidity.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, our liquid assets, consisting of cash and due from banks,
interest-bearing ban x balances and federal funds sold, amounte«| to $8.4 million and $8.2 million,
representing 1.44% and 1.76% of total assets, respectively. Invertment securities provide a secondary
source of liquidity, 1iet of amounts pledged for deposits and FHLB advances. Our ability to maintain
and expand our depsit base and borrowing capabilities also serves as a source of liquidity. The
decrease in our liqu dity from over the past several years to fund the growth of our loan production
offices has challeng: d us to maximize the various funding options available to us. Qur federal funds
purchased lines of ¢ edit with correspondent banks represent a 1eadily available source of short-term
funds. Proactive and well-advised daily cash management ensures that these lines are accessed and
repaid with careful «onsideration of all our available funding op ions as well as the associated costs.
Our overnight lines ire tested at least once quarterly to ensure :ase of access, continued availability
and that we consiste atly maintain healthy working relationships "vith each correspondent.

We plan to meet our future cash needs through the liquidation of temporary investments, the
maturities of loans and investment securities, and the generation of deposits. We will rely on the
wholesale funding market less as we expand our branch network and capitalize on existing and new
deposit markets thrcughout the state. In addition, the bank mair tains federal funds purchased lines of
credit with correspor.dent banks that totaled $59.5 million as of ; Jecember 31, 2007. The bank is also a
member of the FHL 3 of Atlanta from which application for bor owings can be made for leverage
purposes, up to available collateral, if so desired. FHLB advances also provide a liquidity option when
we determine that these are the best source of funds to meet existing requirements. We consicer
advances from the F LB to be a reliable and readily available source of funds both for liquidity
purposes and asset liability management, as well as interest rate -isk management strategies. A. key
component in taking advantage of funding from the FHLB is maintaining good quality collateral to
pledge against our a«lvances. We primarily rely on our existing loan portfolio for this cotlateral; we
scrutinize each loan elying on FHLB guidelines before it is determine to qualify as collateral for an
FHLB advance. We lielieve that our existing stable base of core deposits along with continued growth
in this deposit base, :oupled with our available short-term and long-term borrowing options, will enable
us to meet our long-lerm liquidity needs.

In addition, other sources of regulatory capital may be accessed such as trust preferred securities
or common stock to und our liquidity needs. In February 2007, we participated in a sale/leaseback
transaction with a group of several of our board members to gen :rate funds for the sale of some of our
land and buildings. A second sale/leaseback transaction was completed in August 2007.




Interest Rate Sensitivity

Asset liability management is the process by which we monitor and control the mix and maturities
of our assets and liabilities. The essential purposes of asset liability management are to ensure
adequate liquidity and to maintain an appropriate balance between interest-sensitive assets and
liabilities to minimize potentially adverse impacts on earnings from changes in market interest rates.
Our asset liability management committee (“ALCO”) monitors and considers methods of managing
exposure to interest rate risk. The ALCO consists of members of the board of directors and senior
management of the bank and meets quarterly. The ALCO is charged with the responsibility to maintain
the level of interest rate sensitivity of the bank’s interest-sensitive assets and liabilities within board-
approved limits.

The following table sets forth information regarding our interest rate sensitivity as of December 31,
2006, for each of the time intervals indicated. The information in the table may not be indicative of our
interest rate sensitivity position at other points in time. In addition, the maturity distribution indicated
in the table may differ from the contractual maturities of the interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities presented due to consideration of prepayment speeds under various interest rate
change scenarios in the application of the interest rate sensitivity methods described above (dollars in
thousands).

After three After one

Within but within but within After
three months  twelve months  five years  five years Total

Interest-earning assets
Federal funds sold and other. .. ........ $ 15 § 4208 § — 5 — § 47223
Investment securities. . . .. e 13,677 12,135 10,708 34,010 70,530
Loans ... .. e 399,593 27,895 55,899 10,706 494,093

Total interest-earning assets . ... ... ... $413,285 $ 44,238 $ 66,607 $44,716 $568,846
Interest-bearing liabilities
NOW accounts . . ..o oo vvevneenn.s .. $12,804 $ — $36426 § — $ 49330
Money market and savings ............ 59,390 — 25,532 —_— 84,922
Time deposits. .. ........ .o, 91,377 153,410 48,323 — 293110
FHIBadvances .......... o0t ciu.n — 32,500 9,190 —_ 41,690
Junior subordinated debentures . . ....... 13,403 — — 13,403
Fed funds purchased . . . .. ............ 9,360 — —_ — 9,360

Total interest-bearing liabilities . . . . . . .. $173,031 $ 199,313 $119,471 § -— $491,815
Periodgap ... ............... . .. .. $240,254 $(155,075) $(52,864) $44,716 §$ 77,031
Cumulative gap . ... ... ...cvuune... $240,254 $ 85179 § 32315 $77,031 §
Ratio of cumulative gap to total

interest-earning assets .. ........ ... 42.24% 14.97% 5.68% 13.54%

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and rates that principally
arises from interest rate risk inherent in our lending, investing, deposit gathering, and borrowing
activities. Other types of market risks, such as foreign currency exchange rate risk and commodity price
risk, do not normally arise in the normal course of our business. We actively monitor and manage our
interest rate risk exposure.

The principal interest rate risk monitoring technique we employ is the measurement of our interest
sensitivity “gap,” which is the positive or negative dollar difference between assets and liabilities that
are subject to interest rate repricing within a given period of time. Interest rate sensitivity can be
managed by repricing assets or liabilities, selling securities available for sale, replacing an asset or
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liability at maturity, or adjusting the interest rate during the life of an asset or Hability. Managing the
amount of assets an1 liabilities repricing in this same time interral helps to hedge the risk and
minimize the impac on net interest income of rising or falling i1terest rates. We generally would
benefit from increasing market rates of interest when we have an asset-sensitive gap position and
generally would ben :fit from decreasing market rates of interest when we are liability-sensitive.

As of Decembe: 31, 2007, we were asset sensitive over a one-year time frame. However, our gap
analysis is not a pre :ise indicator of our interest sensitivity posit on. The analysis presents only a static
view of the timing o maturities and repricing opportunities, without taking into consideration that
changes in interest 1ates do not affect all assets and liabilities ecually. For example, rates paid on a
substantial portion < f core deposits may change contractually wi hin a relatively short time frame, but
those rates are view:d by management as significantly less intere st-sensitive than market-based rates
such as those paid 01 non-core deposits. Net interest income m:y be impacted by other significant
factors in a given inlerest rate environment, including changes ir the volume and mix of interest-
earning assets and i1 terest-bearing liabilities.

Recently Issued Acciunting Pronouncements

The following is a summary of recent authoritative pronoun:ements that affect accounting,
reporting, and disclosure of financial information.

In September 2( 06, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”).
SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted
accounting principle:, and expands disclosures about fair value o easurements. This standard eliminates
inconsistencies founc in various prior pronouncements but does ot require any new fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for us on January 1, 2008 a1d will not impact our accounting
measurements but it is expected to result in additional disclosures.

In September 2(06, The FASB ratified the consensuses reaclied by the FASB’s Emerging Issues
Task Force (“EITF”) relating to EITF 06-4, “Accounting for the Deferred Compensation and
Postretirement Beneiit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements”

(“EITF 06-4”), Entit es purchase life insurance for various reasous including protection against loss of ~
key employees and tc. fund postretirement benefits. The twa most common types of life insurance
arrangements are en¢lorsement split dollar life and collateral assi;3nment split doltar life. EITF 06-4
covers the former an 1 EITF 06-10 (discussed below) covers the litter. EITF 06-4 states that entities
with endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangements that prvide a benefit to an employee that -
extends to postretirel1ent periods should recognize a liability for future benefits in accordance with
SFAS No. 106, “Emp .oyers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benef ts Other Than Pensions,” (if, in
substance, a postretir :ment benefit plan exists) or Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion

No. 12, “Omnibus Ojinion-—1967" (if the arrangement is, in sub:tance, an individual deferred
compensation contrac t). Entities should recognize the effects of applying this Issuc through either (a) a
change in accounting principle through a cumulative-effect adjust nent to retained earnings or to other
components of equity or net assets in the statement of financial fosition as of the beginning of the year
of adoption or (b) a « hange in accounting principle through retrospective application to all prior
periods. EITF 06-4 is effective for the Company on January 1, 20)8. We do not believe the adoption of
EITF 06-4 will have : material impact on our financial position, 1esults of operations or cash flows.

In September 20116, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 06-5, “Accounting for
Purchases of Life Insiirance—Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with
FASB Technical Bulle:in No. 85-4, Accounting for Purchases of L fe Insurance” (“EITF 06-57).

EITF 06-5 states that a policyholder should considér any additionl amounts included in the contractual
terms of the insuranc: policy other than the cash surrender value in determining the amount that could
be realized under the insurance contract. EITF 06-5 also states that a policyholder should determine
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the amount that could be realized under the life insurance contract assuming the surrender of an
individual-life by individual-life policy (or certificate by certificate in a group policy). EITF 06-5 is
effective for us on January 1, 2008. We do not believe the adoption of EITF 06-5 will have a material
impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2007, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 06-10, “Accounting for
Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements” (“EITF 06-107). The postretirement
aspect of this EITF is substantially similar to EITF 06-4 discussed above and requires that an employer
recognize a liability for the postretirement benefit related to a collateral assignment split-dollar life
insurance arrangement in accordance with either FASB Statement No. 106 or APB Opinion No. 12, as
appropriate, if the employer has agreed to maintain a life insurance policy during the employee’s
retirement or provide the employee with a death benefit based on the substantive agreement with the
employee. In addition, a consensus was reached that an employer should recognize and measure an
asset based on the nature and substance of the collateral assignment split-dollar life insurance
arrangement. EITF 06-10 is effective for us on January 1, 2008. We do not believe the adoption of
EITF 06-10 will have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115” (“SFAS 159”). This
statement permits, but does not require, entities to measure many financial instruments at fair value.
The objective is to provide entities with an opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings
caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge
accounting provisions. Entities electing this option will apply it when the entity first recognizes an
eligible instrument and will report unrealized gains and losses on such instruments in current earnings.
This statement 1) applies to all entities, 2) specifies certain election dates, 3) can be applied on an
instrument-by-instrument basis with some exceptions, 4) is irrevocable and 5) applies only to entire
instruments. One exception is demand deposit liabilities which are explicitly excluded as qualifying for
fair value. With respect to SFAS 115, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity sccurities at the effective
date are eligible for the fair value option at that date. If the fair value option is elected for those
securities at the effective date, cumulative unrealized gains and losses at that date shall be included in
the cumulative-effect adjustment and thereafter, such securities will be accounted for as trading
securities. SFAS 159 is effective for us on January 1, 2008, We are currently analyzing the fair value
option that is permitted, but not required, under SFAS 159. :

In June 2007, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the EITF with respect to EITF 06-11,
“Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards” (“EITF 06-117).
Under EITF 06-11, a realized income tax benefit from dividends or dividend equivalents that are
charged to retained earnings and are paid to employees for equity-classified nonvested equity shares,
nonvested equity share units and outstanding equity share options should be recognized as an increase
in additional paid-in capital. This EITF is to be applied prospectively to the income tax benefits that
result from dividends on equity-classified employee share-based payment awards that are declared
beginning in 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early application is permitted. We do
not believe the adoption of EITF 06-11 will have a material impact on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In November 2007, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 109, “Written Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings”
(“SAB 109”). SAB 109 expresses the current view of the SEC staff that the expected net future cash
flows related to the associated servicing of the loan should be included in the measurement of all
written loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through earnings. SEC registrants are
expected to apply this guidance on a prospective basis to derivative loan commitments issued or
modified in the first quarter of 2008 and thereafter. We are currently analyzing the impact of this
guidance, which relates to our mortgage loans held for sale.
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In December [ 007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations,”
(“SFAS 141(R)”) v hich replaces SFAS 141. SFAS 141(R) establishes principles and requirements for
how an acquirer in a business combination recognizes and measures in its financial statements the
identifiable assets : cquired, the liabilities assumed, and any controlling interest; recognizes and
measures goodwill acquired in the business combination or a giin from a bargain purchase; and
determines what ir formation to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the
nature and financi; 1 effects of the business combination. FAS 141(R) is effective for acquisitions by the
Company taking p'ace on or after January 1, 2009. Early adop ion is prohibited. Accordingly, a
calendar year-end :ompany is required to record and disclose 1yusiness combinations following existing
accounting guidan e until January 1, 2009. We will assess the inpact of SFAS 141(R) if and when a
future acquisition »ccurs.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Non:ontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 517 (“SFAI} 160™). SFAS 160 establishes new
accounting and renorting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary. Before this statement, limited guidance existed for reporting
noncontrolling int:rests (minority interest). As a result, diversity in practice exists. In some cases
minority interest i: reported as a liability and in others it is reported in the mezzanine section between
liabilities and equ ty. Specifically, SFAS 160 requires the recognition of a noncontrolling interest
(minority interest, as equity in the consolidated financials statzments and separate from the parent’s
equity. The amou it of net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest will be included in
consolidated net i icome on the face of the income statement. SFAS 160 clarifies that changes in a
parent’s ownershi) interest in a subsidiary that do not result ia deconsolidation are equity transactions
if the parent retains its controlling financial interest. In addition, this statement requires that a parent
recognize gain or loss in net income when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. Such gain or loss will be
measured using tle fair value of the noncontrolling equity investment on the deconsolidation date.
SFAS 160 also in( ludes expanded disclosure requirements reg arding the interests of the parent and its
noncontrolling in erests. SFAS 160 is effective for the Compay on January 1, 2009. Earlier adoption is
prohibited. We are currently evaluating the impact, if any, the: adoption of SFAS 160 will have on its
consolidated fina icial statements.

Other accou iting standards that have been issued or pr¢posed by the FASB or other standards-
setting bodies arc not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial position, results
of operations or :ash flows.
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Item 8. Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting. Management has assessed the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting using the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The
Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expénditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitions,
use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Based on the testing performed using the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COS0), management of the Company believes that the company’s internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public
accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. The Company’s registered public
accounting firm was not required to issue an attestation on its internal controls over financial reporting
pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commisston.
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FIRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2007 and 2006
(dollars in thousands)
2007 2006
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ... .......... ... i $ 8426 3 8205
Securities available forsale .. ....... ... .. .. . . . . i 70,530 63,374
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,951 and $3,795, respectively ... ... 469,734 375,695
Mortgage loans held forsale .............. ... .. o i i i 19,408 —
Premises and equipment, met ... ... i i o e e e 2,974 6,906
L4 1T 15,441 11,202
Total aSSEES .« v v i e e e $586,513  $465,382
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity ‘ .
Liabilities
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing . . .. v v\ v v v et e i $ 44,466 $ 31,321
Interest-bearing. . . . . ... ... .. . e 427,362 345,380
Total deposits .. ... e 471,828 376,701
FHLB advances . . ..o vt ittt i it e et sttt e ettt e s a i nnnaenans 41,690 37,476
Junior subordinated debentures . . . .. ..o ettt e e 13,403 13,403
Federal funds purchased . ... ... ... ... ... ... . . i, .. 9,360 7,970
Accrued expenses and other liabilities . .. ........ ... ... ... o 00 2,676 2,842
Total liabilities . . .. ... e e s $538,957 $438,392
Commitments and contingencies—Notes 18 and 19 ’
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, 10,000,000 shares authorized, . ) .
720,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively .............. $ 7 % —
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 10,000,000 shares authorized; :
3,724,548 and 3,700,439 shares issued and outstanding, respectively . ... ... 37 37
Additional paid-in capital .......... ... .. . ... .o 43,809 26,906
Treasury stock, 13,781 shares, atcost . . .. ....... ... ... ... .. . ., (224) —
Unearned ESOP shares .. ... ... .. ittt (518) (558)
Retained earnings. . . ... i e e e 4,408 1,071
Accumulated other comprehensive gain/(loss). . ............ ... ... ... 37 {(466)
Total shareholders’ equity . ....... ... ... .. i, $ 47,556 $ 26,990
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . ... ...... . ..ot $586,513 $465,382

The accompanfving notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. - |
Common shares outstanding, additional paid-in capital and retained earnings as of December 31, 2006,
reflect the 7% stock dividend distributed on March 30, 2007.
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FIRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Income

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(dollars in thousands, except share daia)

2007 2006 2005
Interest income:
LOaMS .« o ittt i e e e e e e $ 35661 § 26,237 § 15461
Taxable securities . . ... ... . e e 2,672 1,977 1,319
Nontaxable securities . . . . . . .. . e s 621 352 262
Federal fundssold andothr . ... ... ... .. . i iinnn 1,014 320 299
Total Interest MCOME . . . . v v vttt et et e e e 39,968 28,886 17,341
Interest expense:
Deposils ... e e 18,872 12,134 6,484
FHLB advances . ... ...ttt e e et eiaaas 1,957 1,570 925
Junior subordinated debentures. . ... ... ... ... .. 1,025 877 380
Federal funds purchased asdother ... ... .. ... ............. : 611 144 41
Total interest expense: . . . ... ... ... e e e 22,465 14,725 7,830
Net Interest iMCOmMe . . . .« ot i e s it st e s e neens 17,503 14,161 9,511
Provision for 1oan 1oSSes . . - . . . o i e e e 1,396 1,192 594
Net interest income after pro-ision for loanlosses .. ............... 16,107 12,969 £,917
Noninterest income: '
Mortgage banking income . ..., ... . o i o 1,858 — —
Service charges and fees o1 depositaccounts ... ......... .., .... 1,270 1,080 961
Gain on sale of securities evailable forsale . . . .. ....... ......... 117 33 —
Other . .. e e e e e e 906 966 894
Total noninterest NCOIME . . . . . . . . .o it i i e e e 4,151 2,079 1,855
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits . .. .. ... .. ... . .. L L 7,876 5,128 3,744
Occupancy and equipment 2XPENSE . ... ...ttt ie st en e 2,030 1,046 660
Public relations . . . .. v et i e e e 734 609 378
Data processing and ATM :xpenise . ............ . ..ot 702 587 487
Professional fees . . . .. i e e ' 648 284 251
Telephone and supplies .. ...... ... ... . ... ... ... . . 0., 426 295 211
01172 . 1,743 952 745
Total noninterest EXPamst . . .. ..o e - 14,159 8,901 6,476
Net income before income ta @S . . . ... . ittt et i en 6,099 6,147 4296
Provision for inCome taxes . - . - . . . . o vt i e e 2,039 2,095 1,461
Net InCOme . . ...ttt ettt ettt e 4,060 4,052 2,835
Cash dividends declared on peferredstock .. ... ... .. ... ... ..... 626 —_ —_
Net income available to colamon shareholders .. ................ $ 3434 § 4052 § 2,835
Net income per share '
BasiC . . oo e e e $ 093 % 112§ 0.90
Diluted . ... e e e e e $ 084 3§ 094 % 0.73
Weighted average shares outs:anding
BasiC. . .t e e e e e e 3,696,464 3,615,022 3,142,035
Diluted . . ... . e e 4,847,045 4,324,561 3,933,760
All share and per shaie amounts reflect the 3 for 2 stock split distributed on January 18, 2006, the
6% stock dividend distribu:ed on May 16, 2006, and the 7% stock divilend distributed on March 30,
2007. The accompanying n)tes are an integral part of these consolidat:d financial statements.
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FIRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(dollars in thousands)

Addittonsl Treasury Uncarned Other ‘Totsl
Preferred Stock Pald-ln  Stock, ESOP Retained Comprehensive Sharcholders’
Shares Amonnt Shares Amount Capital  atcost  Shares Earnings TIncomef{Loss) Equity

Common Stock

Batance, December 31,2004 . . . .. .. ... .. 2,704,269 327 — 5— $11810 § — § — $2245 $(170) $13.912
Grant of employee stock options . . .. .. ... - - - - 32 — - - — 32
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock
OPUONS . . o o i e it e e 1,575 — - - 12 — - - — 12
Proceeds from sale of stock, net of offering
costsof 8460 . . .. ... ...l 424923 4 - - 6,335 — — — — 6,339
Shares issued to leveraged ESOP . . . .. ... . —_ - —_ = _ —_ (6000 _ —_ (600)
Allocation of ESOP shares. . . .. ........ - - — - — — 1 — — 1
Comprehensive income:
Netincome . .. . ... ..o vuna-- - - _ - — — — 2,835 — 2,835
Chunge in net unrealized loss on securities .
available for sale, net of income tax of $§259 I _- - _— — — _ {502) {502)
Total comprehensive income . . . . ... .. - - - - — 5§ — — — — 2,333
Balance, December 31,2005, . .. .. ... ... 3,130,767 $31 — $5— $18189 § —  $(599) $ 5080 $(672) $22,029
Grant of employee stock options . . . . . .. .. - - — 5= § 73 5 — — - — 73
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock .
options/director stock warrants . . ... .. .. 139,999 1 —_ - 590 — —_ — — 591
Shares issued from the 6% stock dividend . . . . 187,588 2 —_— = 3,784 — —  (3.,786) - —
Shares issued from the 75 stock dividend . . . . 242,085 3 - - 4,272 — —  (4,273) — —
Cash paid in lieu of fractional shares . . . . . . . — - —_ - (4) — — - — {4)
Alocation of ESOP shares. . . .. .. ... ... - - - - 2 _ 41 — - 43
Comprehensive income: . .. ........... - - — — - — — -
Netincome ... ... ...... ... - - - - — - — 4,052 — 4,052
Change in net unrealized loss on securities
available for sale, net of income tax of $117 —_ = _ = — —— — — 228 228
Reclassification adjustment for gains included
in net income, net of income tax of $11 . . —_— = —_ = — —_ — —_ 22) (22)
Total comprehensive income . . . ... ... - - - - — - — — — 4,258
Balance, December 31,2006, . ... ... ... . 3700439  $37 — $— $26906 § — §(358) §1,0M $(466) $26,950
Grant of employee stock options . . . . .. .. - - - 91 — - — — 91
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock
options/director stock warrants . . . . . . . . 38398 — - - 182 — _ — — 182
Adjustment related to 7% stock dividend . . . (108) — - - 97 - — 97 — -
Cash paid in lieu of fractional shares with the
7% stock dividend . . . ... ... ... .. - - — (7} — — — — ()]
Allocation of ESOP shages . . .. ....... - - - - (3) —_ 40 — — 37
‘Shares repurchased pursuant to share
repurchase program . . ... .. .. ... .- {13,781y — —_ - — (224 -— — — (224)
Proceeds from issuance of noncumulative . '
perpetual preferred stock, net of offering .
costs of $1450 . . . ... ... ... ... —  — 720,000 7 16,543 — — — —_ 16,550
Cash dividends declared on preferred stock . . - = - - — — — (626) — (626)
Comprehensive income: . . . ........... —
Netincome . ... ... .. ninn- —_ = — - —_ — — 4,060 —_ 4,060
Change in net unrealized gain/{loss) on
securities available for sale, net of income
taxof $299 . . .. ... o - = - - — — — — 580 580
Reclassification adjustment for gains included
in net income, net of income tax of $40 . . —_ = —_ - — — - — (77) (™
Total comprehensive income . . . . ... ... - - - — — - — — -— 4,563
Balance, December 31,2007 . . . ... ... ... 3724948 $37 720,000 $ 7 343309 §(224) S$(518) § 4,408 $ 37 $47,556

All share amounts reflect the 3 for 2 stock split distributed on January 18, 2006, the 6% stock
dividend distributed on May 16, 2006, and the 7% stock dividend distributed on March 30, 2007.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, INC. #iND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(dollars in thousands)

2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from opera ing activities:
Nl InCOmME . .. ... e e e e $ 4060 $ 4052 $ 2835
Adjustments to recoicile net income to net cash provided by operatirg
activities:
Provision for loan losses .. ... ... . .. .. . 1,396 1,192 594
Provision for defeired income tax benefit . . .. ........ . ... ....... (365) (384) (66)
Depreciation . ... ...t e e 545 409 269
{Accretion)/amorti :ation of securities discounts and premiums, net .. ... (82) 33 86
Gain on sale of se urities available forsale. . .................... (117) (33) -—
Gain on sale of guiranteed portion of SBAloans . ... ............. (201) {322) (441)
Loss on sale of pre mises and equipment .. ..................... 260 -— —_
Origination of resirlential mortgage loans held forsale . . .. .. ... .. .. (261,780) (18,215)  (12,196)
Proceeds from sale of residential mortgage loans held forsale . . . . ... .. 242,372 18,849 11,653
Compensation expt nse for employee stock options granted , . ... ... .., 91 73 32
Allocation of ESO:*shares . . . . .. .. ... .. . . 37 43 1
Changes in deferre 1 and accrued amounts:
Prepaid expenses and otherassets . ............ ... ... ...... (3,350) (1,120) (1,321)
Accrued expense: and other labilities. . . . ... ... ... ... .. ... (296) 486 548
Net cash (usec in)/provided by operating activities. . . . ... ....... (17.430) 5,063 1,994
Cash flows from investing activities
' Proceeds from maturiies/prepayment of securities available for sale . . . . .. 11,299 6,543 6,514
Proceeds from sale of securitics available forsale . .. ................ 10,490 5,601 —_—
Purchases of securitie; available forsale .. ....................... (27,984)  (30,055) (16,347}
Proceeds from salz ot guaranteed portion of SBA loans. . .. ........... 3,774 5,650 6,188
Loan originations, net of principal collections. . . ... ... ... ... .. .... {98,932) (134,039) (68,137)
Investment in commo 1 securitiesof Trusts . . . . ... ............ Cee — (217) —
Net purchases of preriises and equipment .. ................. cean (5,842) (2,338) (972)
Proceeds from the sal: of premises and equipment . .. ... .. ... .. Ce 8,969 _ —
Redemption of FHLB and otherstock ..................... N — —_ 357
Purchase of FHLB and otherstock . . . . ... ... ....... .. ... ca - (729) (953) (744)
Net cash vsed in i esting activities . .. ................... RN (98,955) (149,808) (73,141)
Cash flows from financii g activities:
Proceeds from issuanc : of junior subordinated debentures . .. ....... ... — 1,217 -—
Proceeds from second ry stock offering, net of offering expenses ... ... .. — — 6,339
Proceeds from issuanc: of preferred stock, net of offering expenses. . . . . .. 16,550 — (600)
Dividends paid on preerred stock . .. ... ... .. o oo L, (626) _— —
Increase in FHLB advinces . . . . ... ... ... . ... ... ... 21,000 28,400 14,100
Repayment of FHLBidvances . . . .......... ... ... ... ... .... (16,786)  (17,536) (10,566)
Net increase in federa funds purchased ......................... 1,390 7,970 —
Shares repurchased puisuant to share repurchase program . ... ......... (224) — -
Proceeds from exercist of employee stock options/director stock warrants . . 182 591 12
Cash paid in lieu of fr..ctional shares for stock dividend. . . . ... ........ (7 )] —
Netincrease indeposis ... ... .. i, 95,127 105,006 79,884
Net cash provided b - financing activities ... .................... 116,606 131,644 89,169
Net increasef(decreaie) in cash and cash equivalents . ... ........... 221 (13,101 18,022
Cash and cash equivalents, beginningof year ............ . .......... 8,205 21,306 3,284
Cash and cash equivalemss,endofyear. . ... ... ... .. ... ........... $ 8426 § 8205 $ 21306

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Activities

Business Activity and QOrganization—First National Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) was
incorporated on July 14, 1999, under the laws of the state of South Carolina for the purpose of
operating as a bank holding company pursuant to the federal Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as
amended, and to purchase 100% of the capital stock of First National Bank of Spartanburg (the
“Bank”). The Bank was organized as a national bank under the laws of the United States of America
with the purpose of becoming a new bank to be located in Spartanburg County, South Carolina. The
Bank began transacting business on March 27, 2000, and provides full personal and commercial
banking services to customers and is subject to regulation by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation and the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency. During 2002, the Company adopted a
resolution changing the legal name of the Bank to First National Bank of the South. The Bank
continues to do business in Spartanburg County as First National Bank of Spartanburg,

The Bank opened two additional full service branches in Spartanburg in 2000 and 2001. In August
2002, the Bank began offering trust and investment management services through Colonial Trust
Company, the oldest private trust company in South Carolina. In March 2004, the Bank established a
loan production office in Greenville County which included the operations of its small business lending
division, First National Business Capital. This division originates small business loans under the
U.S. Small Business Administration’s (*SBA’s”) various loan programs.

In October 2005, we converted our Mount Pleasant loan production office, opened in October
2004, to our fourth full-service branch, our first in the Charleston area. In January 2006, we expanded
into our state’s capital with the opening of our loan production office in Columbia. In February 2006,
we opened our Joan production office on Daniel Island to expand our presence in the Charleston area.
We announced our expansion into York and Lancaster Counties, beginning with a loan production
office in Rock Hill that opened in February 2007.

We opened a wholesale mortgage division on January 29, 2007, as an enhancement to our current
banking operations. The division operates from leased office space located at 200 North Main Street in
downtown Greenville, South Carolina, and employs a staff of thirteen individuals. It offers a wide
variety of conforming and non-conforming programs with fixed and variable rate options, as well as
FHA/VA and construction/permanent products to its customers who are located primarily in South
Carolina. The wholesale mortgage division continues to serve its existing base of other community
banks and mortgage brokers.

In June 2007, we relocated our fifth full-service branch, our first in the Greenville market, along
with our Greenville market headquarters to a newly-constructed facility on Pelham Road after
operating this branch in a temporary location since October 2006. We continued our expansion into the
Greenville market and have opened a full-service branch in an existing facility, located in Greer, South
Carolina. We opened this facility on August 31, 2007.

We continued our expansion in the Charleston area with the opening of our second full-service
branch and our Charleston market headquarters at 140 East Bay Street in downtown Charleston in a
leased facility in April 2007,

We have closed on the purchase a 1.4 acre outparcel of land for $1.4 million in the Tega Cay
community in Fort Mill, South Carolina, a suburb of Charlotte, North Carolina. We have applied with
the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the “OCC”) to open a full-service branch at this
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-IRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, INC. AI'D SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stiitements
December 31, 2007 and 2006 (Conlinued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Activiti¢s (Continued)

location. Our applicat on was approved in December 2007, and w: anticipate construction of a
full-service branch an«| our market headquarters for this area to bzgin in early 2008.

The Company ofiered its common stock for sale to the public under an initial public offering
which began on Nove:nber 10, 1999, in which 3.1 million shares of’ common stock were sold, including
1,235,400 shares sold ‘o the Company’s directors and executive oflicers at $3.92 per share. The offering
raised approximately ¢ 11,800,000, net of underwriting discounts ard commissions and offering expenses,
and was completed or February 10, 2000. These per share and shire amounts reflect each of the 3 for
2 stock splits distribut:d on January 18, 2006, and March 1, 2004, the 6% stock dividend distributed on
May 16, 2006, and the 7% stock dividend distributed on March 30, 2007. The Company used
$11 million of the pro :eeds to capitalize the Bank.

The Company off »red its common stock for sale to the public under a best efforts offering which
began on October 14, 2005, in which 628,529 shares of common stack were sold, including 32,804
shares sold to meet ov arsubscriptions. The shares were sold by the Company’s officers and certain
directors at a price of $14.10 per share. Total net proceeds to the 1“ompany from the offering were
approximately $6.3 million after deducting expenses and the net pioceeds paid to the selling
shareholder from the :ale of his 146,312 shares included in the off xring which was completed in
December 2005. These per share and share amounts reflect the 3 :'or 2 stock split distributed on
January 18, 2006, the (-9 stock dividend distributed on May 16, 2006, and the 7% stock dividend to be
distributed on March 0, 2007. The Company used the net proceeds from the offering for general
corporate purposes anil to enhance the Bank’s capital and liquidity.

The Company priced for sale 720,000 shares of its 7.25% Serii's A Noncumulative Perpetual
Preferred Stock on Juls 3, 2007, at $25.00 per share through an underwritten public offering, as further
discussed in “Note 13- -Noncumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock ¢)ffering.” Total net proceeds after
payment of underwritit g discounts and other costs of the offering were approximately $16.5 million.
The Company has use«. the net proceeds from the offering for gen:ral corporate purposes, which
include to repay a line of credit and to fund loan growth. The offe ing closed on July 9, 2007. A
registration statement 1 elating to these securities was filed with anc. declared effective by the Securities
and Exchange Commisiion (“SEC”) as of June 26, 2007.

As part of its strat >gic plan for growth and expansion, the Coripany entered into an Agreement
and Plan of Merger (tt e “Merger Agreement”) to acquire 100% ol the outstanding shares of stack in
Carolina National Corj oration {“Carolina National”) on Angust 2¢, 2007. Under the terms of the
Merger Agreement, Carolina National merged with and into the Company (the “Merger”), effective
January 31, 2008, with First National Bancshares, Inc. being the swviving bank holding company after
the Merger. Through the Merger, Carolina National’s wholly ownel subsidiary bank, Carolina National
Bank & Trust Company, a national banking association, will becom: a subsidiary of First National
Bancshares, Inc. and svbsequently will be merged with and into the bank. (See Note 25—Merger with
Carolina National Corporation for current details on the Merger.)

Principles of Consol idation—The consolidated financizal statements include the accounts of the
Company and the Bank. All significant intercompany balances and :ransactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. The accounting and reporting policies of the Compaiy conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in th e United States of America “GAAP”) and 10 general practices in the banking
industry.
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FIRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Activities (Continued)

Use of Estimates—The consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America which require management to
make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. In addition, they affect the reported
amounts of income and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk—The Company, through the Bank, makes loans to individuals and
small- to mid-sized businesses for various personal and commercial purposes primarily in Spartanburg,
Greenville, Charleston Counties in South Carolina. The Company has a diversified loan portfolio and
the Company’s loan portfolio is not dependent on any specific economic segment. The Company
regularly monitors its credit concentrations based on loan purpose, industry and customer base. As of
December 31, 2007, management has determined that the Company has a concentration in commercial
real estate loans. Management has extensive experience in commercial real estate lending, and has
implemented and continues to maintain heightened portfolio monitoring and reporting, and strong
underwriting criteria with respect to its commercial real estate portfolio.

. In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to particular borrowers or groups of
borrowers, industries and geographic regions, management monitors exposure to credit risk that could
arise from potential concentrations of lending products and practices, such as loans that subject
borrowers 1o substantial payment increases (e.g. principal deferral periods, loans with initial
interest-only periods, etc), and loans with high loan-to-value ratios. Additionally, there are industry
practices that could subject the Company to increased credit risk should economic conditions change
over the course of a loan’s life. For example, the Company makes variable rate loans and fixed rate
principal-amortizing loans with maturities prior to the loan being fully paid (i.. balloon payment
loans). These loans are underwritten and monitored to manage the associated risks. Management has
determined that the Company has a concentration of non-1-to-4-family residential loans that exceed
supervisory limits for loan to value ratios. This segment of loans is generally described as the
“commercial basket” and may not exceed thirty percent of total regulatory capital. The commercial
basket totaled $13.8 million at December 31, 2007, representing 29.0% of total equity and 2.91% of
loans, net of unearned income, which is in compliance with the regulatory guidelines. At December 31,
2006, this concentration totaled $12.4 million representing 45.8% of total equity and 3.26% of loans,
net of allowance for loan losses. The Company experienced no loan losses related to this identified risk
during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005. '

Cash and cash equivalents—The Company considers all highly-liquid investments with maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investment Securities-——Investment securities are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” Management classifies securities at
the time of purchase into one of three categories as follows: (1) Securities Held to Maturity—securities
which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, which are reported at
amortized cost; (2) Trading Securities—securities that are bought and held principally for the purpose
of selling them in the near future, which are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses
included in earnings; and (3) Securities Available for Sale—securities that may be sold under certain
conditions, which are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings
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I'IRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, INC. AliD SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stiitements
December 31, 2007 and 2006 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Activitics {Continued)

and reported as a sep arate component of shareholders’ equity as iccumulated other comprehensive
income. The amortization of premiuvms and accretion of discounts on investment securities are recorded
as adjustments to intetest income. Gains or losses on sales of investment securities are based on the
net proceeds and the adjusted carrying amount of the securities sold, using the specific identification
method. Unrealized losses on securities, reflecting a decline in value or impairment judged by the
Company to be other than temporary, are charged to earnings in the consolidated statements of
income.

The Company’s i ivestment portfolio consists principally of otligations of the United States, its
agencies or its corpor itions and general obligation municipal securities. In the management’s opinion,
there is no concentration of credit risk in its investment portfolio. The Company places its deposits and
correspondent accoun:s with and sells its federal funds to high quility institutions. Management
believes credit risk as: ociated with correspondent accounts is not uignificant. Therefore, management -
believes that these pa ticular practices do not subject the Company to unusual credit risk.

Loans and Interes Income—Loans of the Bank are carried at orincipal amounts, reduced by an
allowance for loan losses. The Bank recognizes interest income dzily based on the principal amount
outstanding using the simple interest method. The accrual of interest is generally discontinued on loans
of the Bank which bei:ome 90 days past due as to principal or intcrest or when management believes,
after considering ecor. omic and business conditions and collection efforts, that the borrower’s financial
condition is such that collection of interest is doubtful. Manageme nt may elect to continue accrual of
interest when the estiinated net realizable value of collateral is su ficient to cover the principal balances
and accrued interest ¢ nd the loan is in the process of collection. £umounts received on nonaccrual loans
generally are applied gainst principal prior to the recognition of iny interest income. Generally, loans
are restored to accrual status when the obligation is brought current, has performed in accordance with
the contractual terms for a reasonable period of time and the ulti nate collectability of the total
contractual principal : nd interest is no longer in doubt.

The Bank also o1 iginates loans to small businesses under the SBA loan programs. These loans are
solicited from the Coi1pany’s market areas and are generally undorwritten in the same manner as
conventional loans geiierated for the Bank’s portfolio. The portion of loans that are secured by the
guaranty of the SBA is usually sold in the secondary market to provide additional liquidity and to
provide a source of nuninterest income. Deferred gains on the sal: of the guaranteed portion of SBA
loans are amortized o rer the lives of the underlying loans using tte interest method. Excess servicing is
recognized as an assel and is amortized in proportion to and over the period of the estimated net
servicing income and - s subject to periodic assessment. Excess senvicing at December 31, 2007 and 2006
of $330,000 and $320, )00, respectively is included in the balance saeet caption “other assets.” The
guaranteed amount of loans sold to the SBA serviced by the Company was approximately $17.4 million
and $14.7 million at T ecember 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Mortgage Loans Eeld for Sale—Mortgage loans originated for sale in the secondary market are
carried at the lower o ' cost or estimated market value in the aggr:gate. Net unrealized losses are
provided for in a valu ition allowance by charges to operations. Tt ¢ Company obtains commitments
from the secondary m irket investors prior to closing of the loans; therefore, no gains or losses are
recognized when the 1yans are sold. The Company receives origin:ition fees received from the
secondary market inve stors. At December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, there were residential
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mortgage loans held for sale totaling $19.4 million and $0, respectively, which is reflected as Mortgage
loans held for sale on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Impairment of Leans—Loans are considered to be impaired when, in management’s judgment, the
collection of all amounts of principal and interest is not probable in accordance with the terms of the
loan agreement. The Company accounts for impaired loans in accordance with the terms of SFAS
No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,” as amended by SFAS No. 118 in the
areas of disclosure requirements and methods of recognizing income. SFAS No. 114 requires that
impaired loans be recorded at fair value, which is determined based upon the present value of expected
cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the market price of the loan, if available, or
the value of the underlying collateral. All cash receipts on impaired loans are applied to principal until
such time as the principal is brought current. After principal has been satisfied, future cash receipts are
applied to interest income, to the extent that any interest has been foregone. The Bank determines
which loans are impaired through a loan review process,

Allowance for Loan Losses—The allowance for loan losses represents an amount that we believe will
be adequate to absorb probable losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible. Our judgment
in determining the adequacy of the allowance is based on evaluations of the collectability of loans,
including consideration of factors such as the balance of impaired loans; the quality, mix and size of
our overall loan portfolio; economic conditions that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay; the
amount and quality of collateral securing the loans; our historical loan loss experience; and a review of
specific problem loans. We adjust the amount of the allowance periodically based on changing
circumstances as a component of the provision for loan losses. We charge recognized losses against the
allowance and add subsequent recoveries back to the allowance.

We calculate the allowance for loan losses for specific types of loans (excluding mortgage loans
held for sale) and evaluate thé adequacy on an overall portfolio basis utilizing our credit grading system
which we apply to each loan. We combine our estimates of the reserves needed for each component of
the portfolio, including loans analyzed on a pool basis and loans analyzed individually. The allowance is
divided into two portions: (1) an amount for specific allocations on significant individual credits and
(2) a general reserve amount.

We analyze individual loans within the portfolio and make allocations to the allowance based on
historical percentages within our loan portfolio, as well as on each individual loan’s specific factors and
other circumstances that affect the collectability of the credit. Significant individual credits classified as
doubtful or substandard/special mention within our credit grading system require both individual
analysis and specific allocation.

Loans in the substandard category are characterized by deterioration in quality exhibited by any
number of well-defined weaknesses requiring corrective action such as declining or negative earnings
trends and declining or inadequate liquidity. Loans in the doubtful category exhibit the same
weaknesses found in the substandard loan; however, the weaknesses are more pronounced. These loans,
however, are not yet rated as loss because certain events may occur which could salvage the debt such
as injection of capital, alternative financing, or liquidation of assets,

We calculate our general reserve based on a percentage allocation for each of the categories of the
following unclassified loan types: real estate, commercial, consumer, A&D/construction and mortgage.
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We apply general loss factors to each category and may adjust theie percentages given consideration of
local economic conditions, exposure to concentrations that may exist in the portfolio, changes in trends
of past due loans, pro)lem loans and charge-offs, and anticipated loan growth. The general estimate is
then added to the spe ific allocations made to determine the amo nt of the total allowance for loan
losses.

We also maintain a general unallocated reserve in accordance with December 2006 regulatory
interagency guidance jn our assessment of the loan loss allowance. This general unallocated reserve
considers qualitative cr environmental factors that are likely to cause estimated credit losses including, -
but not limited to: chi nges in delinquent loan trends, trends in ne! charge-offs, concentrations of credit,
trends in the nature a1d volume of the loan portfolio, general economic trends, collateral valuations,
the experience and de sth of lending management and staff, and Il ndmg policies, procedures and the
quality of loan review systems.

Loan Fees—Loan origination fees and direct costs of loan originations are deferred and recognized
as an adjustment of yi:ld by the interest method based on the contractual terms of the loan. Loan
commitment fees are 'leferred and recognized as an adjustment of yield over the related loan’s life, or
if the commitment exjires unexercised, recognized in income upoit expiration. .

Off-Balance Sheet Commitments—In the ordinary course of butiness, the Bank enters into
off-balance sheet finar cial instruments consisting of legally bindinj; commitments to extend credit and
letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the flr ancial statements when they are
funded.

Premises and Equipment—Land is carried al cost. Premises and equipment are stated at cost less -
accumulated depreciation and amortization, computed principally by the straight line method over the
estimated useful lives »f the assets as follows: building, 40 years; firniture and fixtures, 7 to 10 years;
and computer hardwa e and software, 3 to 5 years. Amortization of leasehold improvements is
recorded using the striight-line method over the lesser of the estiinated useful life of the asset or the
term of the operating lease. Additions to premises and equipment and major replacements and
betterments are addec at cost. Maintenance, repairs and minor re>lacements are included in operating
expense. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounis and any gain or loss is reflected in income.

Income Taxes—Ini:ome taxes are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes.” Under the asset and liability method of SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to diffzrences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities a- e measured using the enacted rates expecte to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those t :mporary differences are expected 10 be recovered or settled. Under SFAS
No. 109, the effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income
in the period that inclades the enactment date. Valuation allowanves are established to reduce deferred
tax assets if it is deter nined to be “more likely than not” that all or some portion of the potential
deferred tax asset will not be realized.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 4¢), “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes,” to cla: ify the accounting and disclosure for uncertinty in tax positions, as defined.
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FIN 48 seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of the recognition and
measurement related to accounting for income taxes. The Company implemented the provisions of
FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, and has analyzed filing positions in all of the federal and state
jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns, as well as all open tax years in these
jurisdictions. The Company believes that its income tax filing positions taken or expected to be taken in
an its tax returns will more likely than not be sustained upon audit by the taxing authorities and does
not anticipate any adjustments that will result in a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations, or cash flow. Therefore, no reserves for uncertain income tax positions
have been recorded pursuant to FIN 48. In addition, the Company did not record a cumulative effect
adjustment related to the adoption of FIN 48.

Reclassifications—Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current
year presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on previously reported shareholders’ equity or
net income. Share and per share data reflect the 3 for 2 stock split distributed on January.18, 2006, the
6% stock dividend distributed on May 16, 2006, and the 7% stock dividend distributed on March 30,
2007, as discussed below under “Net Income Per Share.”

Stock Compensation Plans—At December 31, 2007, the Company has several stock-based employee
compensation plans, which are more fully described in Notes 14 and 15. On January 1, 2006, we
adopted the fair value recognition provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) SFAS
No. 123(R), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to account for compensation costs under our
stock compensation plans. We previously accounted for our stock compensation plans under the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 148, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation, which are consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) but allowed us to
use the prospective method of adoption since we did so by December 31, 2003. Prior to our adoption
of SFAS No. 148, we utilized the intrinsic value method under Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issues to Employees (as amended) (“APB 257). Under the intrinsic value
method prescribed by APB 25, no compensation costs were recognized for our stock options granted in
years prior ta 2003 because the option exercise price in our plans equals the market price on the date
of grant. Prior to January 1, 2006, we only disclosed the pro forma effects on net income and earnings
per share as if the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R) had been utilized for all options
granted prior to January 1, 2003. Since January 1, 2003, we have used the fair value method to record
the compensation expense for stock options granted after January 1, 2003, over the vesting period of
these grants under the prospective method.

In adopting SFAS No. 123(R}, we elected to use the modified prospective method to account for
the transition. Under the modified prospective method, compensation cost is recognized from the
adoption date forward for all stock options granted after the date of adoption and for any outstanding
unvested awards as if the fair value method had been applied to those awards as of the date of grant.
The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share as if the fair value based
method had been applied to all outstanding and unvested awards for the periods prior to adopting
SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006 (in thousands, except per share amounts):
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Pr.» Forma Disclosure for Net Income and Net Income per Share

2005

Net income—-as TePOrted . . . ...t it i i e $2,835
Net income--pro forma .. ... ...ttt 2,773
Net income Jer share—basic

ASTEPOTIEd. . o vt e $ 0.90

Proforma . .. . e e e e 0.88
Net income per share—diluted

Asteported. . .. L $ 073

ProfOrma . . o ottt e e e e e 0.70

These amounts h:we been adjusted for the 3 for 2 stock split distributed on January 18, 2006, the
6% stock dividend dis ributed on May 16, 2006, and the 7% stock dividend distributed on March 30,
2007.

The weighted ave rage fair value per share of options granted in 2007, 2006 and 2005 amounted to
$6.98, $7.14, and $6.9¢, respectively. The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of
grant using the Black- 3choles option pricing model with the folloving assumptions used for grants:
expected volatility of :2.40%, 24.16% and 39.46%, for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively; risk-free
interest rate of 4.50% 5.25% and 4.25% for 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively, and expected lives of
the options of seven y :ars in all years presented. There were no cish dividends in any years presented.
A 6% stock dividend ‘vas distributed on May 16, 2006, and a 7% ;itock dividend that was distributed on
March 30, 2007. The \seighted average fair value amounts reflect this dividend, as well as the 3 for 2
stock splits distributed on January 18, 2006, and March 1, 2004.

Net Income Per Share—Basic income per share represents income available to common }
stockholders divided ty the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted income per st are reflects additional common shares that 'wwould have been outstanding if
dilutive potential com:non shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that would
result from the assumd issuance. Potential common shares that nay be issued by the Company relate
solely to outstanding «tock options, and are determined using the :reasury stock method.
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The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted per
share computations for net income for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
Net income, asreported . ... § 4060 $ 4060 § 4052 § 4052 § 2835 § 2835
Preferred stock dividends
paid ........... .. ... (626) — — — — —
Grant of employee stock
options .. ............. — — — — 32 32
Net income available to
shareholders ......... T 3434 4060 § 4052 $ 4052 $ 2867 $ 2,867
Weighted average shares ‘
outstanding . . . .. ....... 3,696,464 3,696,464 3,615,022 3,615,022 3,142,035 3,142,035
Effect of Dilutive Securities:
Stock options and warrants — 657,328 — 709,539 — 191,725
Noncumulative convertible .
perpetual preferred stock — 493,253 — — — —
Weighted average shares
outstanding . . . ......... 3,006,464 4,847,045 3,615,022 4,324,561 3,142,035 3,933,760
Net income per common .
share ................ $ 093 § 084 § 112 § 094 § 090 $ 0.73

Twenty-one antidilutive instruments were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per
share above,

In order to arrive at basic net income available to common shareholders, net income is reduced by
the amount of preferred stock dividends declared for that period. This approach reflects the preferred
stock dividend as if it were an expense so that its impact to the common shareholder is not obscured by
its inclusion in retained earnings. Dilutive common shares arise from the potentially dilutive effect of
our cutstanding stock options and warrants, as well as the conversion of our convertible perpetual
preferred stock. The assumed exercise of stock options and warrants and the conversion of preferred
stock create a difference between basic and diluted net income per common share. The average diluted
shares have been computed utilizing the “treasury stock” method and reflect the 3-for-2 stock split
distributed on January 18, 2006, the 6% stock dividend distributed on May 15, 2006, and the 7% stock
dividend distributed on March 30, 2007. The weighted average shares outstanding exclude 13,781
common shares of treasury stock purchased through our share repurchase program during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2007. '

On March 2, 2007, the Company’s board of directors declared a 7% stock dividend to shareholders
of record on March 16, 2007. The 7% stock dividend was paid on March 30, 2007. The 2006
shareholders’ equity, share and per share data reflect the 7% dividend. The number of outstanding
shares increased from 3,458,354 to 3,700,439.
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On April 18, 2006 the Company’s board of directors approved a 6% stock dividend on the
Company’s outstanding stock. The dividend was distributed on Mar 16, 2006. The number of
outstanding shares inci zased from 3,130,767 to 3,318,355, All share amounts for periods prior to the
dividend have been restated to reflect this dividend, as well as the two 3 for 2 splits.

On December 30, 2005, the Company’s board of directors approved a 3 for 2 split of the
Company’s outstanding stock. The split was distributed on January 18, 2006. The number of
outstanding shares inci zased from 2,087,178 to 3,130,767.

Comprehensive Income—Accounting principles generally requin: that recognized revenue, expenses,
gains and losses be inc uded in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as
unrealized gains and lc sses on available-for-sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the
equity section of the b.\lance sheet, such items, along with net income, are components of
comprehensive income

Recently Adopted A counting Standards—In September 2006, the: FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair
Value Measurements” “SFAS 157). SFAS 157 defines fair value, :stablishes a framework for
measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. This standard eliminates inconsistencies found in various prior pronouncements
but does not require a1y new fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for the Company on
January 1, 2008 and will not impact the Company’s accounting me:isurements but it is expected o
result in additional dis losures.

In September 2001, The FASB ratified the consensuses reached by the FASB’s Emerging Issues
Task Force (“EITF”) r:lating to EITF 06-4, “Accounting for the Dz:ferred Compensation and
Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Isurance Arrangements”

(“EITF 06-4"). Entitie . purchase life insurance for various reasons including protection against loss of
key employees and to und postretirement benefits. The two most ommon types of life insurance
arrangements are endc rsement split dollar life and collateral assigr ment split dollar life. EITF 06-4
covers the former and EITF 06-10 (discussed below) covers the latier. EITF (06-4 states that entities
with endorsement split dollar life insurance arrangements that provide a benefit to an employee that
extends to posiretiremi:nt periods should recognize a liability for fiture benefits in accordance with
SFAS No. 106, “Emplc yers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefit: Other Than Pensions,” (if, in
substance, a postretireinent benefit plan exists} or Accounting Prin:iples Board (“APB”) Opinion

No. 12, “Omnibus Opi1ion—1967" (if the arrangement is, in substince, an individual deferred
compensation contract . Entities should recognize the effects of applying this Issue through either (a) a
change in accounting frinciple through a cumulative-effect adjustir ent to retained earnings or to other
components of equity «r net assets in the statement of financial pcsition as of the beginning of the year
of adoption or (b) a cl ange in accounting principle through retrospective application to all prior
periods. EITF 06-4 is « ffective for the Company on January 1, 2003. The Company does not believe the
adoption of EITF 06-4 will have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

In September 20{:), the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 06-5, “Accounting for
Purchases of Life Insu ance—Determining the Amount That Coulll Be Realized in Accordance with
FASB Technical Bullet n No. 85-4, Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance” (“EITF 06-57).

EITF 06-5 states that : policyholder should consider any additional amounts included in the contractual
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terms of the insurance policy other than the cash surrender value in determining the amount that could
be realized under the insurance contract. EITF 06-5 also states that a policyholder should determine
the amount that could be realized under the life insurance contract assuming the surrender of an
individual-life by individual-life policy (or certificate by certificate in a group policy). EITF 06-5 is
effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. The Company does not believe the adoption of

EITF 06-5 will have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows,

In March 2007, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 06-10, “Accounting for
Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements” (“EITF 06-10”). The postretirement
aspect of this EITF is substantially similar to EITF (6-4 discussed above and requires that an employer
recognize a liability for the postretirement benefit related to a collateral assignment split-dollar life
insurance arrangement in accordance with either FASB Statement No. 106 or APB Opinion No. 12, as
appropriate, if the employer has agreed to maintain a life insurance policy during the employee’s
retirement or provide the employee with a death benefit based on the substantive agreement with the
employee. In addition, a consensus was reached that an employer should recognize and measure an
asset based on the nature and substance of the collateral assignment split-dollar life insurance
arrangement. EITF 06-10 is effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. The Company does not
believe the adoption of EITF 06-10 will have a material impact on its financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (“SFAS 159). This
statement permits, but does not require, entities to measure many financial instruments at fair value.
The objective is to provide entities with an opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings
caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge
accounting provisions. Entities electing this option will apply it when the entity first recognizes an
eligible instrument and will report unrealized gains and losses on such instruments in current earnings.
This statement 1} applies to all entities, 2) specifies certain election dates, 3) can be applied on an
instrument-by-instrument basis with some exceptions, 4) is irrevocable and 5) applies only to entire
instruments. One exception is demand deposit liabilities which are explicitly excluded as qualifying for
fair value. With respect to SFAS 1185, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities at the effective
date are eligible for the fair value option at that date. If the fair value option is elected for those
securities at the effective date, cumulative unrealized gains and losses at that date shall be included in
the cumulative-effect adjustment and thereafter, such securities will be accounted for as trading
securities. SEAS 159 is efiective for the Company on Januvary 1, 2008. The Company is currently
analyzing the fair value option that is permitted, but not required, under SFAS 159.

In June 2007, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the EITF with respect to EITF 06-11,
“Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards” (“EITF 06-117).
Under EITF 06-11, a realized income tax benefit from dividends or dividend equivalents that are
charged to retained earnings and are paid to employees for equity-classified nonvested equity shares,
nonvested equity share units and outstanding equity share options should be recognized as an increase
in additional paid-in capital. This EITF is to be applied prospectively to the income tax benefits that
result from dividends on equity-classified employee share-based payment awards that are declared
beginning in 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early application is permitted. The
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Company does not believe the adoption of EITF {)6-11 will have i1 material impact on its financial
position, results of op :rations or cash flows.

In November 20( 7, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™) issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No, 109, “Wiitten Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings”
(“SAB 109”). SAB 107 expresses the current view of the SEC stalf that the expected net future cash
flows related to the a: sociated servicing of the loan should be included in the measurement of all
written loan commitir ents that are accounted for at fair value through earnings. SEC registrants are
expected to apply this guidance on a prospective basis to derivative loan commitments issued or
modified in the first cuarter of 2008 and thereafter. The Company is currently analyzing the impact of
this guidance, which 1:lates to the Company’s mortgage loans hell for sale.

In December 20( 7, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations,”
(“SFAS 141(R)”) which replaces SFAS 141, SFAS 141(R) establishes principles and requirements for
how an acquirer in a susiness combination recognizes and measuies in its financial statements the
identifiable assets acq lired, the liabilities assumed, and any contrdlling interest; recognizes and
measures goodwill acc uired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase; and
determines what infor mation to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the
nature and financial ¢ ffects of the business combination. FAS 141iR) is effective for acquisitions by the
Company taking place on or after January 1, 2009. Early adoptior is prohibited. Accordingly, a
calendar year-end cor pany is required to record and disclose bus ness combinations foilowing existing
accounting guidance  ntil January 1, 2009. The Company will assess the impact of SFAS 141(R} if and
when a future acguisi ion occurs.

In December 20G7, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Nonconirolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements- -an amendment of ARB No. 517 (“SFAS 1¢0”). SFAS 160 establishes new
accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the
deconsolidation of a sabsidiary. Before this statement, limited guilance existed for reporting
noncontrolling interes s (minority interest). As a result, diversity in practice exists. In some cases
minority interest is rejorted as a liability and in others it is reporied in the mezzanine section between
liabilities and equity. !ipecifically, SFAS 160 requires the recognition of a noncontrolling interest
(minority interest) as :quity in the consolidated financials statements and separate from the parent’s
equity. The amount o "net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest will be included in
consolidated net incoi1e on the face of the income statement. SFAS 160 clarifies that changes in a
parent’s ownership intzrest in a subsidiary that do not result in deconsolidation are equity transactions
if the parent retains i1s controlling financial interest. In addition, (his statement requires that a parent
recognize gain or loss in net income when a subsidiary is deconsoiidated. Such gain or loss will be
measured using the fair value of the noncontrolling equity investn ent on the deconsolidation date.
SFAS 160 also includes expanded disclosure requirements regarding the interests of the parent and its
noncontrolling interes s. SFAS 160 is effective for the Company on January 1, 2009. Earlier adoption is
prohibited. The Company is currently evaluating the 1mpact if ary, the adoption of SFAS 160 will have
on its consolidated financial statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or propose ] by the FASB or other standards-
setting bodies are not expected to have a material impact on the (Zompany’s financial position, results
of operations or cash Jows.
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The following summarizes supplemental cash flow data for the years ended December 31 (dollars
in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Interest paid ........ e e $22,623 $14,126 $7,747
Cash paid for income taxes. . .. ... ot e e 2,188 2313 1,387
Change in fair value of securities available for sale, net of income tax. . .. 503 206 (502)
Loans transferred to other real estate owned, net of write downs of $44 . . 2,320 — —

Note 3—Restrictiens on Cash and Due from Banks

The Bank is required to maintain average reserve balances, net of vault cash, with the Federal
Reserve Bank (“FRB”) based upon a percentage of deposits. The amount of the required reserve
balance which is reported in “Cash and due from banks” on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets at December 31, 2007 and 2006, was $3,124,000 and $1,593,000, respectively.

Note 4—Investment Securities

The amortized cost, fair value and gross unrealized holding gains and losses of securities available
for sale at December 31, 2007 and 2006, consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

2007
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Loss Value
U.S. Government/government sponsored agencies. . .. .. .. $10,635 $ — $ (68) $10,567
Mortgage-backed securities . .. ....... ... ... L. 42,891 357 {207) 43,041
Municipal securities . ... ... ... ... ... i 16,948 72 (98) 16,922
Total. ..o $70,474 $429 $(373)  $70,530
2006
Gross Gross
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Loss Value
U.S. Government/government sponsored agencies. . ... ... $13,969 $ — $(236) $13,733
Mortgage-backed securities .. ... ... .. e .. 36,729 120 (572) 36,277
Municipal securities . ...... ... .. . i 13,382 35 (53) 13,364
Total. ..o $64,080 $155 $(861) $63,374

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, securities with a carrying value of approximately $60.5 million
and $61.3 million respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes required
or permitted by law, including as collateral for FHLB advances outstanding.
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Note 4—Investment & ecurities (Continued)

The following tat le shows gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment
category, and length « f time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss
position at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 (dollars in thousands).

2007
Securities available for sale:
Less than 12 months _2 months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses __: ‘alue Losses Value Losses
U.S. Government/gov-:rnment sponsored
AEENCIES . . . vt $3,131 $ @ $ 6,436 $ (64) $ 9,567 $ (68)
Mortgage-backed secvrities . ... ... ... 2,025 (36) 14,416 (171) 16,441 207
Municipal securities ... ............ 4,760 (49 2,881 (49) 7,641 (98)
Total ............ ... ... ...... $9.916 $(89) §3,733 $(284)  $33,649 $(373)
2006
Secu rities available for sale:
Less than 12 months .2 months or more Total
Fair  Unrealized  Fair  Unrealized  Fair  Unrealized
Value Losses ___‘ falue Losses Value Losses
U.S. Government/gov :rnment sponsored
AENCIES . ... v it e $1,967 $(2) §$8267 $(233) $10,234  $(236)
Mortgage-backed secirities . . .. ... ... 4,482 (18) :0,477 (554) 24,959 (572)
Municipal securities .. ......... ..., 4,681 (26) 1576 (28) 6,257 (33)
Total ............ ... ... .. ..., $1,130 $(46) $_ 0,320 $(815) $41,450 $(861)

At December 31, 2007, thirty-eight individual securities had teen in a continuous loss position for
twelve months or moie. At December 31, 2006, forty-three indivicual securities had been in a
continuous loss position for twelve months or more. The Company has the ability and intent to hold
these securities until ruch time as the value recovers or the securities mature. The Company believes,
based on industry anclyst reports and the credit ratings of the sec irities, that the deterioration in value
is attributable to char ges in market interest rates and not in the credit quality of the issuer and,
therefore, these losse: are not considered other-than-temporary.

The amortized ct st and estimated fair value of investment se:urities available for sale at
December 31, 2007, by contractual maturity are shown in the following table. Expected maturities may
differ from contractu: | maturities because issuers may have the riht to call or repay obligations with or
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Note 4—Investment Securities (Continued)

without prepayment penalties. Fair value of securities was determined using quoted market prices
(dollars in thousands).

2007
Amortized Fair

Cost Value .

Due withinone year . ........ ... iiiteenennnn.n. $ 1,000 $ 998
Due after one year, through five years .. ................. 8,026 7,975
Due after five years, through tenyears .. .. ............... 6,351 6,347
Duc after ten years . . ... .. e e e 12,206 12,169
Subtotal ... e 27,583 27489
Mortgage-backed securities . .......... .. ... ... ... 42,891 43,041
Total . . e $70,474  $70,530

Note 5—Investments Required by Law

The Bank, as a member of the FRB and the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) is required to
own capital stock in these organizations. The Bank’s equity investments required by law are included in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets in “Other assets.” The amount of FRB stock owned is
based on the Bank’s capital levels and totaled $966,000 and $602,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The amount of FHLB stock owned is determined based on the Bank’s balances of
commercial loans, residential mortgages and advances from the FHLB and totaled $2,721,000 and
$2,356,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. No ready market exists for these stocks and
they have no quoted market value. However, redemption of these stocks has historically been at par
value. Accordingly, the carrying amounts are deemed to be a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Note 6—Loans
A summary of loans by classification at December 31 is as follows (dollars in thousands):
December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
% of Total % of
Amount <l> Amount Total
Commercial and industrial . ... ... ..... ... ....... .. $ 34,435 6.97% $ 25,604 6.75%
Commercial secured by real estate . ... ................ 322,807 65.33% 261,961 69.03%
Real estate—residential mortgages. . .. ................ 111,490 2256% 86,022 22.67%
Installment and other consumerloans ................. 6,496 1.32% 6,458 1.70%
Total loans . ... ... . . . 475,228 380,045
Mortgage loans held forsale . . ...................... 19,408 393% - —
Unearned inCome . . ..., ..ot s (543) (0.11%) (555) (0.15%)
Total loans, net of unearned income . ..... PUDREERN . 494,093  100.00% 379,490 100.00%
Less allowance for loan losses <2> ... .............. (4.951) 1.04%  (3,795) 1.00%
Total loans, Net . . ... . o.ouit e $489,142 $375,695 '

<1> As a % of total loans includes mortgage loans held for sale.
<2> Loan loss allowance % of total loans excludes mortgage loans held for sale.
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Note 6—Loans (Contiaued)

Approximately $242,319,000 of the loans were variable interett rate loans at December 31, 2007.
The remaining portfolio was comprised of fixed interest rate loans.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, $12,000,000 and $477,000 in loans were on nonaccrual status,
respectively. Due to ricent developments, since December 31, 2007, $5,000,000 in nonperforming assets
has been recognized gnd is retroactively reflected in the $12,000,0)0 total. Foregone interest income on
these nonaccrual loan: and other nonaccrual loans charged off du:ing the year was approximately
$139,000, $24,000, anc $21,600 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. There were no loans contractually
past due in excess of "0 days and still accruing interest at Decemt er 31, 2007 or 2006. There were
impaired loans under the criteria defined in FAS 114, of $8,900,0(0 and $776,000 with related valuation
allowances of $655,00i) and $167,000 at December 31, 2007 and 21106, respectively.

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2007, the Bank foreclosed on four real properties,
two of which previous y served as collateral for SBA loans, a thir¢ with commercial real estate
collateral, and the fourth a personal residence. In connection with the SBA foreclosures, the Bank
recognized approxima ely $44,000 in loan losses in order to reduc: the carrying value of these
properties to $481,50(, or an amount that the Bank believes approximates their fair market value, net
of costs to sell the property. These amounts are net of the SBA giarantee on these loans. For the
remaining properties, the estimated fair value of the properties exceeds our book value, and therefore
no write down was re [uired at the loans’ transfer to “Other real ¢state owned.” The balance of
$2,320,000 in other real estate owned is included in the balance slieet caption “Other assets” as of
December 31, 2007. The cost of owning the properties was minimal for the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2007.

Qualifying loans 1eld by the bank and collateralized by 1-4 fz hlily residences, home equity lines of
credit (“HELOC’s”) : nd commercial properties totaling $56,988,000 were pledged as collateral for
FHLB advances outst inding of $41,690,000 at December 31, 2007. At December 31, 2006, qualifying
loans held by the ban : and collateralized by 1-4 family residences HELOC’s and commercial
properties totaling $5'',678,000 were pledged as collateral for FHI.B advances outstanding of
$37,476,000.

Changes in the a lowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31 were as follows (dollars
in thousands):

2007 2006 2005

Balance, beginning of year ............. ... ... ... $3,795 $2,719 $2,258
Provision ch urged tooperations. . .. ................ 1,396 1,192 594
Loanscharg:doff.......... ... ... L. (250 (139) (144)
Recoveries ¢n loans previously charged off. . .. ... ... .. 10 23 11
Balance, enc of year. ... . ... ..ot $4,951 $3,795 $2,719

Directors, execut ve officers and associates of such persons a'e customers of and have transactions
with the Bank in the >rdinary course of business. Included in such transactions are outstanding loans
and commitments, all of which are made under substantially the ¢ame credit terms, including interest
rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparabl transactions with unrelated persons
and do not involve m re than the normal risk of collectability.
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Note 6—~Loans (Continued)

The aggregate dollar amount of these outstanding loans was approximately $15.2 million and
$12.9 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. During 2007, new loans and advances on
these lines of credit totaled approximately $7.6 million and payments on these loans and lines totaled
approximately $5.3 million. At December 31, 2007, there were unfunded commitments and
commitments to extend additional credit to related parties in the amount of approximately $4.7 million.

Under current Federal Reserve regulations, the Bank is limited to the amount it may loan to the
Company. Loans made by the Bank may not exceed 10% and loans to all affiliates may not exceed
20% of the Bank’s capital, surplus and undivided profits, after adding back the allowance for loan
losses. There were no loans outstanding between the Bank and the Company at December 31, 2007 or
2006.

Note 7—Premises and Equipment

A summary of premises and equipment at December 31 is as follows (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
Land .. ..o e $ 150 $1,793
Building and improvements . . ............ ... ... . 0. .. 3,747 3,088
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ....................... 617 2,077
Construction in PTOZIESS . . . v v v ve v e e e oo e ae e 12 1,446
Subtotal ...... ... ... ... ... 4,526 8,404
Accumulated depreciation . .. ... ... .. . oo o oo (1,552) (1,498)
Total ... e $2974 $ 6,900

Depreciation expense charged to operations totaled $545,000, $409,000, and $269,000 in 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. '

The Bank entered into a long-term land operating lease during 2000, which had an initial term of
20 years and various renewal options under substantially the same terms. During 2007, the Company
executed two salefleaseback transactions (see Note 8—Sale/Leaseback Transactions for further details),
resulting in increased rental expense for the year. Rent expense charged to operations totaled $812,000,
$53,000 and $51,000 for each of the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. In
addition, the Bank currently has short-term operating leases for certain branch facilities and loan
production offices. The annual minimum rental commitments under the terms of the Company’s
noncancellable leases at December 31, 2007, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

2008 . e e e $ 889
2000 . L e e e e e e e e e 872
2000 . e e e e e e e e e 879
1.3 1 879
200 L e e e e e e 883
Therealter . ... .. o e e e e 15,192

Total ... e e $19,574
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Note 8—Sale/Leaseb: ck Transactions

In February of 2)07, the Bank entered into a transaction with a related party entity to sell and
subsequently lease b: ck from the entity certain real properties pieviously owned by the bank. The sales
price for the propert es was $5,450,000. In connection with the szle, the Bank agreed to lease back the
properties from the jurchaser for an initial term of twenty-five y::ars with one five-year option to renew
at the option of the 3ank. The terms of the lease portion of the Agreement call for monthly rental
payments of $38,604 during the initial term under a triple-net le se that will be accounted for as an
operating lease unde : the provisions of Financial Accounting Staadard (“FAS”) No. 13, “Accounting for
Leases (as amended..” If the Bank exercises the option to renew the lease as described above, the
monthly rental paym :nts will be adjusted to reflect the increase, if any, in the Consumer Price Index
between the date of the Agreement and the date of commencer ent of the renewal term. The
sale-leaseback transaction resulted in a minimal gain. The Bank will recognize the gain over a
straight-line basis ov :r the initial lease term of twenty-five years.

The related par y entity, First National Holdings, LLC, is a limited liability company owned by
nine investors who also serve as directors of our company and o1r bank. Each investor/director has a
one-ninth interest in the limited liability company. The transaction was approved by the board of
directors of our ban : subsidiary and complies with the NASDAQ Global Market listing standards,
applicable SEC Rulis, and our own internal policies and proced ires.

In October of 207, the Bank entered into a transaction with a related party entity to sell,
purchase and lease 1¢al properties located at 651 Johnnie Dodd: Boulevard, Mt. Pleasant, SC, 3401
Pelham Road, Gree wille, SC and 713 W. Wade Hampton Boulevard, Greer, SC for a price of
$3.6 million. The re il property located at 3401 Pelham Road, G:eenville, SC consists of the Bank’s
Greenville County riarket headquarters and a full-service branch. The real properties located at 651
Johnnie Dodds Bou evard, Mt. Pleasant, SC and 713 W. Wade Flampton Boulevard, Greer, SC are
full-service branche:. In connection with the sale/leaseback, the Bank agreed to lease back the real
properties from the Purchaser for an initial term of twenty-five sears with one five-year option to renew
at the Bank’s optior . The remal payments for the properties eqaal $24,375 per month during the initial
term. This transactiom resulted in a loss; which the Bank will re:ognize over a straight-line basis over
the initial lease terr1 of twenty-five years.

In connection 1/ith the sale, the Bank agreed to lease back the properties from the purchaser for
an initial term of tv enty-five years with one five-year option to renew at the option of the Bank. The
terms of the lease | ortion of the Agreement call for monthly rental payments of $24,375 using a
capitalization rate f 8.125% of the agreed upon purchase price of $3.6 million which was derived using
third-party indepen lent appraisais. This monthly rental applies -during the initial term under a triple-net
lease that will be accounted for as an operating lease under the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standaids (“SFAS”) No. 13, “Accounting for Lease: (as amended).” If the Bank exercises
the option to renev the lease as described above, the monthly rental payments will be adjusted to
reflect the increase if any, in the Consumer Price Index between the date of the Agreement and the
date of commencerient of the renewal term.

The related party entity, First National Holdings II, LLC, :s a limited liability corporation owned
by eight investors v'ho also serve as our non-management directors. Each investor/director has a one/
eighth interest in the limited liability corporation. The transaction was approved by the board of
directors of our ba 1k subsidiary and complies with the NASDAQ Global Market listing standards,
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Note 8—Sale/Leaseback Transactions (Continued)

applicable SEC Rules, and our own internal policies and procedures. We plan to continue to conduct
our normal banking operations out of the real properties without interruption,

As part of our strategy to minimize our nonearning assets, we may exercise future sale/leaseback
transactions for the remaining properties owned by our bank. As part of our growth and expansion
strategy, we may contract to acquire additional sites in the future to further expand our branch network
and support infrastructure growth. We analyze each transaction to determine whether owning or leasing
the real property is the most efficient method of ownership of these properties and may contract to sell
and lease back future acquired sites. .

Note 9—Deposits

The aggregate amount of time deposits with a minimum denomination of $100,000 was
approximately $176.0 million and $130.0 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The scheduled maturities of time deposits at December 31 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

2007
Oneyear or less . .. ... i e e $235,126
From one yearto three years .. . ...... ... .. .. ... .. . . 55,274
Afterthree years . . . ... oo e s 2,691
Total . e e e $293,091

Note 10—Lines of Credit

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Bank had short-term lines of credit with correspondent banks
to purchase unsecured federal funds totaling $59.5 million and $30.0 million, respectively. The interest
rate on any borrowings under these lines would be the prevailing market rate for federal funds
purchased. :

In addition, during the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company established a line of credit with a
correspondent bank. The line of credit, in an amount up to $15,000,000, has a twelve-year final
maturity with interest payable quarterly at a floating rate tied to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate.
The terms of the line include two years of quarterly interest payments followed by ten years of annual
principal payments plus quarterly interest payments on the outstanding. principal balance as of
December 31, 2009. The line of credit was secured in connection with the terms of the Merger
Agreement, dated August 26, 2007, between First National and Carolina National, to support the cash
consideration of the Merger and to fund general operating expense for the next two years.

Note 11—FHLB Advances

The Bank has the ability to borrow up to 20% of its total assets from the FHLB as of
December 31, 2007, limited to gualifying collateral. Borrowings under this arrangement can be made
with various terms and repayment schedules and with fixed or variable rates of interest. The borrowings
under this arrangement are available by pledging collateral and may require additional purchases of
stock in the FHLB.

Qualifying loans held by the bank and collateralized by 1-4 family residences, HELOC’s and
commercial properties totaling $56,988,000 were pledged as collateral for FHLB advances outstanding
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Note 11—FHLB Advz nces (Continued)

of $41,690,000, and le¢ tters of credit totaling $15,000,000 pledged 10 a public depositor at December 31,
2007. At December 31, 2006, qualifying loans held by the bank ar d collateralized by 1-4 family
residences, HELOC’s and commercial properties totaling $57,698 000 were pledged as collateral for

' FHLB advances outst anding of $37,476,000, and letters of credit iotaling $15,000,000 pledged to a
public depositor.

At December 31 2007, fixed rate FHLB advances outstanding ranged from $1 million to
$1.8 million with initi 1l maturities of five to seven years and rates of 3.91% to 4.01%. At December 31,
| 2007, advances totalin g $22.5 million were subject to call features at the option of the FHLB with call
| dates ranging from A pril 2007 to May 2009 and current rates of .92% to 4.95%. Advances totaling
: $15 million at Decerr ber 31, 2007, were at variable rates based on three-month LIBOR and prime and
‘ were priced from 4.39% 1o 4.96% as of year end, depending on tae reset date.

The following tale lists a summary of the terms and contractual maturities for the advances as of
December 31, 2007 ( loilars in thousands).

2007 Amount

Due in 2008 . ... e e e e $10,000
Due in 2008 .. e e e, 1,000
Due in 2010 . . .. e e e e e e —_
Pue in 201 . .. e e e e 6,643
Due in 2010 . . . e e e e e 11,547
Thereafter . e e e e e e e e e e 12,500

Total .. e e e e e $41,690

Note 12—Income Ta:es

The following is a summary of the items which caused recoried income taxes to differ from taxes
computed using the : tatutory tax rate for the periods ended Dec:mber 31 (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006 2005

Income tax expense at federal statutory rate of 34% .. .. $2,074 $2,090 $1,461
State incom e tax, net of federal effect . ... ........ . 139 146 89
Tax-exermpt securities income. . . ... ................ (190) (108) (89)
Bank-ownel life insurance earnings . .. .............. (45) (42) 35)
Other, NEL . . e i i e e e e e 61 9 35

INCOME tAX EXPENSE . o v v v v v it i e e e eannas $2,039 $2,095 $1,461
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Note 12—Income Taxes (Continued)

The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31 is as follows (dollars in
thousands): .
2007 2006 2005

Current:
Federal. . . ... o i $2,193  $2,258 $1,393
State . ... e e 211 221 134
Total ..o U ' $2,404 $2,479 $1,527

Deferred:
Federal. . ... .. it $(365) $(384) § (68)
State . e e — — 2
Total .. $(365) $(384) $§ (66)
Provision for income taxes .. ............irn.... $2,039 $2,095 §1,461

The components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 are as follows (dollars in
thousands):

2007 2006
Deferred tax liability:
Net deferred 10an €OStS . . . v v vttt e i it e e $ 98 § 93
Prepaid expenses deducted currently fortax . .......... e 95 - 62
Tax depreciation in excessof book . .. .................... 148 166
Loan servicing rights . ...... ... ... ... i i, 112 109
Unrealized gain on securities available forsale. .. ........ ... 19 —
Other ... e S 18 — .
Total deferred tax liability ................. e e 490 430
Deferred tax asset: '
Allowance forloan losses . .......... ... . $1,625 $1,221
Unrealized loss on securities available forsale ... ........... — 240
Other ... e e e e 3 1
Total deferred tax asset. .. ......... ... i ininenn., 1,628 1,462
Net deferred tax asset . .. ... vv vt ittt it it e e $1,138 §1,032

The net deferred tax asset is included in “Other assets” in the accompanying consclidated balance
sheets.

The Company has analyzed the tax positions taken or expected to be taken in its tax returns and
concluded it has no liability related to uncertain tax positions in accordance with FIN 48.

Deferred tax assets represent the future tax benefit of deductible differences and, if it is more
likely than not that a tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is required to reduce the
recorded deferred tax assets to net realizable value. As of December 31, 2007 -and 2006, management
determined that it was more likely than not that all tax assets will be realized and no valuation
allowance is appropriate. As of December 31, 2005, in consideration of the lack of an established
earnings history, management provided valuation allowances of approximately 11% to reflect its
estimate of net realizable value as of that date. The net deferred asset is included in “other assets” in
the balance sheet,
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Note 12—Income Ta) es (Continued)

A portion of the change in the net deferred tax asset relates to the change of $259,000 in the tax
effect of the unrealiz :d gain on securities available for sale. The remainder of the change in the net
deferred tax asset is «lue to the current period deferred tax beneiit of $365,000.

Note 13—Noncumul: tive Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock ')ffering

On July 3, 2007, we priced for sale 720,000 shares of our 7.25% Series A Noncumulative Perpetual
Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock™), at $25.00 per share thrcugh an underwritten public offering.
Keefe, Bruyette & W oods, Inc. served as sole underwriter and manager for the offering. Our net
proceeds after paymu nt of underwriting discounts and other cost:. of the offering were approximately
$16.5 million. We ha e used the net proceeds from the offering for general corporate purposes, which
include, among othes things, providing additional capital to the bank subsidiary to support asset growth
and the expansion of the bank’s branch network, to repay a line of credit and to fund lean growth. The
offering closed on July 9, 2007. A registration statement relating to these securities was filed with, and
declared effective by the SEC as of June 26, 2007.

Subject to certain limitations, the net proceeds received in the Preferred Stock offering qualifies as
Tier 1 capital for caj ital adequacy calculations (see “Capital Resources” in the MD&A section for
further discussion of capital). This injection of capital positions t1e bank for the future growth through
the expansion of its hranch network. The Preferred Stock features a conversion option at any time into
shares of our commd n stock at an initial conversion price of $17 50 per share of common stock, subject
to adjustment. This < onversion price is also subject to anti-diluticn adjustments upon the occurrence of
certain events. The 1 umber of shares of common stock issuable "1pon conversion of each share of
Preferred Stock will 2e equal to $25.00 divided by the conversion price then in effect. The Preferred
Stock is redeemable at our option at any time, in whole or in part, on and after the third anniversary
of the issue date, at $26.50 per share, plus declared and unpaid dividends, if any, with the redemption
price declining in eqial increments on a quarterly basis to $25.00 per share on or after the fifth
anniversary of the is:ue date. The Preferred Stock is also redeemable by us at the redemption price of
$25.00 per share if t 1e last reported sale price of our common siock has equaled or exceeded 140% of
the Preferred Stock :onversion price for at least 20 consecutive ‘rading days. During the year ended
December 31, 2007, cash dividends of $626,000 were declared ar.d paid to preferred stock shareholders.

Note 14—Regulator Capital Requirements and Dividend Restrictions

The Company (on a consolidated basis} and the Bank are s ibject to various regulatory capital
requirements admin stered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital
requirements can in tiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators
that, if undertaken, :ould have a material effect on the financial statements. Under capital ad=quacy
guidelines and the r:gulatory framework for prompt corrective ¢ction, the Company and the Bank must
meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain
off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s and the
Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators
about components, : isk weightings, and other factors. Prompt ccrrective action provisions are not
applicable to bank I olding companies.
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Note 14—Regulatory Capital Requirements and Dividend Restrictions (Continued)

The Company and the Bank are required to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total
risk-based capital, Tier 1 capital, and Tier 1 leverage capital (as defined in the regulations) as set forth
in the following table. Management believes, as of December 31, 2007, that the Company and the Bank
meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject. At December 31, 2007, the Bank is
categorized as “well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There
are no current conditions or events that management believes would change the Company’s or the
Bank’s category.

The following table presents the Company’s and the Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, as well as the minimum calculated amounts for each regulatory-defined
category (dollars in thousands).

Minimum to be

Categorized as
Well Capitalized

For Capital Under Prompt
Adequacy Corrective Action
Actual Purposes Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2007
The Company
Total capital to risk-weighted assets . ...... $65,514 13.48% $38,870 8.00% $ N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital risk-weighted assets . . . ... ... $56,387 11.61% $19435 4.00% $ N/A NA
Tier 1 capital to average assets . ... ....... $56,387  9.75% $23,130 4.00% $ N/A N/A
The Bank
Total capital to risk-weighted assets . ...... $52,137 10.72% $38,911 8.00% $48,639 10.00%
Tier 1 capital risk-weighted assets . .. ...... $47,186  9.70% $19,455 4.00% $29,183 6.00%
Tier 1 capital to average assets . . . ........ $47,186  8.17% $23,093 4.00% $28,866 5.00%
As of December 31, 2006
The Company
Total capital to risk-weighted assets . ...... $43,244 11.13% $31,091 800% $ N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital risk-weighted assets . .. ...... $34728 894% §15546 4.00% $ N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital to average assets . . . ........ $34,728  9.02% $15,397 4.00% $ N/A N/A
The Bank
Total capital to risk-weighted assets ....... $38,801 10.01% $31,081 8.00% 338,852 10.00%
Tier 1 capital risk-weighted assets. . .. ..... $35096  9.03% $15,541 4.00% $23,311 6.00%
Tier 1 capital to average assets. ... ....... $35,096  8.05% $17.439 4.00% $21,799 5.00%

The ability of the Company to pay cash dividends is dependent upon receiving cash in the form of
dividends from the Bank. The dividends that may be paid by the Bank to the Company are subject to
legal limitations and regulatory capital requirements. The approval of the Comptroller of the Currency
is required if the total of all dividends declared by a national bank in any calendar year exceeds the
Bank’s net profits (as defined by the Comptroller) for that year combined with its retained net profits
(as defined by the Comptroller) for the two preceding calendar years. As of December 31, 2007, no
cash dividends have been declared or paid by the Bank. ‘
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Note 15—]Junior Subordinated Debentures

The Company iss'ied trust preferred securities totaling $13 million through its statutory trust
subsidiaries, FNSC Capital Trust I, FNSC Statutory Trust I and FNSC Statutory Trust III, during 2003,
2004 and 2006, respec ively. On December 19, 2003, FNSC Capital Trust I issued and sold floating rate
trust preferred securit es having an aggregate liquidation amount of $3 million to institutional buyers in
a private placement o! trust preferred securities. On April 30, 2004, FNSC Statutory Trust II, issued an
additional $3 million tarough a pooled offering of trust preferred iecurities. On March 30, 2006, FNSC
Statutory Trust I1 (co lectively with FNSC Capital Trust 1 and FN3C Statutory Trust II [the “Trusts”]),
issued an additional $ 7 million through a pooled offering of trust sreferred securities. The Trusts also
issued common securi ies having an aggregate tiquidation amount of approximately 3% of the total
capital of the Trusts, ¢ r $403,000, to the Company.

The 2003, 2004 a'1d 2006 trust preferred securities accrue anc pay cumulative distributions
quarterly in arrears at a rate per annum equal to 90-day LIBOR plus 292 basis points, 90-day LIBOR
plus 270 basis points : nd 90-day LIBOR plus 145 basis points, resyectively. The Company has the right,
subject to events of d: fault, to defer payments of interest on the trust preferred securities for a period
not to exceed 20 cons :cutive quarters from the date of issuance. The Company has no current
intention to exercise t1is right. At December 31, 2007, the distribt tion rates on the 2003, 2004 and
2006 issuances were 8 15%, 7.69% and 6.44%, respectively.

The 2003, 2004 a1d 2006 trust preferred securities issues are nandatorily redeemable upon
maturity on Decembe - 19, 2033, April 30, 2034, and March 30, 2036, respectively. The Company has
the right to redeem tt em in whole or in part, on or after December 19, 2008, April 30, 2009, and
March 29, 2018, and : t any time thereafter, respectively. If they a:'e redeemed on or after these dates,
the redemption price vill be 100% of the principal amount plus a:crued and unpaid interest. In
addition, the Compan 7 may redeem any of these issuances in whole (but not in part) at any time within
90 days following the ccurrence of a tax event, an investment coinpany event, or a capital treatment
event at a special redcmption price (as defined in the indenture). The Trusts invested the gross
proceeds of $13 millic n from the issuance of the trust preferred si:curities and $403,000 from the
issuance of the comm n securities in an equivalent amount of flo:ting rate junior subordinated
debentures of the Coiapany or $13,403,000. The Company contributed the net proceeds from the
issuance of the subor: inated debentures of $13 million after purchase of the common securities for
$403,000 to the Bank for general corporate purposes. Issuance couts from the 2003 and 2004
transactions totaling §104,000 and $15,000, respectively, are being amortized over the anticipated life.

The junior suborlinated debentures are unsecured obligation; of the Company and are
subordinate and junio: in right of payment to all present and future senior indebtedness of the
Company. The Comp iy has entered into guarantees, which, together with its obligations under the
junior subordinated d :bentures and the declaration of trusts gove:ning the Trusts, provides full and
unconditional guarani zes of the trust preferred securities.

The common sec 1rities owned by the Company rank equal tc the trust preferred securities in
priority of payment. The common securities generally have sole voting power on matters to be voted
upon by the holders ¢ f the Trusts’ securities.

The junior subor linated debentures and the common securities are presented in the Company’s
financial statements a; liabilities and other assets, respectively. The trust preferred securities are a part
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Note 15—Junior Subordinated Debentures (Continued)

of the financial statements of the Trusts and they are not reflected in the Company’s financial
statements under the provisions of FIN 46r.

Note 16—Stock Compensation Plans

Effective March 6, 2000, the Company adopted the First National Bancshares, Inc. 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). Under the Plan, options are periodically granted to employees and
directors by the Company’s Board of Directors at the recommendation of its Personnel Committee at a
price not less than the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant. Options granted are
exercisable for a period of ten years from the date of grant and become exercisable at a rate of 20%
each year on the first five anniversaries of the date of grant. The Plan authorizes the granting of stock
options up to a maximum of 459,351 shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2007, 100,355
option shares were available to be granted under the Plan. As of December 31, 2007, based on a
market value of $13.14 per share, the aggregate intrinsic value for the outstanding stock options and
warrants was approximately $5.9 million. Unrecognized compensation expense on these options and
warrants to be recognized in the future was approximately $314,000 at December 31, 2007. These
amounts reflect each of the 3 for 2 stock splits distributed on January 18, 2006, and March 1, 2004, the
6% stock dividend distributed on May 16, 2006, and the 7% stock dividend distributed on March 30,
2007.

Upon consummation of the initial public offering, the organizers were issued stock warrants to
purchase 799,611 shares of common stock for $3.92 per share, of which 663,507 remain unexercised.
These warrants vested ratably over a five-year period beginning February 10, 2000, and are exercisable
in whole or in part during the ten-year period following that date.

The following is a summary of the activity under the plans for the years ended December 31:

2007 2006 2005

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Price Per Price Per Price Per

Shares Share Shares Share Shares Share

Outstanding, beginning of period . . . .. 991,248 $ 414 1,113,501  $4.37 1,086,705 $ 4.02
Granted ..................... 16,885 15.52 31,7115 379 32,325 15.12
Forfeited. . . ... .covrerann.. (5,955) 1171 (4,169)  4.16 (3,743)  8.46
Exercised ... ..ot (38,704) 471  (149,799) 395 (1,786)  6.93
QOutstanding, December 31. .. ... .. 963,474 § 4.89 091248  $4.14 1,113501 § 437
Exerciseable, December 31 . ... ..... 899,014 $ 3.95 921,592 $4.75 1,057272 § 397

101




FIRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, INC, 4AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006 {Continued)

Note 16—Stock Con pensation Plans (Continued)

The following t: ble summarizes information about stock opiions and warrants outstanding under
the stock-based optinn plans at December 31, 2007:

Outsts nding Exercisable

We ghted Weighted Weighted
Avrage Average Average
Number Ren aining Exercise Number Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Qutstanding  Contractual Life Price Exercisable Price
392 e 860,005 212 $ 392 860007 $392
$4.23 L 8,931 1.92 4.23 8,931 423
$5.29-8558 .. ... 3,827 496 5.49 3,781 5.48
$735-$940 . ... ... ... . 7,658 6.00 8.03 6,131 8.03
$10.35-81499 ... Lo 48,054 719 1330 21,764 13.44
$15.19-81689 . . . .. ...l 20,230 7.66 15.65 7,676 15.63
§17.05-$18.69 . .. ..o 14,766 8.59 1809 3835 1801
$3.92-31869. ... ... 963,474 237 $ 489 912,125 § 434

The above infor nation reflects each of the 3 for 2 stock splits distributed on January 18, 2006, and
March 1, 2004, as well as the 6% stock dividend distributed on May 16, 2006, and the 7% stock
dividend distributed on March 30, 2007.

Note 17—Employee lienefit Plans

The Company mr aintains an employee benefit plan for all elizible employees of the Company and
the Bank under the | rovisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k). The First National
Retirement Savings Flan (the “Savings Plan”} allows for employe: contributions and, upon annual
approval of the Boar 1 of Directors, the Company matches 50% c¢f employee contributions up to a
maximum of six perc:nt of annual compensation. Totals of $91,0(0, $68,000 and $45,000 were charged
to operations in 2007 2006, and 2003, respectively, for the Company’s matching contribution.
Employees are imme liately vested in their contributions to the Savings Plan and become fully vested in
the employer matchii g contribution after five years of service.

On May 31, 200, the Company adopted a leveraged Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP™)
for the exclusive bend fit of employee participants. Employees become vested in their account balances
after seven years of s :rvice.

On November 30, 2005, the Company loaned the ESOP $600,000 which was used to purchase
42,532 shares of the CCompany’s common stock. The ESOP shares initially were pledged as collateral
for its debt. As the di:bt is repaid, shares are released from collatzral and allocated to eligible
employees, based on he proportion of debt service paid in the year. At December 31, 2007, the ESOP
owned 44,912 shares »f the Company’s stock, of which 36,900 shares were pledged to secure th2 loan to
the Company. The re nainder of the shares was allocated to indiv dual accounts of participants. In
accordance with the 1:quirements of the SOP 93-6, the Company presented the shares that were
pledged as collateral .15 a deduction of $518,000 and $558,000 from shareholders’ equity at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, as unearned ESOP shires in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. The Eoard of Directors approved a $24,000 discretionary contribution paid to the
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Note 17—Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)

ESOP for the year ended December 31, 2005, which the Company recorded as compensation expense.
The Company also recorded $37,000 and $42,400 of expense during the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively, to reflect the fair market value of the shares allocated to eligible
employees. The fair market value of the unallocated shares was $558,884 as of December 31, 2007.

The Company made contributions during December 31, 2007 and 2006, of $66,824 and $68,740,
respectively, equal to the ESOP annual debt service. The note payable to the ESOP requires annual
principal payments plus interest at a fixed interest rate of 4.79%. Future principal payments will be
$40,000 until a final payment will be made on December 31, 2020.

During 2004, the Company also adopted a formal incentive compensation plan, the First National
Incentive Plan (the “FNIP”) for members of its management team. Approximately $354,000, $711,000
and $492,000 was expensed in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and paid in the subsequent year based
on achievement of individual and corporate performance goals.

Note 18—Commitments and Contingencies

“The Company entered into employment agreements with each of its three Executive Vice
Presidents that include an annually renewing two-year compensation term and one-year non-compete
agreements upon termination, '

In the normal course of business, the Company and the Bank are periodically subject to various
pending or threatened lawsuits in which claims for monetary damages may be asserted. At
December 31, 2007, the Company and the Bank were not involved with any material litigation matters.

See Note 7 for specifics on the Company’s lease commitments.

Note 19—Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course
of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit and involve, to varying degrees, elements of
credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet. The Company’s
exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument
for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual
amounts of those instruments.

The Company uses the same credit and collateral policies in making commitments and conditional
obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. The Company evaluates each customer’s
creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained if deemed necessary by the
Company upon extension of credit is based on management’s credit evaluation. Commitments to extend
credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established
in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and
may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments may expire without being drawn upon,
the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

At December 31, 2007, the Company's commitments to extend additional credit totaled
approximately $115.9 million, the majority of which are at variable rates of interest and expire within
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Note 19—Financial ] nstruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk (Continued)

one year. Included i the Company’s total commitments are standby letters of credit. Letters of credit
are commitments iss 1ed by the Company to guarantee the perfo:mance of a customer to a third party
and totaled $819,00C at December 31; 2007. The credit risk invo ved in the underwriting of letters of
credit is essentially t 1¢ same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Also included in
the Company’s total commitments are $15 million in letters of ciedit pledged to a public depositor.

Note 20—Fair Value of Financial Instrilments

SFAS No. 107, * Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” requires disclosure of fair
value information, wether or not recognized in the statement o financial position, when it is
practicable to estim: te fair value. SFAS No. 107 defines a ‘financial instrument as cash, evidence of an
ownership interest it an entity, or contractual obhgatlons which ‘require the exchange of cash or other
financial instrument: . Certain items which are specifically exclud:d from the disclosure requircments,
including the Comp: ny’s common stock, premises and equipment and other assets and liabilities.

Fair value apprcximates book value for the following financ al instruments due to the short-term
nature of the instrunient: cash and due from banks, interest-bearing bank balances, federal funds sold,
other stock investme nts, accrued interest feceivable, short-term I"HLB advances, federal funds
purchased and accrusd interest payable. Fair value of investmen'. securities is estimated based on
quoted market price ; where available. If quoted market prices a‘e not available, fair values are based
on quoted market p ices of comparable instruments. 8

Fair value for v.riable rate loans that reprice frequently anc. for loans that mature in less than one
year is based on the carrying value, reduced by an estimate of ciedit losses inherent in the portfolio.
Fair value of fixed r.te real estate, consumer, commercial and o her loans maturing after one year is
based on the discow ited present value of the estimated future cush flows, reduced by an estimate of
credit losses inherent in the portfolio. Discount rates-used in these computations approximate the rates
currently offered foi similar loans of comparable terms and crecit quality.

Fair value for d »mand deposit accounts and variable rate interest-bearing accounts with no fixed
maturity date is equil to the carrying value. Certificate of deposit accounts maturing durmg 2008 are
valued at their carrying value. Certificate of deposu accounts mg¢.turing after 2008 are estimated by
discounting cash flo'vs from expected maturities using current interest rates on similar instruments. Fair
value for long-term FHLB advances is based on discounted cash flows using the current market rate.
Fair value for the floating rate junior subordinated debentures i based on the carrying value.

The estimated jair market value of commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit are
equal to their carryiig value as the majority of these off-balance sheet instruments have relatively short
terms to maturity a1 d are generally written with variable rates of interest.

The Company lias used management’s best estimate of fair values based on the above as‘.umptlons.
Thus, the fair value: presented may not be the amounts which could be realized in an immediate sale
or settlement of the instrument. In addition, any income tax or »ther expense which would be incurred
in an actual sale or settlement is not taken into consideration in the fair value presented.
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Note 20—Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31 are as follows
(dollars in thousands): . : .

2007 2006

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Financial assets: , .
Cash and cash equivalents . ..................... $ 8426 $ 8426 $ 8205 § 8205

Securities available forsale ..................... 70,530 70,530 63,374 63,374
Investment in FHLB/FRB stock . .. ............... 3,687 3,687 3,075 3,075
Loans, Net . ....... ..t e 489,142 488,859 375,695 375,426
Accrued interest receivable and other . . ... ......... 15,441 15,441 11,202 11,202
Financial liabilities: ;
DepOSits . . oot $471,828 $469,984 $376,701 $390,366
FHLB advances. . . . ... .o v v i i in it ee i enanenn- 41,690 41,690 | 37476 37476
Junior subordinated debentures ... ... .. ... 13,403 13,403 13,403 13,403
Federal funds purchased ....................... 9,360 9360 7970 7,970
Accrued interest payable and other ... ............ 2,676 2,676 2,842 2,842

Note 21—Parent Company Financial Information

The following is condensed financial information of First National Bancshares, Inc. (parent
company only) at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and for each of the years in the three year periods
ended December 31, 2007.

First National Bancshares, Inc.
Condensed Balance Sheets
(dollars in thousands)

2007 2006
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents . . .. ....................... $13,434 § 3,865
Investment in bank subsidiary ................ .. ... ... 47,253 35,836
Investment in Trust subsidiaries . .. ...... ... .o vr s 403 403
Other assels .. .. i ittt i ettt et e 616 329
TOtal BSSELS « v v v ettt e e e e $61,706 $40,433
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Junior subordinated debentures . ...................... 13,403 13,403
Other liabilities . . . . ... .. i e e e e e 747 40
Total shareholders’ equity . .......... .. .. oo .., 47,556 26,990
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . .............. $61,706  $40,433
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First National Bancshares, . nc.
Condensed Statements of Income
(dollars in thousands)

. 2007 2006 2005
Interest INCOME .. ..o u e $ 276 $§ 84 §$ 15

Interest exj ense on junior subordinated debentures . . ... 1,127 877 391

Net intersst expense ... .........onuveenennnnn.. (851)  (793) (375)
Professionaifees................. ... ... ... .... 12 11 25
Shareholde " relations . .......................... 97 85 21
Data procesing . ..o, 23 13 —

Non inte €St €Xpense . . . ...ovv vt vinune e . 132 109 46
Equity in uidistributed net income of bank subsidiary ... 4,709 4750 3,113
Net incom¢ before income taxes ................... 3,726 3,848 2,692
Income tax benefit ...... e e (339  (204) (143)

Netincoine. . ... ... $4,060 $4,052 $2,835
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First National Bancshares, Inc.
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
(dollars in thousands)

2007 2006 2005
Operating activities:
NEt IMCOMIE .« . ottt ot ettt ittt annans $ 4,060 $4,052 §$ 2835
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided for operating
activities:
Equity in undistributed net income of bank subsidiary ........... (4,709)  (4,750) (3,113)
Compensation expense for ESOP shares allocated ... ........... 37 43 1
Compensation expense for employee stock options . . . ........... 91 13 32
(Increase) decrease in other assets . .............. ... ... (529) 5 15
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities . .. .................... (10) 40 —
Increase in intercompany payable/(receivable) .. ............... 754 (18) (138)
Net cash used for operating activities . . ... ................. (306) (565) (368)
Investing activities:
Investment in common securities of Trusts . ... ........... ... ... — 217y - -
Capital contribution to bank subsidiary . .. ............... ... ... (6,000) (7,000) (2,000)
Net cash used in investing activities . ... ... ooy (6,000 (7,217) (2,000)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options/director stock
L7 L -1 1. 182 591 12
Proceeds from secondary stock offering, net of offering expenses ... .. — — 6,339
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock, net of offering expenses ... 16,550 — —
Dividends paid on preferred stock ........................... (626) — —_
Shares issued to leveraged ESOP . ... .......... ... ... . ... ... — — (600)
Shares repurchased pursuant to share repurchase program . ......... (224) — —
Cash paid in lieu of fractional shares for stock dividend . .. .. ... . ... (N ()] —
Proceeds from junior subordinated debentures . ................. — 7,217 —
Net cash provided by financing activities . ... ................. 15,875 7,804 5,751
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . ................... 9,569 22 3,383
Cash, beginning of year . . .. .. ... .. .. i 3,865 3,843 460
Cash,endof year .. ... .. .. ... i, $13434 $ 3,865 § 3,843

For a complete discussion of the junior subordinated debentures, common securities and the related
trust preferred securities, see Note 13—Junior Subordinated Debentures.
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Note 22—Selected ( arterly Financial Data (unaundited)

Following is a summary of operations by quarter (dollars in thousands, except share and per share

| data}:
2007
Quarters ended
March 31 ) June 30 September 30 December 31
Interestincome , .. ..ottt $ 885 $ 9891 § 10,618 $ 10564
Interest expense .. ..........o.oiuiuiuennnnn. 4,935! 5,631 5,981 5,914
Net interest inco11e .. ................... 3,956 4,260 4,637 4,650
Provision forloan losses. ... ................ 330 452 422 183
Noninterest income ... .................... 66t 1,039 1,182 1,264
: Noninterest expensts .. ... oo oo, 2,97. 3,629 3,551 4,007
| Income before provision for income taxes ....... 1,31, 1,218 1,846 1,724
Income tax expense . ....... ... ..o, 45!! 426 567 587
Netincome ... ... ... irinirnnenn 3 852': $ 792 § 1,279 § 1,137
Earnings per share:
Basic........ <. e 0.2 0.21 0.26 0.22
Dituted ...... ... . ... ... 0.19 0.18 0.24 0.21
Weighted average ¢ ymmon shares:
Basic........ .. ... . e 3,696,77+ 3,695,822 3,695,822 3,697,219
Diluted ...... ... .. . 4411,23. 4,400,011 5,289,673 5,344,626
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2006
Quarters ended
March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31

INterest inCOME . .. oo vi et i ie e ieee e $ 580 $ 6882 $ 7622 § 8522
Interestexpense . ............0ouvean. .. . 2,855 3,397 3,967 4,506

Netinterest inCOME .. ... .o vuvv i e, 3,005 3,485 3,655 4,016
Provision forloan losses. . .................. 343 354 243 252
Noninterest income . .......... ... ... ...... 517 410 471 681
Noninterest expenses .. ......... e 2,127 2,121 2,204 2,449
Income before provision for income taxes ... .... 1,052 . 1,420 .- 1,679 1,996
Income tax expense . ..., 355 516 596 628

NetinCome ... .cvuviininn i $ 697 § 904 $ 1,083 § 1,368
Earnings per share: : : '

Basic . ......... ... ... . $ 019 § 025 % 030 §$ 0.37

Dilated ......... ... . ... i, $ 016 $ 020 § 025 §% 0.31
Weighted average common shares:

Basic . ........ . ... e 3,652,729 3,585,079 . 3,610,632 - 3,700,439

Diluted ........... . ... 4,390,683 . 4,410,401 4,293,718 4,380,310

. All share and per share amounts reflect the January 18, 2006, 3 for 2 stock split, the 6% stock
dividend distributed on May 16, 2006, and the 7% stock dividend distributed on March 30, 2007.

Note 23—Stock Repurchase Program

On December 1, 2006, the Company’s board of directors authorized a stock repurchase program of
up to 50,000 of its 3,458,354 shares outstanding effective immediately for a period of six months ending
May 31, 2007. The board has extended this program through May 31, 2008. The repurchases are made
through registered broker-dealers from shareholders in open market purchases at the discretion of
management. The Company intends to hold the shares repurchased as treasury shares and may utilize
such shares to fund stock benefit plans or for any other general corporate purposes permitted by -
applicable law. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had purchased 13,781 shares at an average
price of $16.17 per share. The shares repurchased under the stock repurchase program are included in
treasury shares in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of changes in
shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income.

Note 24—Subsequent‘ Events

In mid-January, the Company opened a loan production office in a leased facility in'Indian Tiail, a
suburb of Chariotte, North Carolina, in Union County, North Carolina. Currently three employees are
housed in this office.

On January 31, 2008, the Merger of Carolina National with and into the Company became
effective. See Note 25—Merger with Carolina National Corporation for more details. In connection
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with the merger, the Bank entered into an employment agreement with Roger Whaley, former
President and Chief _ixecutive Officer of Carolina National, on January 31, 2008.

On February 7, :'008, the Company closed on the purchase «f a 1.4 acre outparcel of tand for
$1.4 million in the T ga Cay community in Fort Mill, South Carolina, a suburb of Charlotte, North
Carolina. The Bank las applied with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the “OCC”) to
open a full-service branch at this location. Our application was approved in December 2007, and we
anticipate constructicn of a full-service branch and our market headquarters for this area to begin in
early 2008,

The Company h.is begun construction on a full-service branch at an existing location previously
leased by Carolina National and acquired by the Company in the Merger. Management expects that
construction on this jacility will be completed in the second quarer of 2008.

Note 25—Merger wit 1 Carolina National Corporation

On August 26, 2 )07, the Company entered into a definitive :igreement to merge with Carolina
National. The Merge : of the two bank holding companies becam : effective January 31, 2008. As a
result of the Merger, the Company opened the four Carolina Na'ional locations in Columbia as First
National Bank of the South on February 19, 2008. This change o:curred simultaneously with the
merger of the wholly owned bank subsidiaries of First National aad Carolina National.

Carolina Nation::| was a South Carolina corporation register :d as a bank holding company with
the Federal Reserve 3oard. Carolina National engaged in a gene :al banking business through its
subsidiary, Carolina ! {ational Bank and Trust Company, a nation:l banking association, which
commenced operatios in July 2002, Carolina National had three branch offices and a main office in
Columbia, South Cailina, as well as a Joan production office in Columbia and a loan production office
in Rock Hill, South Clarolina, As a result of the Merger, First National moved its Columbia loan
production office to + arolina National’s former main office and branch and the former Carolina
National loan production office in Rock Hill' moved to the existir g First National Rock Hill location.

The Company e: pects that the Merger will render a combin:d company which will possess more
financial resources than First National or Carolina National alon:, with which to compete in the
marketplace for banking and financial services. The combined oriranization will be a more effective
competitor than eithe r existing bank alone, not only because of ils larger market capitalization and
asset base, but also b:cause of its greater efficiency.

Consolidating th : resources, expertise and market knowledge: of First National and Carolina
National will also pr¢ vide numerous benefits to the consumers and businesses in the communities they
serve. By bringing Fi st National’s successful retail culture to Carolina National’s attractive branch
footprint, the combin=d organization will offer expanded loan an! deposit products and services to
Carolina National’s e <isting customers. In addition, the broader geographic diversification brought
about by combining the complementary branch networks is expected to reduce credit risk concentration
for the combined entty. In addition, the Merger will enable the ¢ombined organization to meet the
credit needs of the b isinesses in the communities each institutior. currently serves, due to, among other
things, higher aggregite credit limits. Accordingly, the combined :ompany can more readily support
economic growth anc development in these communities.
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FIRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006 (Continued)

Note 25—Merger with Carolina National Corporation (Continued)

Under the terms of the definitive agreement, Carolina National’s sharcholders were given the
option to elect to receive either 1.4678 shares of our common stock or $21.65 of cash for each share of
Carolina National common stock held, or a combination of stock and cash, provided that the aggregate
consideration consisted of 70% stock and 30% cash. Based on the “Final Buyer Stock Price”, as
defined in Section 9.1(g) of the Merger Agreement, of $12.85, and including the value of Carolina
National’s outstanding options and warrants, the transaction closed with an aggregate value of
$54.1 million. After the allocation and proration processes set forth in the Merger Agreement were
applied to the elections made by Carolina National shareholders, the total Merger consideration
resulted in an additional 2,663,673 shares of First National common stock. In addition, cash
consideration of $16,848,808.85 will be paid in exchange for shares of Carolina National common stock.
The Company estimates that $17.8 million in goodwill will be recognized as a result of the merger.

Condensed balance sheet date for Carolina National as of the effective Merger date follows: (in
thousands)

CNCP

1/31/2008
Assets
Cash and SECUIHIES . . .. .. ittt sttt e r et ia et ne e $ 10,514
19 Y 1 - 203,267
L0103 =3 g 15~ 15 7,159
Total assets . . .. .0t e e $220,940
Liabilities and Equity
DEPOSIES © ottt e e $187,340
BOITOWINGS . . 0ot i e e e e 2,018
Other labilities . .. .. . . i e i e e it e s 2,385
Total labilities . . . . . .. ... . e e e 191,743
EqUity ... e e e e e 29,197
Total liabilities and equity . ........ ... ... .. . i i, $220,940
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FIRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, IN(.. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financizl Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006 1 Continued)

Note 25—Merger with Carolina National Corporation (Continued)

Pro forma acquis tion information represents our unaudited results of operations as if the merger had
occurred on January 1, 2007 and January 1, 2006: (in thousar ds)

Pro Forma 2007 Income Statement

First National Carolina National
Stand-alone Stand-alone Purchase Pro Forma
Full Year 2007 Full Year 2007 Adjustments Combined

Interest income:

Loans . ... co i e $ 35,661 $ 15,540 $ 51,201
Securities . ...... ... 3,293 64 3,357
Other......... ... .0 i, 1,014 792 (1,150)(1) 656
Total interest income . . ... ... ... ... ... 39,968 16,396 (1,150) 55,214
Interest expense:

Deposits . . o oot e . 18,872 $ 8,025 26,897
Short-termdebt ...................... 2,568 10 2578
Longtermdebt....................... 1,025 — 1,025
Total interest expznse . ................. 22,465 8,035 30,500
Net interest inco1ae . . . ........cvuvn .. 17,503 8,361 (1,150} 24,714
Loan loss provishm .. . ................. 1,396 209 — 1,605
Noninterest incoi ae;

Mortgage bankin;: income . .............. 1,858 — — 1,858
Other . ... ... ... .. . . .. 2,293 386 2,679
Total noninterest income ... ............. 4,151 386 4,537
Noninterest expe:se:

Salaries and emp oyee benefits. ... ........ 7,876 2,859 10,735
Occupancy and e Juipment expense ........ 2,030 893 2,923
Public relations . .., . .................. 734 120 854
Data processing : nd ATM expense. . ... .. .. 702 468 1,170
Other .. ... e e e 2,817 1,763 4,580
Total noninterest expense. ... ............ 14,159 6,103 20,262
Intangibles amortization ................ — — 376(2) 376
Income before in:ome taxes. . ............ 6,099 2,435 (1,526) 7,008
Provision for inccme taxes . .. ............ 2,039 1,021 (562)(3) 2,498
Netincome............coiiiuvnen... 4,060 1,414 (964) 4,510
Preferred stock dvidends . . .............. 626 — 626
Net income avail: ble to common . ......... $ 3434 $ 1414 $ (964) $ 3,884
Weighted average common shares outstanding 3,696,464 2,582,825 305,330 6,584,619
Net income per ¢ mmon share ........... $ 0.93 $ 0.55 $ 0.59
Notes

(1) To reduce in erest income for the effects of cash used in the acquisition based upon a 5.5% rate
earned on os ernight funds.

(2) To record an ortization of the core deposit intangible using the sum of years’ digits methods over a
10 year life.

(3) To adjust inc me tax expense at a rate of 37% applied tc the foregoing adjustments to income
before incom: taxes.

112







Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

There was no chaige in or disagreement with our accountant: related to our accounting and
financial disclosures.

Item 9A. Controls ar d Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of 1he period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Office, of the effectiveness of our disclosure contiols and procedures as defined in
Exchange Act Rule 131-15(e). Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that our current disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of
December 31, 2007. T.iere have been no significant changes in ow internal controls over financial
reporting during the fc urth fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2007, that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely tv materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

The design of any system of controls and procedures is based in part upon certain assumptions
about the likelihood o future events, There can be no assurance t1at any design will succeed in
achieving its stated go: Is under all potential future conditions, regirdless of how remote.

Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporfing

We are responsibl: for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial
reporting. Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our intzrnal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 20)7 is included in Item 8 of this report under the heading “Management’s Report
on Internal Controls ( ver Financial Reporting.”

Item 9B. Other Infor nation.

Registrar and Trar sfer Company will now serve as the transfes agent for our common stock and
Series A Preferred Sto:k. The transfer agent’s contact information is 10 Commerce Drive, Cranford,
New Jersey, 07016, (8(D) 368-5948, and www.rtco.com.
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Part III.
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of First National.
In response to this Item, the information contained in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 19, 2008, is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 11. Executive Compensation.

In response to this Item, the information contained in the Compensation of Directors and
Executive Officer section of our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be
held on May 19, 2008, is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

In response to this Item, the information contained in the Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management section of our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on May 19, 2008, is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

In response to this Item, the information contained on pages 11 and 12 of our Proxy Statement for
the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 19, 2008, is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Firm Fees and Services.

In response to this Item, the information contained on page 11 of our Proxy Statement for the
2008 Annual Meeting of Sharcholders to be held on May 19, 2008, is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 15. Exhibits.
(a)(1) Financial S:atements

The follow: ng consolidated financial statements are locited in Item 8 of this report.

Report of 1ndependent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidate d Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006

Consolidate d Statements of Income for the years endecl December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Consolidat: d Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for
the years ¢ 1ded December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 _

Consolidat: d Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2005 and 2005
Notes to thz Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial S atement Schedules

These sche lules have been omitted because they are not required, are not applicable or have
been incluced in our consolidated financial statements.

(3) Exhibits

The following exhib ts are required to be filed with this Report on Form 10-K by Item 601 of
Regulation §-K:

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between First National Bancshares, Inc. and Carolina

National Corporation dated as of August 26, 2007.(1)

31 Articles of ‘ncorporation(2)

3.1A Articles of Amendment to the Company’s Articles of Ir.corporation(3)

3.2  Amended and Restated Bylaws(4)

4.1 Form of Certificate of Common Stock(2)

10.1 Employme:r t Agreement dated September 10, 2004 betveen First National Bancshares, Inc.,
First Natio1.al Bank of the South and Jerry Calvert.(5)*

10.2  Form of Stick Warrant Agreement, as amended{6)*
103 2000 First 11ational Bancshares, Inc. Stock Incentive Plin and Form of Agreement(7)*

104 Employmer t Agreement dated January 31, 2005 between First National Bancshares, Inc., First
National Bi nk of the South and Kitty B. Payne(8)*

10.5 Employmer t Agreement dated January 31, 2005 between First National Bancshares, Inc., First
National B: nk of the South and David H. Zabriskie(8)'

10.6 Employmer t Agreement dated January 31, 2005 between First National Bancshares, Inc., First
National B: nk of the South and Robert Murdoch(8)*

107  Amendmen: No. 1 to the Stock Incentive Plan(6)*

10.8 Agreement to Sale, Purchase and Lease between First National Bank of the South and First
National Holdings, LLC for sale/leaseback transaction ¢ated February 16, 2007(9)

109  Blanket Traasfer Agreement between First National Ba:ik of the South and First National
Holdings, L LC for sale/leaseback transaction dated Feb uary 16, 2007(9)

10.10  First Natior al Incentive Plan for Executive Management(10)
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10.11  Agreement for the Purchase and Sale of Real Property dated May 4, 2007 between First
National Bank of the South and Book Em Brothers, LLC(3)

10.12  Agreement to Sell, Purchase and Lease dated September 24, 2007 between First National
Bank of the South and First National Holdings II, LLC(4)

10.13  Lease Agreement dated September 24, 2007 between First National Bank of the South and
First National Holdings IT, LLC(4)

13 2007 Company Annual Report

21 Subsidiaries

24 Power of Attorney (included on signature page)

311 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer.
31.2  Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer.
32 Section 1350 Certifications.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the company’s Form S-4/A filed on November 7, 2007.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed on
September 21, 1999.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form S-1/A filed on June 18, 2007.
(4) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form §-4/A filed on November 7, 2007.
(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on September 16, 2004.
(6) Incorporated by reference to the Company’'s Form 8-K filed on August 22, 2005.

(7} Incorporated by reference to the Company’s 10-QSB for the quarter ended March 31, 2000, filed
on May 15, 2000.

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on February 4, 2005.

(9) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006,
filed on March 20, 2007.

(10) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form $-1 filed on April 5, 2007. !

*  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to |
this annual report on Form 10-KSB.

The Exhibits listed above will be furnished to any security holder free of charge upon written
request to Ms. Kitty B. Payne, Chief Financial officer, First National Bancshares, Inc., Post Office
Box 3508, Spartanburg, South Carolina, 29304,
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to thz requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”), 1he registrant has duly caused this report to he signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, there into duly authorized.

FIRST NAT/ONAL BANCSHARES, INC,

Date: March 31, 2)08 By: fs/ JERRY L. CALVERT

Jerry L. Calvert
resident and Chief Executive Officer

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and ap oints Jerry L. Calvert and Gaines W. Hamriond, Jr., M.D. as the true and lawful
attorney-in-fact and agent with full power of substitution and 1esubstitution, for him and in his name,
place and stead, ir, any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Form 10-K, and to
file the same, witt all exhibits thereto, and other documents i connection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange Commissior, granting unto such attoiney-in-fact and agent, full power and
authority to do and perform each and every act and thing reqisite or necessary to be done in and
about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he 1aight or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and conf rming all that such attorney-in-fact and ageut, or his substitute or substitutes, may
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to t1ie requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the follc wing persons on behalf of the registrant in 1he capacities and on the dates indicated.

S ignature Title Date

/s/ C. DAN ADAMS

Director March 31, 2008
C. L an Adams
/s/ MELLNE : G. BUCHHEIT _
- Director March 31, 2008
Mellne : G. Buchheit
/s/ JERRY L. CALVERT Director, Vice Ctairman, President,

Jerr L. Calvert Chief Executive Officer March 31, 2008

/sf MARTHA _LOUD CHAPMAN

Director March 31, 2008
Martha ‘Zloud Chapman

/s/ W. RUssEL FLOYD, JR.
W. Russel Flovd, Jr.

Director March 31, 2008
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Signature Title Date

/s/ C. TYRONE GILMORE, SR.

; Director - March 31, 2008
C. Tyrone Gilmore, Sr.
" /s/ GAINES W. HAMMOND, JR., M.D. ) )
- Director, Chairman of the Board March 31, 2008
Gaines W. Hammond, Jr., M.D.
s/ BENJAMIN R. HINES .
— - Director March 31, 2008
Benjamin R. Hines
/s/ WILLIAM A. HUDSON ]
— Director March 31, 2008
William A. Hudson
/s{ 1.8. LEEVY JOHNSON
Director March 31, 2008
1.S. Leevy Johnson
fs/ KITTY B. PAYNE ief Fi i i inci .
. C'hlef l.*"lnanmal Offlcer’, Principal March 31, 2008
Kitty B. Payne Financial and Accounting Officer

/s/ NOrRMAN F. PULLIAM

- Director, Chairman Emeritus March 31, 2008
Norman F. Pulliam
fs/ JOEL A. SmiTH, 11 )
- Director March 31, 2008
Joel A. Smith, 111
/s/ ROBERT E. STATON, SR. ‘ .
Director March 31, 2008
Robert E. Staton, Sr.
/s/ WILLIAM H. STERN
— Director March 31, 2008
William H. Stern
/s/ PETER E. WEISMAN
Director March 31, 2008

Peter E. Weisman
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'SE nature '% %
/s/ DONALD 3. WILDMAN
- Director March 31, 2008
Donald 3. Wildman
/s{ COLEMAN .. YOUNG, JR. ]
Director March 31, 2008

Coleman L. Young, Jr.




FIRST NATIONAL®

BANCSHARES, INC.

215 N. Pine Street
Spartanburg, S.C. 29302

Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders
Dear Fellow Shareholders:

We cordially invite you to attend the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of First National
Bancshares, Inc., the holding company for First National Bank of the South. At the meeting, we will
report on our performance in 2007 and our recent merger with Carolina National Corporation, and
answer your questions. We are excited about our achievements and we look forward to discussing both
our accomplishments and our plans with you. We hope that you can attend the meeting and look forward
to seeing you there.

This letter serves as your official notice that we will hold the meeting on Monday, May 19, 2008, at
5:30 p.m. in the Barnet Room of the Montgomery Building on the Converse College campus, at 580 East
Main Street, Spartanburg, South Carolina for the following purposes:

1. To elect eight members to the Board of Directors of the Company;
2. To approve the adoption of the 2008 First National Bancshares, Inc. Restricted Stock Plan; and

3. To transact any other business that may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment
of the meeting.

Shareholders owning our common stock at the close of business on March 31, 2008 are entitled to
attend and vote at the meeting. A complete list of these shareholders will be available at our main office
prior to the meeting.

Please use this opportunity to take part in the affairs of your company by voting on the business to
come before this rmeeting. Even if you plan to attend the meeting, we encourage you to complete and
return the enclosed proxy to us as promptly as possible.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Jerry L. Calvert Gaines W. Hammond, Jr., M.D.

Vice Chairman, President and CEO Chairman

Spartanburg, South Carolina
April 11, 2008
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FIRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, INC.
215 N. Pine Street
Spartanburg, South Carolina 29302

Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be Held on May 19, 2008

Our Board of Directors is soliciting proxies for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. This proxy
statement contains important information for you to consider when deciding how to vote on the matters
brought before the meeting. We encourage you to read it carefully.

Voting Information

The Board of Directors has set March 31, 2008, as the record date for the meeting, Shareholders
owning our common stock at the close of business on that date are entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting, with each share entitled to one vote. There were 6,402,402 shares outstanding on the record date
of March 31, 2008. A majority of the outstanding shares of common stock represented at the meeting will
constitute a quorum. We will count abstentions and broker non-votes, which are described below, in
determining whether a quorum exists.

Many of our shareholders hold their shares through a stockbroker, bank, or other nominee rather
than directly in their own name. If you hold your shares in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other
nominee, you are considered the beneficial owner of shares held in street name, and these materials are
being forwarded to you by your broker or nominee, which is considered the shareholder of record with
respect 1o those shares. As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your broker or nominee how
to vote and also are invited to attend the annual meeting. However, since you are not the shareholder of
record, you may not vote these shares in person at the meeting unless you obtain a signed proxy from the
shareholder of record giving you the right to vote the shares. Your broker or nominee has enclosed or
provided a voting instruction card for you to use to direct your broker or nominee how to vote your
shares.

When you sign the proxy card, you appoint Jerry L. Calvert and Gaines W. Hammeond, Jr., M.D. as
your representatives at the meeting. Mr. Calvert and Dr. Hammond will vote your proxy as you have
instructed them on the proxy card. If you submit a proxy but do not specify how you would like it to be
voted, Mr. Calvert and Dr. Hammond will vote your proxy for the election to the Board of Directors of
all nominees listed below under “Election of Directors” and for the approval of the adoption of the 2008
First National Bancshares, Inc. Restricted Stock Plan, We are not aware of any other matters to be
considered at the meeting. However, if any other matters come before the meeting, Mr. Calvert and
Dr. Hammond will vote your proxy on such matters in accordance with their judgment.

You may revoke your proxy and change your vote at any time before the polls close at the meeting.
You may do this by signing and delivering another proxy with a later date or by voting in person at the
meeting. Brokers who hold shares for the accounts of their clients may vote these shares either as directed
by their clients or in their own discretion if permitted by the exchange or other organization of which they
are members. Proxies that brokers do not vote on some proposals but that they do vote on others are
referred to as “broker non-votes” with respect to the proposals not voted upon. A broker non-vote does
not count as a vote in favor of or against a particular proposal for which the broker has no discretionary
voting authority. [n addition, if a shareholder abstains from voting on a particular proposal, the abstention
does not count as a vote in favor of or against the proposal. Except in regards to the election of directors,
when a quorum is present at a meeting, action on a matter is approved if the votes cast within the voting
group favoring the action exceed the votes cast opposing the action, unless the express provision of the
statutes, the Articles or Bylaws require a higher vote in which case the express provision shall govern.
Directors shall be elected by a plurality vote of the shareholders.

We are paying for the costs of preparing and mailing the proxy materials and of reimbursing brokers
and others for their expenses of forwarding copies of the proxy materials to our shareholders. Upon
written or oral request, we will promptly deliver a separate copy of our annual report, our annual report
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on Form 10-K, or this proxy statement to our shareholders at a shared address to which a single copy of
the document was de ivered. Our officers and employees may assist in soliciting proxies but will not
receive additional corapensation for doing so. We are distributi1g this proxy statement on or about
April 16, 2008.

Proposal Ne. 1: Election of Dire tors

The Board of Ditectors is divided into three classes with s:aggered terms, so that the terms of
approximately one-thi 'd of the Board members expire at each annual meeting. The current terms of the
Class I11 directors, whse names are listed below, will expire at the meeting;

]

Class 111
C. Dan Adams
Martha Cloud Chapman
Dr. C. Tyrone Gilmore, Sr.
Robert E. Staton, Sr.
Coleman L. Young, Jr.

Shareholders will +:lect five nominees as Class I1I directors at the meeting to serve a three-year term,
expiring at the 2011 A 1nual Meeting of Shareholders. In addition to Robert E. Staton, Sr., three other
directors were appoint« d to our Board of Directors in February 2008, pursuant to the merger of Carolina
National with and into First National. Under South Carolina law, these directors must be elected by our
shareholders. We ack that you re-elect the following nominee to a ime-year term as Class I director; 1.S.
Leevy Johnson. We ask that you re-elect each of the following nominees to a two-year term as a Class II
director: Joel A, Smith 11, and William H. Stern.

The directors will I elected by a plurality of the votes cast at the meeting. This means that the eight
nominees receiving the highest number of votes will be elected.

The board of dir:ctors recommends that you elect C. Dar Adams, Martha Cloud Chapman,
Dr. C. Tyrone Gilmore Sr., Robert E. Staton, Sr. and Coleman L. Young, Jr., as Class III directors, 1.S.
Leevy Johnson as a Cl: ss 1 director, and Joel A, Smith, III, and William H. Stern as Class II directors.

If you submit a p-oxy but do not specify how you would like it to be voted, Mr. Calvert and
Dr. Hammond will vot : your proxy to elect Mr. Adams, Ms. Chapman, Dr. Gilmore, Mr. Staton and
Mr. Young as Class 1II directors, 1.S. Leevy Johnson as a Class I lirector, and Joel A. Smith, IlI, and
William H. Stern as Class 11 directors. If any of these nominees is ur able or fails to accept nomination or
election (which we do n ot anticipate), Mr. Calvert and Dr. Hammond will vote instead for a replacement
to be recommended by the board of directors, unless you specifically instruct otherwise in the proxy.

Set forth below is ¢ :rtain information about the nominees. With the exception of Mr. Staton, each of
the Class III nominees is also an organizer and director of our susidiary, First National Bank of the
South, and has served in this capacity since each company’s inception in 1999. The following joined our
board in February of 2108, pursuant to the merger of Carolina N:tional with and into First National:
Robert E. Staton, Sr., 1.5, Leevy Johnson, Joel A. Smith, 111 and William H. Stern.

C. Dan Adams, 48, Class III director, has been the president ind principal owner of The Capital
Corporation of Americ:, Inc., an investment banking company loca ed in Greenville/Spartanburg, since
1991. He is also preside 1t and owner of Southeastern Capital Partners, LLC, a private equity company
that is affiliated with T e Capital Corporation and invests in priviitely held companies. Southeastern
currently has four (4) pe rtfolio companies. Mr. Adams graduated from the University of South Carolina
Upstate in 1983 with a d.:gree in business administration. He graduat::d in 1989 from The Banking School
of the South at Louisiar a State University and is a Certified Commzrcial Investment member.

Martha Cloud Chag man, 85, Class 111 director, graduated from the University of North Carolina ~
Greensboro in 1942 witl a degree in art, Ms. Chapman previously ws the first female board member of
the Spartanburg County Foundation, the South Carolina Development Board, and the South Carolina
Mining Council, and shc served as the chairperson of Governor Jim Edward’s Inaugurat Ball. She has
served as a board memb :r of the Walker Foundation, Charles Lea Center Foundation, Queens College,
Spartanburg Methodist { Jollege and the Music Foundation.
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Dr. C. Tyrone Gilmore, Sr., 64, Class I1I director, is vice president/customer relations at Compass
Learning, Inc. He graduated from Livingstone College in 1965 with a bacheler of arts degree. Dr. Gilmore
earned his Masters degree in 1971 from Converse College and received his Ed. S. in Educational
Administration studies in 1976 from the University of South Carolina - Upstate.

LS. Leevy Johnson, 65, Class | director, has been an attorney with Johnson, Toal & Battiste, P A. since
1976. Mr. Johnson is also an owner of Leevy Johnson Funeral Home, Inc.

Joel A. Smith, 111, 62, Class 11 director, has been Dean of the Moore School of Business since October
of 2000. From June of 1998 until August of 2000, Mr. Smith was President of the East Region of Bank of
America. Prior to that time, from 1991 through Junc of 1998, Mr. Smith was President of NationsBank
Carolinas. Additionally, he serves on the Board of Directors and the Audit and Governance Committees
of Avanex Corporation, and the Board of Directors and on the Executive Committee for NETBANK,
Inc., chairing the Compensation Committee.

William H. Siern, 51, Class II director, has been President of Stern & Stern and Associates, a
commercial real estate development company, since 1984. Mr. Stern currently serves as Chairman of the
South Carolina State Ports Authority.

Robert E. Staton, Sr., 61, Class 111 director, has been Executive Vice President External Relations for
Presbyterian Collcge since January 2007, served as President of the United Way of South Carolina from
May of 2002 until December of 2005 and was Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of
Colonial Life & Accident Insurance Company from 1994 until his retirement in July of 2001.

Coleman L. Young, Jr, 51, Class IIT director, has been the president of CLY, Inc., a dry cleaning
business located in Spartanburg, since 1994. Mr. Young also serves as property manager for Coleman
Young Family Limited Partnership, a real estate development company and is chairman of Upward
Unlimited, a non-profit ministry headquartered in Spartanburg. Mr. Young graduated from Clemson
University in 1979 with a bachelor of science degree.

Set forth below is also information about each of our other directors and executive officers. The terms
of the Class I directors will expire at the 2009 Annual Shareholders Meeting. The terms of the Class II
directors expire at the 2010 Annual Shareholders Meeting. The directors who were an organizer and an
original director of our subsidiary bank and have served in this capacity since each company’s inception
in 1999 are as follows: C. Dan Adams, Mellnee Buchheit, Jerry L. Calvert, Martha Chapman, W. Russel
Floyd, Jr., C. Tyrone Gilmore, Str., Gaines W. Hammond, Jr., Benjamin Hines, William Hudson, Norman
Pulliam, Donald B. Wildman and Coleman L. Young, Jr. The following directors joined our board in
February of 2008, pursuant to the merger of Carolina National with and into First National: Robert E.
Staton, Jr., LS. Leevy Johnson, Joel A. Smith, 11l and William H. Stern.

Mellnee G. EBuchheit, 60, Class I director, has been the president of Buchheit News Management, Inc.,
a firm specializing in media investments, since 1993. She also serves as a director for Wayne Printing Co.,
Inc. and Hometown News, Inc. Ms. Buchheit graduated from Winthrop University with a degree in
education in 1969.

Jerry L. Caivert, 59, Class I director, is the president and chief executive officer of First National
Bancshares, Inc. and the First National Bank of the South. He is a native of South Carolina and has over
30 years of banking experience in the Greenville and Spartanburg markets. Mr. Calvert was the senior
vice president and regional manager for American Federal Bank from 1984 until March 1999, when he
resigned to help organize First National Bank of the South. Mr. Calvert is a retired Lieutenant Colonel
in the U.S. Marine Reserves and a Vietnam veteran. Mr. Calvert graduated from Wofford College in 1974
with a bachelor of arts degree in economics.

W. Russel Floyd, Jr.,, 57, Class I director, has been the president of W. R. Floyd Services, Inc., a funeral
home, and W, R. Floyd Corporation, a cemetery operation located in Spartanburg, since 1978. He has also
served as the vice president of Piedmont Crematory since 1980. He also has served as the president of
Business Communications, Inc., a local provider of telephone services and equipment, since 1984.
Mr. Floyd graduated from the University of North Carolina — Chapel Hill in 1972 with a bachelor of
science degree in business administration, and he received a bachelor of arts degree in psychology from
the University of North Carolina — Charlotte in 1977.
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Dr. Gaines W. Eammond, Jr., 59, Class 11 director, is the chairman of our board of directors.
Dr. Hammond is a urologist practicing in Spartanburg since 1980 when he founded Hammond Urology,
PA. Dr. Hammond jraduated from Washington & Lee University in 1971 and from the Medical
University of South Cirolina in 1974 and received surgery and uriogic training at Indiana University.

Benjamin R. Hires, 51, Class Il director, has been president of Spencer/Hines Properties, a
commercial real estat: firm located in Spartanburg, since 1986, Mr. Hines graduated from Wofford
College in 1978 with & bachelor’s degree in economics.

William A. Hudso 1, 72, Class [ director, founded Diversco, Inc, an outsourcing and contract services
business located in Spartanburg, in 1969. Since 1969, Mr. Hudson ha; held various positions with Diversco,
including chairman an chief executive officer; he is currently vice chairman of Diversco. He graduated
from Clemson Univertity in 1959 with a bachelor of science degrez in education.

Norman F. Pullian-, 65, Class I Director, was founder and form :rly chairman of the board of Pulliam
Investment Company, Inc., a real estate development and investment firm located in Spartanburg.
Mr. Pulliam served as b vard chairman from the inception of the Conipany until June 2005, and now serves
as chairman emeritus. 1 le is a graduate of Clemson University and Eiarvard University School of Business
Administration.

Peter E. Weisman, 70, Class 11 director, is an owner and managiig member of Peter Weisman/Kinney
Hill Associates, LLC, a real estate development company established in 1989 and located in Spartanburg.
Mr. Weisman has also Iyeen a general partner of P & J Realty Co., a real estate development company
located in New York, M ew York, since 1969. He graduated from th: University of Pennsylvania in 1961
with a degree in archit( cture.

Donald B. Wildma 1, 58, Class 11 director, is a managing partn¢r of the law firm of Johnson, Smith,
Hibbard, and Wildman, LLF. Mr. Wildman has been a transactions ittorney with the firm since 1974. He
graduated from Woffor( College in 1971 with a bachelor of arts degtee and received his juris doctor from
the University of South Carolina School of Law in 1974

Kitty B. Payne, Cl'A, 37, is executive vice president and chief financial officer of First National
Bancshares, Inc. and Fir;t National Bank of the South. She has over 15 years of experience in the financial
services industry, inclucing seven years with KPMG LLP as a senior tax manager where she worked
extensively with commuity banks in the Carolinas. Ms. Payne received her bachelor’s degree in firiancial
management and accou iting from Clemson University in 1992,

Robert W. Murdocn, Ir., 63, is executive vice president and the retail banking manager of First
National Bank of the Scuth. He is a native of South Carolina and h:s over 36 years of experience in the
financial services indusiry. Mr. Murdoch was vice president and :xecutive officer with Spartanburg
National Bank from Auy ust 1988 until February 2000, when he resignzd to join First National Bank of the
South. Mr. Murdoch is a 1987 graduate of the Banker’s School of the South at Louisiana State University.

David H. Zabriskie, 46, is executive vice president, senior lendiag officer, and CRA officer of First
National Bank of the Sot th. He has over 21 years of experience in the financial services industry, including
15 years in commercial 1:nding. Mr. Zabriskie has also served as a bank examiner for the OCC and the
OTS. Mr. Zabriskie rece ved his bachelor’s degree in business administration from Furman University in
1984.




Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Summary of Cash and Certain Other Compensation

The following table summarizes the compensation paid or earned by each of the named executive
officers for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Summary Compensation Table

Non-Equity Nongqualified

, Incentive Deferred

Name and Principal Stock  Option Plan Compensation All Other
Position Year Salary Bonus Awards Awards'' Compensation'” _ Eamings Compensation'” Total
Jerry L. Calvert. . ... .. 2007 266,000 — — — 70,000 — 39471 37547
President, CEQ and 2006 260,000 — — - 130,000 — 33018 423,018

Director of the

Company and the

Bank
Kitty B. Payne . ...... 2007 155,000 - — 5,681 29,000 — 15,944 205,625
Executive Vice Presidant 2006 135769 — — 5,681 63,400 — 10,057 214,907

and Chief Financial ' .

Officer of the

Company and

the Bank
David H. Zabriskie . ... 2007 169959 — — 5,681 33,000 — 18,962 227,602
Executive Vice President 2006 145961 — —_ 5,681 67,800 — 11,342 230,784

and Chief Lending
Officer of the Bank

(1) The amounts in this column reflect the dollar amount recognized as compensation expense for financial statement reporting
purposes for the: fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R) which cutlines the accounting
requirements for awards pursuant to the Plan and include amounts from awards granted prior to 2007. Assumptions used in
the calculation of this amount for the fiscal year ended Deccmber 31, 2007, are included in footnote 2 to the Compar;:y‘s audited
financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2) Amounts awarded for the fiscal year under the FNIP were paid in the subsequent fiscal year.

(3) All other compensation for 2007 includes the following items: (a) comgany contributions under the 401k plan, (b) car allowance

or value attributable to personal use of Company provided automobiles, (¢) club dues, (d) premiums for the portion of the

death benefits shared by the Company with the named executive officers pursuant to bank owned life insurance, (¢) premiums
for life, acciden! and long-term disability insurance policies (f) the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting
ﬂurposcs for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 for shares allocated to each named executive officer under the First

ational Employee Stock Ownership Plan, and (g) in the case of Mr. Calvert, premiums for keyman life insurance and medical
and dental insurance coverage. The amount attributable to each such perguisite or benefit for each named executive officer
does not exceei the greater of $25,000 or 10% of the total amount of perquisites received by such named executive officer.

Employment Agreements

The Company recognizes that the named executive officers’ contributions to the growth and success
of the Company are substantial. The Company desires to provide for the continued employment of the
named executive officers, to reinforce and encourage the continued dedication of these individuals to the
company and to promote the best interest of the Company and its shareholders.

On September 10, 2004, First National Bancshares, Inc., and its wholly-owned subsidiary, First
National Bank of the South, entered into an employment agreement with Jerry L. Calvert to serve as the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and its bank subsidiary. This agreement is for a
term of three years and is extended automatically at the end of each year so that the remaining term
continues to be three years. Under the agreement, Mr. Calvert receives a base salary of not less than
$160,000 per year, which may be increased from time to time with the approval from the board of
directors. He also receives his medical insurance premium. He is eligible to receive an annual cash bonus
of up to 50% of his base salary based on the accomplishment of performance goals established by the
board of directors. Mr. Calvert is entitled to a term life insurance policy in the amount of $500,000 payable
to his designated beneficiaries and an accident liability policy totaling $1,000,000. Mr. Calvert is entitled
to receive an antomobile or an automobile allowance, to participate in all retirement, welfare, and other
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benefit plans of the Co npany and the bank and to payment of club dues. During his employment and for
a period of one year thereafter, or during any period that Mr. Cal'rert is receiving a severance payment
under the agreement, | € is prohibited from (a) competing with the Company or the bank within a radius
of 40 miles of the main office or any branch or loan production offic e; (b) soliciting the Company’s or the
bank’s customers for ¢ competing business; or {c) soliciting the company’s or bank’s employees for a
competing business.

If we terminate th: employee agreement for Mr. Calvert without cause before or after a change in
control, or if Mr. Calve:t terminates his agreement for good reason v/ithin the 90-day period beginning on
the 30" day after a chage in control or within the 90-day period bi:ginning on the one year anniversary
of a change in control, ke will be entitled to severance in an amount equal to his then current monthly base
salary multiplied by 36 24 for a termination without cause), plus an'7 bonus which may have been earned
or accrued through the late of termination (including any amounts : warded for previous years but which
were not yet vested) ani a pro rata share of any bonus with respect to the current fiscal year which may
have been earned as of the date of termination.

On January 31, 2005, First National Bancshares, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary, First National
Bank of the South, entcred into employment agreements with Kitts B. Payne and David H. Zabriskie.
Pursuant to the agreemznts, Ms. Payne serves as an Executive Vicz President and the Chief Financial
Officer of the company ind the bank and receives a minimum annuil base salary of $104,000 and David
Zabriskie serves as an Ixecutive Vice President and Senior Lendin;; Officer of the bank and receives a
minimum annual base s: lary of $112,000. Each executive’s annual bate salary may be increased from time
to time with the approvl of the Board of Directors, but may not b: decreased.

Each agreement is or a term of two years and is extended autamatically at the end of each vear so
that the remaining term continues to be two years; however, the exccutive or the employer may at any
time fix the term to a finite period of two years. Each executive is ertitled to participate in all employee
benefit plans or progran s of the Company and its bank subsidiary, as well as club dues. In addition, the
terms of the agreement :ntitle Mr. Zabriskie 1o the use of an automobile owned or leased by the bank.
During each executive’s :mployment and for a period of one year thereafter, each executive is prohibited
from (a) competing witk the company or the bank within a radius of 30 miles of any office or branch;
(b) soliciting the Compai y’s or bank’s customers for a competing busiess; or {c) soliciting the Company’s
or the bank’s employees for a competing business. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each executive may
serve as an officer of or consultant to a depository institution or holding company with offices in the
restricted terriiory, if suc ¥ employment does not involve the restricte] territory. In consideration for the
restrictive covenants, earh executive received stock options for 3,975 shares with an exercise price of
$16.04 per share.

If we terminate the e mployment agreements for Ms. Payne or Mi. Zabriskie without cause before or
after a change in control or if Ms. Payne or Mr. Zabriskie terminat: their agreement for good reason
within the 90-day period beginning on the 30" day after a change in control, they will be entitled to
severance in an amount e jual to their then current monthly base salar'y multiplied by 12, plus any bonus
which may have been ear ed or accrued through the date of terminaticn (including any amounts awarded
for previous years but which were not yet vested) and a pro rata share of any bonus with respect to the
current fiscal year which nay have been earned as of the date of terinination.




Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table shows the number of shares covered by both exercisable and non-exercisable
options owned by the individuals named in the Summary Compensation Table as of December 31, 2007,
as well as the related exercise prices and expiration dates. Options are granted pursuant to the Plan.

Name

Jerry L. Calvert . .

Kitty B. Payne .. . .

David H.
Zabriskie . . . ..

Option Awards Stock Awards
Equity
Incentive
Plan
Equity Awards:
Equity Incentive  Market or
Incentive Plan Payout
Plan N Awards: Value of
M f ith Awards: umber Market Number of Unearned
uml()ﬁ;eﬂsyf;:n ** Number of of Shares Value of Uneamned Shares,
Unexercised Securities or Units Shares or Shares or  Units or
Options Underlying of Stack  Units of Other Other
Unexercised Option  Option that Stock that  Rights  Rights That
Non- Unearned Exercise Expiration Have Not Have Not That Have Have Not
Exercisable exercisable  Options Price ate Vested Vested  Not Vested _ Vested
153117 — — § 392 37272010 — — — —
— — — — — 500 $6,570 — —
12,759 — — $ 392 3272010 — — — —
2,551 — — $423 1232011 - — — —
1,701 2,552 — $14.99  1/31/2015 — — —_ —
— — — — 31 $4,082
25519 — — $ 392 3212010 — -— - -
2,551 —_ — $423 12132011 — - — -
1,701 2,552 —_ $1499  1/3122015 —_ — - —
— — — — 340 $4,468

(1} Options granted pursuant to the Plan expire ten years from the date of grant and vest at a rate of 20% each year on the first

five anniversaries of the date of grant.

{(2) Each named executive officer {ully vests in the shares allocated pursuant to the First National Employee Stock Ownership Plan
after seven years of service with 20% of the shares allocated vesting each year, beginning with the third year of service. As of
December 31, 2007, each named executive officer had been credited with four years of service.

Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year

For the year ended December 31, 2007, no options were granted to the named executive officers.




: ' * Director Compensation ‘

The following talle shows the fees paid to each of our eleiited directors for board meeting and
committee meeting at endance in 2007.

Fees Non-Equity Nonqualified
Earned or Incentive Deferred
Paid in Stock Option Plan Compensation All Other

Name Cash Awards Awards  Compensation Eamings Compensation Total

C.Dan Adams. ......... $20,400 — — — — —_ $20,400
Mellnee Buchheit . . ... ... 10,200 — — — — — 10,200
Jerry L. Calvert . ........ — — — — — — —
Martha Chapman ........ 13,200 — — —_ —_ . — 13,200
W, Russet Floyd, Jr. ... ... 11,400 — — — — — 11,400
C. Tyrone Gilmore, Sr. ..., 14,600 — — — —_ — 14,600
Gaines W. Hammond, Jr.. . . 18,500 — — — — — 18,500
Benjamin Hines ... ...... 18,900 — — — — — 18,900
William Hudson . . . ... . ., 19,800 — - — - - 19,800
Norman Pulliam........, 15,300 —_ —_ —_ —_ — 15,300
Peter Weisman . ........ 11,800 — — — — — 11,800
Donald B. Wildman .. ... 12,400 —_ — — — — 12,400
Coleman L. Young, Jr.. . .. $22,100 —_ —_ _ — — $22,100

During 2007, we paid our outside directors $700 for each board meeting they attended and $400 for
each committee meetir g they attended.




Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table shows how much of our common stock is considered to be beneficially owned by
the directors, named executive officers, and owners of more than 5% of the outstanding common stock,
as of March 31, 2008. During the initial public offering completed in February of 2000, cach organizer
received a warrant to purchase two shares of common stock at a purchase price of $3.92 per share for
every three shares purchased by that organizer in the offering, for a total of 799,611 shares. As part of the
acquisition of Carolina National, four new directors were added to First National’s board. The stock
options granted to these directors under Carolina National’s stock option plan vested immediately upon
the effective date of the merger and are included in the Right to Acquire figures presented below. In
addition to the options granted to the four new directors, the Right to Acquire figures include options
previously granted to the named executive officers. These figures reflect the 3-for-2 stock splits distributed
on March 1, 2004, and January 18, 2006, the 6% stock dividend distributed on May 16, 2006, and the 7%
stock dividend distributed on'March 30, 2007. The warrants, which are represented by separate warrant
agreements, vested over a fivé-year period beginning on February 10, 2001, and are exercisable in whole
or in part until February 10, 2010. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner is
¢/o First National Bancshares, Inc., 215 North Pine Street, Spartanburg, South Carolina 29302.

Shares Beneficially Right To

Name Owned™” Acquire® Percent™
C. Dan Adams® ..........] L 145,010 85,065 3.55%
Mellnee G. Buchheit . ...... b, 84,648 51,039 2.10%
Jerry L. Calvert® .......... VPRI 79,110 204,156 4.29%
Martha C. Chapman. ....... L 80,582 _— 1.26%
W. Russel Floyd, Jr.® ... ... ... ..o 96,339 51,039 2.28%
Dr. C. Tyrone Gilmore, St. . J..........cooviiit, 25,835 17,013 0.67%
Dr. Gaines W. Harnmond, Ir.f”. .................... 260,305 — 407%
Benjamin R. Hines® ... 1. ... ... 114,270 71,455 2.87%
William A. Hudson® ... .} ... ... 159,859 102,078 4.03%
LS. Leevy Johnsor . ....... ... . ..o 16,970 2,248 0.30%
Kitty B. Payne!™. .. ....... .. ...l 12,760 17,808 0.48%
Norman F Pulliam ......... ... 178,050 © 102,078 4.31%
Joel ALSmith. ..o e 25,860 2,935 0.45%
Robert E. Staton, St ...... i 22,628 2,935 0.40%
William H. Stern . .....ooo vivireeeiiiiaiannnns 107,765 4,563 1.75%
Peter E. Weisman'V .. ..... ... .. ...t 87,446 56,143 2.2%
Donald B. Wildman'"® .. ... ... . ... ... ... ...... 59,236 34,026 1.45%
Coleman L. Young, Jr™ . .. ... .. ... 70,887 42,533 1.76%
David H. Zabriskie.............oooiiiiiiiiiiin, 6,590 30,568 _0.58%
All directors & executive off cers as a group

(19persons) . ...ttt 1,634,150 877,682 34.50%

(1) Includes shares for which the ramed person:
e has sole vot:ng and inves.ment power,
*  has shared voting and investment power with a spouse or other family member in trust, or
+  holds in an IRA or other retirement plan program, unless otherwise indicated in these footnotes.
¢ does not include shares that may be acquired by exercising stock options or warrants.

(2) Includes shares that may be acguired within the nexi 60 days by exercising vested stock options or warrants, but does not
include any other stock option: or warrants.

(3) Based on 3,724,548 shares of common stock of the Company outstanding as of the record date of March 31, 2007, plus the
number of shares which the named person exercising all options or warrants has the right 10 acquire within 60 days, but that
no other persons exercise any options or warrants.

(4) Includes 84 shares in trust each for Carey Adams and Abby Adams, in which he acts as custodian. Includes 75257 shares
pledged as collateral for loans.




(5) Includes 254 shares ow ned by his son Jerry Calvert, Jr., 254 shares owned by h s son Timothy R. Calvert and 254 shares owned
by his daughter Casey . Calvert, all in a trust in which he acts as trustee. Includes 15,056 shares pledged as collateral for loans.

(6} Includes 2,971 shares i1 trust cach for Whitley Stevens Floyd and Frances Hinter Floyd, in which he acts as custodian.
{7) Includes 127,000 share ;.pledged as collateral for loans.
{(8) Includes 107,182 share - held in the name of The Hines Family Ltd Partnershig, of which Mr. Hines is the sole voting member.

(%) Includes 5,103 share: in trust cach for Alexa S. Hudson, Lanie Ann Hudson, William Alex Hudson, III, John
M. Hammond, Lillian Grace Hammond and Ross H. Hammond. Also incluces 129,241 shares held via William A. Hudson
Limited Family Partn¢ rship, LLC. Includes 129,241 shares pledged as collate; al for loans,

(10) Includes 12,759 shares pledged as collateral for loans.
(11) Includes 680 shares in trust for William Desvallees and 680 shares for Lucie Jesvallees for which he acts as custodian.
(12) Includes 1,095 shares n trust for William Reid Wildman for which he acts a: custodian.

(13) Includes 63,799 shares held in the name of the Coleman Young Family Limif=d Partnership, of which Mr. Young is the sole
owner and voling mer 1ber.

Corporate Governance

We periodically r:view our corporate governance policies aid procedures which are designed to
establish high standaids of ethical conduct and provide that v/¢ report results with accuracy and
transparency and main :ain full compliance with the laws, rules and regulations that govern our operations.
As part of this period ¢ review, the Board of Directors reviews aid adopts best corporate governance
policies and practices ‘or us.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted .1 Code of Ethics that is designed to ensure that our directors, executive officers and
employees meet the hi shest standards of ethical conduct. The Codt: of Ethics requires that our directors,
executive officers anc employees avoid conflicts of interest, comply with all laws and other legal
requirements, conduct business in an honest and ethical manner aid otherwise act with integrity and in
our best interest. Und: r the terms of the Code of Ethics, directors, executive officers and emplovees are
required 1o report any :onduct that they believe in good faith to be an actual or apparent violation of the
Code of Ethics. ‘

As a mechanism to encourage compliance with the Code «f Ethics, we have adopted a policy
regarding our method of receiving, retaining and treating complaints received regarding accounting,
internal accounting cor trols or auditing matters. This policy ensures that employees may submit concerns
in good faith regardin ; questionable accounting or auditing matt:rs in a confidential and anonymous
manner without fear o’ dismissal or retaliation of any kind. A cop/ of the Code of Ethics can b= found
on our website, www.firstnational-online.com.

Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors

Our Board of Di ectors has appointed a number of commi:tees, including an audit committee,
compensation committ :e, and a nominating committee. During the: year ended December 31, 2007, our
board and our bank’s bard of directors held twelve meetings one of which included an executive session
with our independent : uditors. The Board of Directors has determ: ned, based on recommendation from
the audit committee, that each of our directors is independent, as ccntemplated in the listing standards of
the NASDAQ Global Market, except our CEO due to his service as our employee and Donald B.
Wildman due to his rol:: in the management of related party entities. All of our directors and the directors
of the bank attended : t least 75% of the aggregate of such board and committee meetings. All of our
directors attended our 007 annual meeting. Our board has adopte«( an attendance policy which requires
our directors to attems| the annual meeting unless the absence is excused in advance by our board
chairman. We have est iblished a process for our shareholders to send communications te our directors.
Each of our directors n ay receive mail at the location of our principal executive offices at 215 North Pine
Street, Spartanburg, Sc uth Carolina 29302,

The audit committ ze is composed of Coleman L. Young, Ir., William A. Hudson, Mellnee Buchheit,
Dr. C. Tyrone Gilmore:, Sr., Benjamin R. Hines, C. Dan Adams, and W. Russel Floyd, Jr. The audit
committee met four tin es in 2007. Each member is considered independent as contemplated in the listing
standards of the NASI'AQ Global Market.
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The functions of the audit committee are set forth in its charter, which is included as Appendix A.
The initial charter was adopted in March 2000 and was most recently ratified in February 2007 with no
amendments to the version filed with the Company’s proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. The audit commiittee has the responsibility of reviewing our financial statements, evaluating
internal accounting controls, reviewing reports of regulatory authorities, and determining that all auvdits
and examinations required by law are performed. The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
entire audit function and appraising the effectiveness of internal and external audit efforts. The audit
committee reports its findings to the board of directors.

The compensation committee is composed of William A. Hudson, Mellnee Buchheit,
Martha C. Chapman, Norman F. Pulliam, Gaines W. Hammond, Jr., M.D. and Coleman L. Young, Jr. The
compensation committee mer. five times in 2007. Each member is considered independent as contem-
plated in the listing standards of the NASDAQ Global Market. The compensation committee does not
operate under a formal charter. The compensation committee has the authority to make recommenda-
tions to the Board of Directors regarding the salaries, bonuses and equity plan participation levels for our
named executive cfficers and is responsible for establishing, implementing and monitoring all compen-
sation policies of the Company and its bank subsidiary, First National Bank of the South. The
compensation committee also has the authority to review and make recommendations to the Board of
Directors with respect to employment agreements, severance arrangements and retirement plans for the
named executive officers, to oversee the design and administration of equity-based and incentive
compensation plans and otherwise to review and approve compensation plans. The compensation
committee does not delegate any of its authority to any executive officer of the Company. Together with
the full board of directors, the compensation committee evaluates the performance of our Chief Executive
Officer (“CEO”) and, with input from the CEO, evaluates the performance of the Company’s other
named executive officers and approves the resulting compensation levels for these individuals. The CEO
does not participate in any discussion or review by the compensation committee or Board of Directors
regarding his own compensation.

The nominating committee is composed of Gaines W. Hammond, Jr, M.D., C. Dan Adams,.
W. Russel Floyd, Coleman L. Young, Jr, and William A. Hudson. Each member is considered
independent as contemplated| in the listing standards of the NASDAQ Global Market. The nominating
committee acts under a written charter adopted by the board of directors. A copy of the charter is
available in the investor relations section of our website at www.firstnational-online.com. The nominating
committee met one time in Z2007.

Our nominating commiitee will consider director candidates recommended by shareholders who
submit nominations in accordance with our bylaws. In evaluating such recommendations, the committee
uses a variety of criteria to evaluate the qualifications and skills necessary for members of our boards.
While no single qualificatior: is determinative, the nominating committee shall consider the skills and
background needed by the Company and possessed by the person, diversity of the board, actual or
potential conflicts of interest, and the willingness and ability to devote time and energy to the duties of
a director. The nominating committee uses these criteria in evaluating the qualifications of director
candidates in addition to any other factor relevant to a person’s potential service on the Board of
Directors. The nominating committee reviews and reassesses at least annually director fees and
qualifications and recommends any proposed changes to the Board of Directors.

Shareholders must deliver nominations in wriling either by personal delivery or by United States
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the Secretary of the company no later than (i) with
respect to an election to be held at an annual meeting of shareholders, ninety days in advance of such
meeting; and (ii) with respect to an election to be held at a special meeting of shareholders for the election
of directors, following the close of business on the seventh day after notice of the date on which notice
of such special meeting is given to shareholder. Each notice shall set forth: (i) the name and address of
the shareholder who intends to make the nomination and of the person or persons to be nominated; (ii) a
representation that the shareholder is a holder of record of stock of the company entitled to vote at such
meeting and intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to nominate the person or persons
specified in the notice; (iii) a description of all arrangements or understandings between the sharcholder
and each nominec and any other person or persons (naming such person or persons) pursuant to which
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the nomination or non iinations are to be made by the shareholder; (iv) such other information regarding
each nominee propostd by such shareholder as would be requiret! to be included in a proxy statement
filed pursuant to the p ‘oxy rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), had the nominee
been nominated, or ir tended to be nominated, by the board of cirectors; and (v) the consent of ¢ach
nominee to serve as a Jirector of the Company if so elected. The caairman of the meeting may refuse to
acknowledge the nomunation of any person not made in complian:e with the foregoing procedure.

Our nominating ¢ >mmittee uses a variety of methods for identifying and evaluating nominees for
director. The nominati 1g committee regularly assesses the appropr: ate size of the board of directors, and
whether any vacancie: are expected due to retirement or othenvise. If vacancies are anticipated, or
otherwise arise, the no:ninating committee considers various potential candidates for director. Candidates
may come to their attention through current members of the board, shareholders, or other persons. These
candidates are evaluat«d at regular or special meetings of the boar, and may be considered at any point
during the year. The nominating committee considers properly submitted shareholder recommendations
for candidates. In evalunating such recommendations, the nominat ng committee uses the qualifications
and standards discusse:| above and seeks to achieve a balance of knowledge, experience and capability on
the board of directors.

Report of the Audit Committee of the Board

The report of the audit committee shall not be deemed inco1porated by reference by any general
statement incorporatin § by reference this proxy statement into any 'iling under the Securities Act of 1933
or the Securities Excliange Act of 1934, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate the
information contained in the report by reference, and shall not be deemed filed under such Acts.

The audit commiti z¢ has reviewed and discussed with managerient the audited financial statements.
Management has reprosented to the audit committee that the financial statements were prepared in
accordance with accouating principles generally acceptied in the United States of America. The audit
committee has discusse d with the independent registered public ac:ounting firm the matters required to
be discussed by the Sta ement on Auditing Standards No. 61. The a 1dit committee has received from the
independent registere:c. public accounting firm the written discosures and the letter required by
Independence Standarls Board Standard No. 1 (“Independence Liscussions with Audit Committees”)
and has discussed witl our independent auditors the independent registered public accounting firm’s
independence from us : nd our management. In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above,
the audit committee r¢ commended to our board of directors that the audited financial statements be
included in our Annual Report on SEC Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, for filing
with the SEC. ’

The audit committ :¢ does not include an “audit committee fin:incial expert” as defined by the rules
of the Securities and E> change Commission as no individual commiltee member meets the five attributes
and qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert”. However, we belicve that our committee members
collectively are capable of (i) understanding accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (“GAAP”: and financial statements, (ii) assessing tle general application of GAAP in
connection with the ac :ounting for estimates, accruals and reserves, (iii} analyzing and evaluating our
financial statements, (i /) understanding internal controls and pro:edures for financial reporting, and
(v) understanding audit committee functions, all of which are attrit utes of an audit committee financial
expert under the rule adopted by the SEC. However, to qualify as an andit committee financial expert
under these new rules, an individeal must also have experience preparing, auditing, analyzing, or
evaluating financial statzments for a company similar to ours, such as a former chief financial officer or
auditor of a community bank. The Board of Directors belicves that each current member of our audit
committee is fully qual fied to monitor the performance of manag:ment, the public disclosures by the
Company of its financial condition and performance, our interral accounting operations, and our
independent registered public accounting firm.

The report of the :iudit committee is included herein at the d rection of its members Coleman L.
Young, Jr., Mellnee Buc sheit, Dr. C. Tyrone Gilmore, Sr., William A. Hudson, Benjamin R. Hines, C. Dan
Adams, and W. Russel “loyd, Jr. Each of these members is considered independent as contemplated in
the listing standards of the NASDAQ Global Market.
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Oversight of Accountants; Approval of Accounting Fees

Under the provisions of its charter, the audit committee recommends to the Board of Directors the
appointment of the indepencent registered public accounting firm for the next fiscal year, reviews and
approves the auditor’s audit plans, and reviews with the independent registered public accounting firm the
results of the audit and manazement’s responses. The audit commitiee has adopted pre-approval policies
and procedures for audit and non-audit services. The pre-approval process requires all services to be
performed by our independent registered public accounting firm to be approved in advance by the audit
committee, regardless of amount. These services may include audit services, audit related services, tax
services and other services. As part of the pre-approval process, the audit committee considers the nature
of the services to be provided and evaluates the likelihood that the approval of these services will impair
the independence of the independent registered public accounting firm in determining whether to
approve the services to be performed by the independent registered public accounting firm.

Consolidated Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by Elliott Davis, LLC during the years
ended 2007 and 2006 for audit of our annual financial statements and reviews of those financial statements
included in our quarterly reports filed on SEC Forms 10-Q and 10-QSB, as well as Forms 10-K and
10-KSB, respectively, totaled $60,000 and $46,260, respectively.

Audit — Related Fees

The aggregate fees billed for non-audit services, exclusive of the fees disclosed relating to audit fees,
rendered by Elliott Davis, LLC during the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, were $116,100 and
$11,200. For the yzar ended December 31, 2007, these services include the assistance related to reviewing
and analyzing the tax and accounting treatment of the sale/leaseback transactions completed in February
and October 2007. For the vear ended December 31, 2007, these services also included the assistance
related. to providing comfo:t regarding the secondary offering of our common stock completed in
July 2007 and the review ol the prospectusfjoint proxy filed in November 2007 for our acquisition of
Carolina National Corporation.

Tax Fees

We did not engage the independent registered public accounting firm to provide, and the
independent registered public accounting firm did not bill for, any tax services during the years ended
December 31, 2007 or 2006.

All Other Fees

We did not engage the independent registered public accounting firm to provide, and the
independent registered public accounting firm did not bill for, any other services during the years ended
December 31, 2007 or 2006.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
Interests of Management and Others in Certain Transactions

We enter into banking and other transactions in the ordinary course of business with our directors
and officers and their affiliatzs. In February 2007, we entered into a transaction with a related party entity
to sell and subsequently lease back from the entity certain real properties previously owned by our bank
subsidiary for a price of $5,450,000. The related party entity is a limited liability company owned by a
group of nine investors who serve as non-management directors of the Company and our bank subsidiary
as follows: Gaines W, Hammond, Jr., M.D., Benjamin R. Hines, C. Dan Adams, Norman F. Pulliam,
Mellnee Buchheit, the Coleman Young Family Limited Partnership, Weisman Associates Limited
Partnership, a limited partuership of which Peter E. Weisman is the sole owner and voting member,
Donald B. Wildman (as managing member) and W. Russel Floyd, Jr. Each investor has a onefninth
interest in the limited liability company. The transaction was approved by the Board of Directors of our
bank subsidiary.
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In October 2007, we entered into a transaction with a related party entity to sell and subsequently
lease back from the ertity certain real properties previously ownec. by our bank subsidiary for a price of
$3.6 million. The relate d party entity is a limited liability company o wned by a group of nine investors who
serve as non-managen ent directors of the Company and our bank subsidiary as follows: C. Dan Adams, .
Norman F. Pulliam, Dvmald B. Wildman (as managing member), Mellnee Buchheit, the Coleman Young
Family Limited Partn :rship, Peter E. Weisman, William A. Hudson and Benjamin R. Hines. Each
investor/director has .1 one/eighth interest in the limited liabili:y corporation. The transaction was
approved by the Boar of Directors of our bank subsidiary.

It is our policy thit these related party transactions be on suastantially the same terms (including
price, or interest rates and collateral) as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with
unrelated parties. We do not expect these transactions to involve more than the normal risk of
collectability nor preseat other unfavorable features to us or the b: nk. Loans to individual directors and
officers must also con ply with our bank subsidiary lending policies and statutory lending limits, and
directors with a personail interest in any loan application are excluded from the consideration of the loan
application. We intend for all of our transactions with our affiliates to be on terms no less favorable to us
than could be obtained from an unaffiliated third party and to be approved by a majority of disinterested -
directors, Director ind:pendence is reviewed on an annual basis b/ the audit committee.

The Company has a written policy contained in its Code of Eth: cs which describes the procedures for
reviewing transactions between the Company and its directors ani executive officers, their immediate
family members and «¢ntities with which they have a position o1 relationship. These procedures are
intended to determine vhether any such related party transaction irpairs the independence of a director
or presents a conflict of interest on the part of a director of execulive officer.

The Company annually requires each of its directors and execntive officers to complete a directors’
and officers’ questionr aire that elicits information about related party transactions. The Company’s
management annually reviews all transactions and relationships ilisclosed in the director and officer
questionnaires, and th: Board of Directors makes a formal determination regarding each director’s
independence under N ASDAQ Global Market listing standards ar d applicable SEC rules.

In addition, the Company’s bank subsidiary is subject to the provisions of Section 23A of the Federal '
Reserve Act, which pla:es limits on the amount of loans or extensinns of credit to, or investments in, or I
certain other transactio 1s with, affiliates and on the amount of advaaces to third parties collateralized by
the securities or obligations of affiliates. The bank is also subject to the provisions of Section 23B of the |
Federal Reserves Act which, among other things, prohibits an institution from engaging in certain '
transactions with certai 1 affiliates unless the transactions are on ter ns substantially the same, or at least .
as favorable to such iistitution or its subsidiaries, as those prevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with nonaf iliated companies. Under Regulation O, the bank is subject to certain restrictions i
on extensions of credit to executive officers, directors, certain prin:ipal shareholders, and their related
interests. Such extensio1s of credit (i) must be made on substantially the same terms, including interest
rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with third parties and (ii)
must not involve more ‘han the normal risk of repayment or prese 1t other unfavorable features.

In addition to the :.nnual review, the Company’s Code of Ethics requires that the Company’s CEQ
be notified of any proposed transaction involving a director or executive officer that may present an actual
or potential conflict of interest, and that such transaction be prescnted to and approved by the audit
committee. Upon recei fing any notice of a related party transaction involving a director or executive
officer, the CEO will d scuss the transaction with the Chair of the Company’s audit committee. If the
likelihood exists that the transaction would present a conflict of intercst or, in the case of a director, impair
the director’s independe 1ce, the audit committee will review the tran: action and its ramifications. If, in the
case of a director, the a 1dit committee determines that the transaction presents a conflict of interest or
impairs the director’s in Jependence, the Board of Directors will detzrmine the appropriate response. If,
in the case of an executi /e officer, the audit committee determines tkat the transaction presents a conflict
of interest, the audit co nmittee will determine the appropriate resg onse.
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- Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

As required by Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, our directors and executive
officers and certain other individuals are required to report periodically their ownership of our common
stock and any changes in ownership to the SEC. Based on a review of Forms 3, 4, and 5 and any written
representations made to us, it appears that these forms were filed in a timely fashion during 2007.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We have selected Elliott Davis, LLC to serve as our independent registered public accounting firm
for the year ending December 31, 2008. We expect that a representative from this firm will be present and
available to answer appropriate questions at the annual meeting and will have the opportunity to make
a statement if he or she desires to do so.

Proposal No. 2: Approval of Adoption of the 2008 First National Bancshares, Inc.
Restricted Stock Plan

On March 17, 2008, our board of directors adopted, subject to shareholder approval, the 2008 First
National Bancshares, Inc. Restricted Stock Plan that provides for the grant of stock awards to our
employees, directors, and consultants. A total of 320,000 shares of common stock have been reserved for
issuance pursuant to awards under the plan, subject to the anti-dilution provisions of the plan. The
following summary of the material features of the plan is qualified in its entirety by reference to the copy
of the plan which is attached as Appendix B to this proxy statement.

Purpose of the Plan

We believe we have been able to attract highly qualified personnel in the past in part through the use
of stock option grants, and that it is desirable to have the continued ability to attract additional personnel
and to return and reward exceptional performance by employees through other awards that encourage
stock ownership and proprietary interest in the company. The board believes that the plan would provide
a means whereby those individuals upon whom the responsibilities of the successful administration and
management of the company rest, and whose present and potential contributions to the company are of
importance, can acquire and maintain stock ownership, thereby strengthening their concern for the
welfare of the company. By providing such individuals with additional incentive and reward opportunities,
the board believes that the plan will enhance the profitable growth of the company.

Administration of the Plan

The plan provides that it is to be administered by a committee appointed by the board and comprised
of two or more “putside” directors, within the meaning of section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986 and within the meaning of the term “non-employee director” as defined in Rule 16b-3 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The board has appointed the compensation committee to perform the
duties of the committee under the plan. The committee will administer the plan and will have sole
authority, in its discretion, to determine which employees, consultants or directors will receive awards
under the plan, the number of shares to be subject to each award, and the forfeiture restrictions (as
defined below) for each award. The committee will have such additional powers delegated to it under the
plan, including the power to construe the plan and the restricted stock agreements executed with
recipients of awards thereunder and to determine the terms, restrictions, and provisions of each
agreement. The committee may also correct any defect or supply any omission or reconcile any
inconsistency in the plan or in any agreement in the manner and to the extent it will deem expedient to
carry it into effect. The determinations of the committee on these matters will be conclusive.

The plan provides for awards of “restricted stock,” consisting of shares of common stock which are
issued to the participant at the time the award is made or at some later date, which shares are subject to
certain restrictions against disposition and certain obligations to forfeit such shares to the company under
certain circumstznces (the “Forfeiture Restrictions”). The Forfeiture Restrictions, which may be different
for each award, will be determined by the committee in its sole discretion, and the committee may provide
that the Forfeiture Restrictions will lapse upon: :
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(1) the attainmen . of one or more performance targets estab ished by the committee based upon,
among other things, share price, earnings per share, mark :t share, sales, net income, return on
investment, economic value added or return on shareholdzrs’ equity;

(2) the participan's continued employment with the company or continued services as a consultant
or director fo1 a specified period of time;

(3) the occurrence of any event or the satisfaction of any other condition specified by the committee
in its sole disc 'etion; or

(4) a combination of any of the foregoing.

Restricted stock a'varded pursuant to an award will be represe nted by a stock certificate registered
in the name of the participant. Unless otherwise provided in an agreement, the participant will have the
right to receive dividends, if any, with respect to such shares of resiricted stock, to vote such shares and
to enjoy all other shar holder rights, except that we will retain custody of the stock certificate and the
participant may not sel , transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose of th:: restricted stock until the Forfeiture
Restrictions have expir :d. A breach of the terms and conditions esiablished by the committee pursuant
to an award will cause 1 forfeiture of the award. The committee expects that participants generally will
not be required to mal e any payment for common stock received pursuant to an award, except to the
extent otherwise deternined by the committee or required by law.

The committee may, in its discretion, fully vest any or all restricted stock awarded to a participant
under an award and, upon such vesting, all Forfeiture Restrictions applicable to the award will
terminate. Any such a:tion by the committee may vary among iidividual participants and may vary
among awards held by : ny individual participant. The committee mi.y not, however, take any such action
with respect to an awar:| that has been granted to a “covered emplo:ree,” within the meaning of Treasury
Regulation Section 1.16'-27(c)(2), if such award has been designed ta meet the exception for performance-
based compensation un ler Section 162(m) of the Code.

At the time any av-ard is made, the company and the particip: nts will enter into a restricted stock
agreement setting forth the terms of the award and such other mattzrs as the committee may determine
to be appropriate. The 1:rms and provisions of the restricted stock a;sreements need not be identical, and
the committee may, in ifs sole discretion, amend an outstanding restiicted stock agreement at any time in
any manner that is not i xconsistent with the provisions of the plan. " "he maximum number of shares that
may be subject to awar s granted to any one participant may not exceed 100% of the aggregate number
of shares of common sto :k that may be issued under the plan (as adjusted from time to time in accordance
with the provisions of the plan).

Amendment and Termiation of the Plan

The board in its dis :retion may terminate the plan at any time with respect to any shares of common
stock for which awards jave not been granted. The board will have the right to alter or amend the plan
or any part thereof at aity time, except that it may not change any award granted that would impair the
rights of the participant without the consent of the participant and it may not, without approval of our
shareholders, (1) amend the plan to increase the maximum aggregate number of shares that may be issued
under the plan or chang: the class of individuals eligible to receive nwards under the plan or (2) amend
or delete the provision of the plan pertaining to the last senterce of the fourth paragraph under
“— Administration of tl e Plan,” above. Except for awards then outstanding, the plan will terminate and
no further awards will b«. granted after the expiration of 10 years follwing the date of its adoption by the
board, if not earlier terrinated.

Capital Changes

In the event of a stc ck dividend, stock split, reorganization, mer er, recapitalization or other change
affecting the common stock, such proportionate adjustments, if any, as the committee deems appropriate,
will be made with respe:t to (1) the aggregate number of shares ol common stock that may be issued
under the plan, (2) the number of shares issuable pursuant to each outstanding award made under the
plan, and (3) the maximt m number of shares that may be subject to awards granted to any one individual
under the plan.
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Tax Effects of Participation in the Plan

Under the Intz=rnal Revenue Code as presently in effect, a participant generally will not recognize any
income for federal income tax purposes at the time an award is made, nor will the company be entitled
to a tax deduction at that time, unless the participant elects to recognize income at the time the award is
made. If the participant does not make such election, the value of the common stock will be taxable to
the participant as ordinary income in the year in which the Forfeiture Restrictions lapse with respect to
such shares of stock. We have the right to deduct, in connection with all awards, any taxes required by law
to be withheld and to require any payments required to enable it to satisfy our withholding obliga-
tions. We will generally be allowed an income tax deduction equal to the ordinary income recognized by
the participant at the time of such recognition.

We may not deduct compensation of more than $1,000,000 that is paid in a taxable year to certain
“covered employees” as defined in Section 162{m) of the Code. The deduction limit, however, does not
apply to certain types of compensation, including qualified performance-based compensation. Compen-
sation attributable to awards currently contemplated by the committee under the plan will generally not
be qualified performance-based compensation and therefore will be subject to the deduction limit.

Under Section 280G of the Code, we may not deduct certain compensation payable in connection
with a change of control. The acceleration of vesting of awards in conjunction with a change of control
of the company may be limited under certain circumstance thereby avoiding nondeductible payments
under Section 280G. :

Plan Benefits

Because no awards have been granted under the plan as of the date of this proxy statement and all
awards will be granted at the discretion of the committee, it is not possible for us to determine and disclose
the amounts of awards that may be granted to the named executive officers and the executive officers as
a whole, if the plan is approved.

Reasons for Authorization and Vote Required

The plan is being submitted to the shareholders for approval pursuant to Section 162(m) of the Code
and the rules of The NASDAQ National Market. It is possible that some awards under the plan may
constitute qualified performance-based compensation for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code,
although it is generally intended that most awards will not constitute such performance-based compen-
sation.

The Board of Directors Recommends a Vote “For” Approval of the Restricted Stock Plan.

Assuming the presence of a quorum, the affirmative vote of a majority of the total votes cast on the
proposal is required to approve the plan.
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Equity Compensation Plan Inform ition

Number of securities
remaining avaitable for
future issuance under

Number of securities to  Weighted-average equity compensation
be issued upon exercise exercise price of plans (¢} (excluding
of outstanding options, «utstanding options, securities reflected
Plan Category warrants and rights (a) w:uTants and rights (b) in column (a))
Equity compensation flans approved by '
security holders®V ... .................. 299,965 $7.04 100,355
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders® .................. 663,509 $3.92 -—
Total . ... 963,474 $4.89 100,355

Bl .

(1} Pursuant to the Merger \greement approved at special meetings of the First National and Carolina National shareholders held
in December of 20077, a1 additional 141,346 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance upon the exercise of options
outstanding as of the e fective date of the Merger that were converted into options to purchase shares of First National
commton stock.

{2} Each of our organizers 1 :ceived, for no additional consideration, a warrant to p archase two shares of common stock for $3.92
R;er share (adjusted for 3 for 2 stock splits distributed on Fanuary 18, 2006, and M rch 1, 2004, and 6% stock dividend distributed
ay 16, 20060 and the 7 & stock dividend distributed on March 30, 2007) for e rery three shares purchased during our initial
public offering complet« d in February 2000. The warrants are represented by : eparate warrant agreements, One-fifth of the
warrants vested on eact of the first five anniversaries of the completion of the offering and they are exercisable in whole or
in part during the ten-ye ir period following that date. The warrants may not be :ssigned, transferred, pledged or hypothecated
in any way. The shares i sued pursuant to the exercise of such warrants are tran: ferable, subject to compliance with applicable
securities laws, If the OC C or the FDIC issues a capital directive or other order: equiring the bank to obtain additional capital,

the warranis will be for eited if not immediately exercised.

Shareliolder Proposals for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

If shareholders wis 1 to include a proposal in our proxy statement relating to the 2009 annual meeting,
they must deliver a witten copy of their proposal to our princpal executive offices no later than
November 21, 2008. To ensure we have prompt receipt, the proposa. should be sent certified mail, return
receipt requested. Prop ssals must comply with our bylaws relating to shareholder proposals in order to
be included in our pro: y materials.

Any shareholder | roposal to be made at our annual meetin;;, but which is not requested to be
included in our proxy materials, must comply with our bylaws. i’roposals must be delivered to our
principal executive offic es not less than 30 nor more than 60 days before the annual meeting provided,
however, that if less tha 131 days’ notice of the meeting is given to shareholders, such written notice must
be delivered no later tt an 10 days after notice of the annual meeting is mailed to shareholders.

April 16, 2008
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Appendix A

First National Bancshares, Inc.
Charter of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

Audit Committee Charter

The Board of Directors of the Company has delegated to the Audit Committee the Board’s
responsibility for monitoring the audit function of the Company, which includes the selection of
independent auditors, determination of the independence of the independent auditors, and internal
auditing and internal accounting controls.

Members of the Audit Committee shall discharge their commitiee duties using their business
judgment in accordance with standards prescribed for directors by applicable state corporate law and
rules adopted from time to time by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Membership of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is made up of three or more members of the Board of Directors who meet
applicable independence standards and have the ability to read and understand basic financial statements.

Members of the Audit Committee are encouraged to make use of training opportunities and
consultants to enhance their ability to perform their committee responsibilities.

Scope of Responsibilities

1. Recommend to the Board of Directors the selection of the Company’s independent accountants,
who shall be accountable to the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee, and, when
appropriate, their dismissal.

2. Review with the independent accountants their independence under applicable standards of
independence and report the results of the review to the Board of Directors.

3. On an annual basis, in conjunction with commencement of the annual audit, review the
independent auditors’ audit plan and consider its scope, staffing, reliance upon management and
internal audit functions, general audit approach, and the methods, practices, and policies
governing the audit work.

4. Review the budget, audit plans, changes in audit plans, activities, organizational structure, and
qualifications of the internal audit department, as needed.

5. Approve all fees and other compensation (subject to de minimis exceptions as defined by law for
non-audil services) to be paid to the independent auditors.

6. Pre-approve all audit and non-audit services (subject to de minimis exceptions as defined by law
for non-audit services) provided by the independent auditors in accordance with applicable
regulations. The Audit Committee may delegate its authority to pre-approve nonaudit services
to one or more designated Audit Committee members. The decisions of the designated
member(s) shall be presented to, and ratified by, the full Audit Committee at the next subsequent
meeting.

7. In consultation with management, the independent auditors, and the internal auditors, review
management’s periodic evaluations of the Company’s financial reporting processes and controls,
including disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls, and all reports or attestations
of the independent auditors on the Company’s internal controls. Review significam financial risk
exposures identified in such reports and the steps management has taken to monitor, control, and
report such exposures. Review significant findings prepared by the independent auditors and the
internal audit department together with management’s responses.

8. Meet with the independent accountants to review: (a) any problems encountered in the audit
including any restrictions imposed by management; and (b) the adequacy and effectiveness of
administrative, operating and accounting policies of the Company. Establish a communications
channel for the independent accountants to be able to contact the Audit Committee directly
without poing through management.
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12.
|

| 13,
|

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
19.

20.

Meet with the internal auditors to review: (a) any prob ems encountered in internal audits
including any ‘estrictions imposed by management; and () the adequacy and effectiveness of
administrative. operating, and accounting policies of the Cympany. Establish a communications
channel for th: internal auditors to be able to contact th: Audit Committee directly without
going through management.

. Review and af prove all significant proposed accounting changes.
11.

Review and d scuss with management and the independent auditors the Company’s annual
audited financi 1l statements prior to the filing of its Form 1(-K, including disclosures made: in the
“Management ; Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.” Report to the Board of Directors
the Audit Con mittee’s recommendation of whether to inc ude the audited financial statements
in the Compar y’s Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Review and d:scuss with management and the independent auditor the Company’s quarterly
financial staternients prior to the filing of its Form 10-QS13, including disclosures made in the
“Management’; Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operaion.”

Investigate any matter which the Audit Committee deems !o be in the interest of the Company
and report its 'indings to the Board of Directors.

Review and a)jprove any Audit Committee report to b«: included in the Company’s proxy
statement.

Discuss with rianagement the Company’s earnings press' releases, including the vse of “pro
forma” or *ad usted” non-GAAP information, as well as financial information and earnings
guidance prov ded to analysts and rating agencies. Such discussion may be done generally
(consisting of ¢ iscussing the types of information to be disclosed and the types of presentations
to be made).

Discuss with management and the independent auditor the effect of regulatory and accounting
initiatives, as v ell as off-balance sheet structures, on the Company’s financial statements.

Prior to releas ng the annual audit report, discuss with tie independent auditor the matters
required to be liscussed by Statement and Auditing Standirds No. 61 relating to the conduct of
the audit, inclu ling any difficulties encountered in the course of the audit work, any restrictions
on the scope o' activities or access to requested informatian, and any significant disagreements
with managem :nt.

Review with the Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Ifinancial Officer, financial and other
relevant manaement, and the independent auditors the Company’s annual and quarterly
certifications a; required by applicable regulations. Discuss (1) any significant deficiencies
identified to th: Audit Committee in the design or operaticn of financial accounting, reporting,
disclosure cont "ols and procedures, and internal controls, (:!) the process used by the officers to
certify the annual and quarterly reports, (3) any materia’ issues or risk exposures identified
during the certification process, and (4) the steps management has taken to monitor, control, and
report such exposures and control deficiencies.

Receive and r:view with the independent auditors quaiterly reports, and other reports if
requested by tiie Audit Committee from time to time, pripared by the independent auditors
concerning (i) the critical accounting policies and pracices of the Company and (ii) all
alternative treztments of financial information within generally accepted accounting principles
that have been liscussed with management and the ramificalions and preferred treatment of such
information. D rect the independent auditors to provide to the Audit Committee, at the time
they are sent 1> management, all material written commu nications between the independent
auditors and management.

At least annua ly, obtain and review a report by the indejendent auditors describing (1) the
independent at ditors’ internal quality-control procedures, 12) any material issues raised by the
most recent int:rnal quality-control review or peer review of the independent auditors or by any
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22,

23.

24.

inquiry or investigation by governmental or professional authorities, within the preceding five
years, respecting one or more independent audits carried out by the independent auditors, and
any steps taken to deal with any such issues, and (3) all relationships between the independent
auditors and the Company, so that the Audit Committee can assess the auditors’ independence.

Ensure the rotation of the audit partners as required by law. At least annually, review and discuss
with the independent auditors all relationships they have with the Company, including the
provision of non-audit services, and the necessity for rotation of independent auditor personnel.

Establish procedures for the receipt, retention, and treatment of complaints received by the
Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters. Establish
procedures for the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Company of
concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

Establish policies concerning the employment of employees and former employees of the
independent auditors, including policies addressing legal requirements.

Review related party transactions on a quarterly basis and approve only those which do not
create or intensify existing conflicts.

Audit Committee Activities

1.

The Audit Committce shall meet upon the call of its chairman and at such other times as it shall
determine.

Meetings of the Audit Committee shall be open only to members of the Audit Committee and
those invited to be present by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is authorized to employ and consult with accountants, attorneys, and other
professionals to assist it. :

The Audit Committee may meet together with the audit committees of the Company’s
subsidiaries but no person who is not a member of the Company’s audit committee shall be
entitled 1o vote on any matter considered by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee shall have unlimited access to all employees, books, and records of the
Company.

The Audit Committee shall report its activities and recommendations to the Board of Directors
at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee shall review and reassess the adequacy of this Charter annually and
recommend any -proposed changes to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee shall
annually review the Audit Committee’s own performance.

Discuss with the Company’s general counsel legal matters that may have a material impact on the
financial statements or the Company’s compliance policies.

Amendment or Repeal of Charter

The Board of Directors may amend or repeal this Charter and the duties of the Audit Committee at
any time.

Limitation of the Audit Committee’s Role

While the Audit Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in this Charter, it is not the
duty of the Audit Committee to plan or conduct audits or to determine that the Company’s financial
statements and disclosures are complete and accurate and are in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable rules and regulations. These are the responsibilities of management
and the independent auditor.

Ratified February 2007
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FIRST NATIONAL BANCSHARES, INC,
2008 RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

As used herein, the following terms have the following meanings unless the context clearly indicates
to the contrary:

“Award” shall mean a grant of Restricted Stock.
“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.

“Code” shall mean the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, including effective date and
transition rules (whether or not codified). Any reference herein to a specific section of the Code shall be
deemed to include a reference to any corresponding provision of future law.

“Committee” shall mean a committee of at least two Directors appointed from time to time by the
Board to serve as the Board’s Compensation Committee, having the duties and authority set forth herein
in addition to any other authority granted by the Board; provided, however, that with respect to any
Awards granted 1o an individual who is also a Section 16 Insider, the Committee shall consist of either the
entire Board or a committee of at least two Directors (who need not be members of the Committee with
respect to Awards granted to any other individuals) who are Non-Employee Directors, and all authority
and discretion shall be exercised by such Non-Employee Directors, and references herein to the
“Committee” shall mean such Non-Employee Directors insofar as any actions or determinations of the
Committee shall relate to or affect Awards made to or held by any Section 16 Insider. At any time that
the Board shall not have appointed a committee as described above, any reference herein to the
Committee shall mean a reference to the Board.

“Company” shall mean First National Bancshares, Inc., a South Carolina corporation.
“Director” shall mean a member of the Board.

“Employee” means any person who is an employee (as defined in accordance with Section 3401(c)
of the Code) of the Company and non-employees to whom an offer of employment has been extended.
An Officer or Director who meets the foregoing definition is an Employee. An Employee shall not cease
to be an Employee in the case of (i) any leave of absence approved by the Company or any Subsidiary,
as applicable, or (ii) transfers between locations of the Company or between the Company, any
Subsidiary, or any successor. '

“Exchange Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Any reference herein to a specific
section of the Exchange Act shall be deemed to include a reference to any corresponding provision of
future law,

“Grantee” shall mean a person who has received an Award of Restricted Stock.

“Non-Employee Director” shall have the meaning set forth in Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act,
as the same may be in effect from time to time, or in any successor rule thereto, and shall be determined
for all purposes under the Plan according to interpretative or “no-action” positions with respect thereto
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission. '

“Officer” shall mean a person who constitutes an officer of the Company for the purposes of Section
16 of the Exchange Act, as determined by reference to such Section 16 and to the rules, regulations,
judicial decisions, and interpretative or “no-action” positions with respect thereto of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, as the same may be in effect or set forth from time to time.

“Plan” shall mean the First National Bancshares, Inc. 2008 Restricted Stock Plan, the terms of which
are set forth herein.

“Qualified Domestic Relations Order” shall have the meaning set forth in the Code or in the
Employee Retiremznt Income Security Act of 1974, or the rules and regulations promulgated under the
Code or such Act.
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“Restricted Stock ' shall mean Stock issued, subject to restrictions, to a Grantee pursuant 10 Article
VI hereof. ‘ )

“Restriction Agreement” shall mean the agreement setting forth the terms of an Award, and
executed by a Grantee as provided in Section 6.5 hereof. '

“Section 16 Insid: r” shall mean any person who is subject to the provisions of Section 16 of the
Exchange Act, as'provided in Rule 16a-2 promulgated pursuant t¢ the Exchange Act.

- “Stock” shall mea1 the Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, of the Company or, in the event
that the outstanding sliares of Stock are hereafter changed into or exchanged for shares of a different
stock or securities of t 1e Company or some other entity, such other stock or securities.

“Subsidiary” shal mean any corporation {other than the (Company) in an unbroken chain of
corporations beginning with the: Company if, at the time of the gran: (or modification) of the Award, each
of the corporations otl er than the last corporation in the unbrokeri chain owns stock possessing 50% or
more of the total comtined voting power of all classes of stock in jne of the other corporations in such
chain.

ARTICLE Il
THE PLAN

21 Name. Thiz Plan shall be known as “First Nation:z] Bancshares, Inc. 2008 Restricted
Stock Plan.”

2.2 Purpose. Tlie purpose of the Plan is to advance the inte ests of the Company, its Subsidiaries,
and its shareholders |y affording Employees and Directors of tie Company and its Subsidiaries an
opportunity to acquire or increase their proprietary interests in the Zompany, thereby strengthening their
concern for the welfari: of the Company and its Subsidiaries. A further purpose of the Plan is to provide
such individuals with : dditional incentive and reward opportunitivs designed to enhance the profitable
growth of the Compan  and its Subsidiaries. Accordingly, the Plan provides for granting Awards that are
best suited to the circt mstances of the particular Employee or Director as provided herein.

2.3 Effective Da e and Duration of the Plan. The Plan shall become effective upon the date of its
adoption by the Boar|, provided the Plan is approved by the shzreholders of the Company within 12
months thereafter. Not withstanding any provision in the Plan or in iny Restriction Agreement, no Award
shall be granted prior o such shareholder approval. No further Avards may be granted under the Plan
after 10 years from th:: date the Plan is adopted by the Board. Tte Plan shall remain in effect until all
Awards granted under the Plan have vested or been forfeited.

ARTICLE 1l
PARTICIPANTS

The class of perso 1s eligible to participate in the Plan shall consist of all Directors and Employees of
the Company or any  ubsidiary.

ARTICLE IV
ADMINISTRATION

4.1 Duties and ’owers of the Committee. Subject to the express provisions of the Plan, the
Committee shall have authority, in its sole discretion, to determin: which Employees or Directors shall
receive an Award, the lime or times when such Award shall be maile, the number of shares to be subject
to each Award, and th: Forfeiture Restrictions and related conditins of lapse applicable to each Award.
In making such determ inations, the Committee shall take into account the nature of the services rendered
by the respective Employees or Directors, their present and pot:ntial contribution to the Company’s
success, and such other factors as the Committee in its discretion shall deem relevant.

4.2. Additional 'owers. The Committee shall have such acditional powers as are delegated to it
by the other provisions of the Plan. Subject to the express provisions of the Plan, this shall include the
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power to construe the Plan'and the Restriction Agreements executed hereunder, to prescribe rules and
regulations relating to the Plan, and to determine the terms, restrictions, and provisions of the Restriction
Agreement relating to each Award, and to make all other determinations necessary or advisable for
administering the Plan. The Committee may correct any defect or supply any omission or reconcile any
inconsistency in the Plan or in any Restriction Agreement relating to an Award in the manner and to the
extent it shall deem expedient to carry it into effect. The determinations of the Committee on the matters
referred to in this Section 4.2 shall be conclusive.

4.3 No Liability. Netther any member of the Board nor any member of the Committee shall be
liable to any person for any act or determination made in good faith with respect to the Plan or any Award
granted hereunder.

4.4 Majority Rule. A majority of the members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum, and
any action taken by a majority at a meeting at which a quorum is preseat, or any action taken without a
meeting evidenced by a writing executed by all the members of the Committee, shall constitute the action
of the Committee.

4.5 Company Assistance. The Company shall supply full and timely information to the Commit-
tee on all matters relating to eligible persons, their employment, death, retirement, disability, or other
termination of employment, and such other pertinent facts as the Committee may require. The Company
shall furnish the Committee with such clerical and other assistance as is necessary in the performance of
its duties.

ARTICLE V
SHARES OF STOCK SUBJECT TO PLAN

5.1 Limitaticns. Subject to adjustment in the same manner as provided in Section 5.2 below, the
aggregate number of shares of Stock that may be issued under the Plan shall not exceed 320,000 shares.
Shares shall be deemed to have been issued under the Plan only to the extent actually issued and delivered
pursuant to an Award. To the extent that an Award lapses or the rights of its holder terminate, any shares
of Stock subject to such Award shall again be available for the grant of an Award under the Plan. If shares
of Restricted Stock are repurchased by the Company at their original purchase price, those shares shall
become available for future grant under this Plan.

5.2 Aantidilution.

(a) If (x) the outstanding shares of Stock are changed into or exchanged for a different number or
kind of shares or other securities of the Company by reason of merger, consolidation, reorganization,
recapitalization, reclassification, combination or exchange of shares, or stock split or stock dividend, (y)
any spin-off, spin-out or other distribution of assets materially affects the price of the Company’s stock,
or (z) there is any assumption and conversion to the Plan by the Company of an acquired company’s
outstanding restricted stock, then:

(i) the aggregate number and kind of shares of Stock for which Awards may be granted
hereunder shall be adjusted proportionately by the Committee; and

(ii) the rights of the holders of Awards (concerning the terms and conditions of the lapse of any
then-remaining restrictions) shall be adjusted proportionately by the Committee.

(b) If the Company shall be a party to any reorganization in which it does not survive, involving
merger, consolidation, or acquisition of the stock or substantially all the assets of the Company, the
Committee, in its sole discretion, may (but is not required to) notify all Grantees that (i) all
then-remaining restrictions pertaining to Awards under the Plan shall immediately lapse and/or (i) all
Awards granted under the Plan shall be assumed by the successor corporation or substituted on an
equitable basis with restricted stock issued by such successor corporation.

(c) If the Company is to be liquidated or dissolved in connection with a reorganization described
in Section 5.2(b), the provisions of such Section shall apply. In all other instances, the adoption of a plan
of dissolution or liquidation of the Company shalil, notwithstanding other provisions hereof, cause all
then-remaining restrictions pertaining to Awards to lapse.
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(d) The adjustm::nts described in paragraphs (a) through (c) of this Section 5.2, and the manner of
their application, shall se determined solely by the Committee, and any such adjustment may provide for
the elimination of fractional share interests. The adjustments required under this Article V shall apply to
any successors of the (‘ompany and shall be made regardless of the: number or type of successive evenls
requiring such adjustmr ents.

ARTICLE VI
RESTRICTED STOCK

6.1 Forfeiture R :strictions to be Established by the Comnittee. Shares of Stock that are the
subject of a Restrictior. Agreement shall be subject to restrictions n disposition by the Grantee and an
obligation of the Granize to forfeit and surrender the shares to the (Company under certain circumstances
(the “Forfeiture Restrictions”). The Forfeiture Restrictions shall b: determined by the Committze in its
sole discretion, and the Committee may provide that the Forfeitur: Restrictions shall lapse upon (i) the
attainment of one or more performance targets established by the Committee that are based on (1) the
price of a share of Stock, (2) the Company’s earnings per share, (3) the Company’s market share. {4) the
market share of a business unit of the Company designated by the ‘Zommittee, (5) the sales of a business
unit of the Company lesignated by the Committee, (6) the net income (before or after taxes) of the
Company or any busin :ss unit of the Company designated by the Committee, (7) the cash flow return on
investment of the Con pany or any business unit of the Company esignated by thc Committee, (8) the
earnings before or afte - interest, taxes, depreciation, and/or amortization of the Company or any business
unit of the Company dr:signated by the Committee, (9) the return on shareholders’ equity achieved by the
Company, or (10) the otal shareholders’ return achieved by the Company, (ii) the Grantee’s continued
employment with the (Company or a Subsidiary or continued servie as a Director for a specified period
of time, (iii) the occurence of any event or the satisfaction of any other condition specified by the
Committee in its sole discretion, or (iv) a combination of any of the ioregoing. The performance measures
described in clause (i) of the preceding sentence may be subject 1o adjustment for specified significant
extraordinary items or events, and may be absolute, relative to one or more other companies, or relative
to one or more inderes, and may be contingent upon future p:rformance of the Company or any
Subsidiary, division, or department thereof. Each Award may have «lifferent Forfeiture Restrictions in the
discretion of the Comiuittee.

6.2 Other Terms and Conditions. Stock awarded pursuant to a Restriction Agreement shall be
represented by a stock certificate registered in the name of the Grantee. Unless provided otherwise in a
Restriction Agreemen', the Grantee shall have the right to receive dividends with respect to Stock subject
to an Award, to vote S ock subject an Award, and to enjoy all other shareholder tights, except that (i) the
Grantee shall not be «ntitled to delivery of the stock certificate 1ntil the Forfeiture Restrictions have
expired, (ii) the Comp wny shall retain custody of the stock until the Forfeiture Restrictions have expired,
(iii) the Grantee may 1ot sell, transfer, pledge, exchange, hypotheuate or otherwise dispose of the stock
until the Forfeiture Ru strictions have expired, and (iv) a breach of the terms and conditions established
by the Committee pursuant to the Restriction Agreement shall cause a forfeiture of the Award. At the
time of such Award, tl.e Committee may, in its sole discretion, prescribe additional terms, conditions or
restrictions relating to the Award, including, but not limited to, 1ules pertaining to the termination of
employment or servicc as a Director (by retirement, disability, dea'h or otherwise) of a Grantee prior to
expiration of the Forf :iture Restrictions. Such additional terms, conditions, or restrictions shall be set
forth in a Restriction \greement made in conjunction with the Avard.

6.3 Payment for Restricted Stock. The Committee shall de termine the amount and form of any
payment for Stock rec :ived pursuant to an Award, provided that in the absence of such a determination,
a Grantee shall not be required to make any payment for Stock ri:ceived pursuant to an Award, except
to the extent otherwis : required by law.

6.4 Committee’s Discretion to Accelerate Vesting of Aviards. The Committee may, in its
discretion and as of a ¢ ate determined by the Committee, fully vest any or all Stock awarded to a Grantee
pursuant to an Award ind, upon such vesting, all restrictions applicable to such Award shall terminate as
of such date. Any acticm by the Committee pursuant to this sectior. may vary among individual Grantees
and may vary among "he Awards held by any individual Grantee.
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6.5 Restriction Agreements. At the time any Award is made under this Article VI, the Company
and the Grantee shall enter into a Restriction Agreement setting forth each of the matters contemplated
hereby and such other matters as the Committee may determine to be appropriate. The terms and
provisions of the respective Restriction Agreements need not be identical. Subject to the consent of the
Grantee and the restriction set forth in the last sentence of Section 6.4 above, the Committee may, in its
sole discretion, amend an outstanding Restriction Agreement from time to time in any manner that is not
inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan.

ARTICLE VI
STOCK CERTIFICATES

The Company shall not be required to deliver any certificate for shares of Restricted Stock granted
hereunder, prior to fulfillment of all of the following conditions:

(a) The admission of such shares to listing on all stock exchanges on which the Stock is then listed,;

(b) The completion of any registration or other qualification of such shares which the Committee
shall deem necessary or advisable under any federal or state law or under the rulings or regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission or any other governmental regulatory body; and

(c) The obtaining of any approval or other clearance from any federal or state governmental agency
or body which the Committee shall determine to be necessary or advisable.

Within a reasonable period of time following the lapse of the restrictions on shares of Restricted
Stock, the Committee shall cause a stock certificate to be delivered to the Grantee with respect to such
Stock and such Stock shall be free of all restrictions under this Plan. Stock certificates issued and delivered
to Grantees shall bear such restrictive legends as the Company shall deem necessary or advisable pursuant
to applicable federal and state securities laws.

ARTICLE VIt
TERMINATION AND AMENDMENT

The Board in its discretion may terminate the Plan at any time with respect to any shares of Stock
for which Awards have not already been granted. The Board shall have the right to alter or amend the
Plan or any part thereof from time to time; provided that no change in any Award already granted may
be made which would impair the rights of the Grantee without the consent of the Grantee, and provided,
further, that the Board may not, without approvat of the shareholders of the Company amend the Plan
to increase the maximum aggregate number of shares of Stock that may be issued under the Plan or
change the class of individuals eligible to receive Awards under the Plan.

. ARTICLE 1X
RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER COMPENSATION PLANS

The adoption of the Plan shall not affect any other stock option, incentive, or other compensation
plans in effect for the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; nor shall the adoption of the Plan preclude the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries from establishing any other form of incentive or other compensation
plan for Employees or Directors of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.
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ARTICLE X
MISCELLANEOUS

the terms of the Plai, the Committee may modify outstanding Awards or accept the surrender of
outstanding Awards : nd grant new Awards in substitution for them. However, no modification of an
Award shall adversely affect a Grantee’s rights under a Restriction Agreement without the consent of the
Grantee or his legal 1 2presentative.

} 10.1 Replaceme at or Amended Grants. At the sole discreion of the Committee, and subject to

102 Forfeiture ‘or Competition. If a Grantee provides setvices to a competitor of the Company
or any of its Subsidia ies, whether as an employee, officer, director, independent contractor, consultant,
agent, or otherwise, s ich services being of a nature that can reascnably be expected to involve the skills
and experience used ¢ r developed by the Grantee while an Employ ee, then any shares of Restricted Stock
held by such Grante= subject to remaining restrictions shall b:: forfeited, subject in each case to a
determination to the :ontrary by the Committee.

103 Plan Bindiig on Successors. The Plan shall be bindin; upon the successors and assigns of the
Company.

10.4 Headings, etc., No Part of Plan. Headings of Articlés and Sections hereof are inserted for
convenience and refe rence; they do not constitute part of the Plin.

10.5 Section 16 Compliance. With respect to Section 16 Ir siders, transactions under this Plan are
intended to comply with all applicable conditions of Rule 16b-3 o1 its successors under the Exchange Act.
To the extent any pre vision of the Plan or action by the Committi:e fails to so comply, it shall be deemed
void to the extent permitted by law and deemed advisable by th: Committee.

106 No Right to an Award. Neither the adoption of the Plan nor any action of the Board or of
the Committee shall be deemed to give an Employee or Director any right to an Award, or any other
rights hereunder exc :pt as may be evidenced by a Restriction Agreement duly executed on behalf of the
Company, and then Hnly to the extent and on the terms and cor ditions expressly set forth therein. The
Plan shall be unfund>d. The Company shall not be required to establish any special or separate fund or
to make any other si:gregation of funds or assets to assure the p :rformance of its obligations under any
Award.

10.7 No Employment/Membership Rights Conferred. No hing contained in the Plan shall (i) con-
fer upon any Emplo /ee any right with respect to continuation of employment with the Company or any
Subsidiary or (ii) intzrfere in any way with the right of the Company or any Subsidiary to terminate his
or her employment 1t any time. Nothing contained in the Plan shall confer upon any Director any right
with respect to cont nuation of membership on the Board.

10.8 Restrictic n on Transfer. An Award shall not be tran iferable otherwise than (i) by will or the
laws of descent and distribution, (ii) pursuant to a Qualified Domestic Relations Order, or (iii) with the
consent of the Com nittee.
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